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Committed to
enriching lives

The UK's leading
retirement
housebuilder

McCarthy & Stone is the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder with a ¢.70%'
share of the owner-occupied market.

We buy land, secure detailed planning
consent and then build, sell and manage
high-quality retirement developments. We
have sold over 51,000 apartments across
more than 1,100 locations since 1977.

1 Based on 3 453 iegisirauon of cross-tenwe propertes spacilicaly designed for the
eidorty with the NHBG dunng calendar year 2015, of wiwch 2,672 were registered by
McCarthy & Stone

Front caver, clockwisa from lop left
The Limes {Murrayfieldfj, Heron Place (Kidhngtan)
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Financial Highlights - in FY16

Underlying profit before tax (PBTY'

¢105.0m

FY15 £88 4m

Legal completions

2,299

FY15 1,923

Return on capital employed

207

FY15: 20%

Highlights

Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction from the HBF
for the 11th consecutive year,

underpinning our commtment
to quality and customer service.

1 Sas pages 32-33 for datals regarding KPia.
2 Inc.das threg commarcial uvls
3 Scepage 122 for g'ossary of terms

Revenue'

+31%

FY16: £635.9m
FY15 £4857m

Land bank {plots)

10,186

FY15. 10,087

Year end net cash’

552.8m

P15 net debt 244 4m

Rejoined the Main Market of
the London Stock Exchange
following our successful
Initial Public Offering (IPO)
in November 2015,

-

McCarthy & Stone plc 1
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Our Business

The UK’s leading retirement

housebuilder

Graphic removed

Our values:

At McCarthy & Stone we work together
to enrich the lives of our customers.

We are determined to build a culture

of excellence among our employees,
recognising achievements and opportunities
for devetopment throughout the business.

@ Soe pages 44-49

c.70% 51,000

Clear market leader with ¢ 70% share Apartments sold
of the owner-occupied retirement market

t Based on 3 453 re@stratrons of cross-tenure
properties specifically designed lor the eldany
with tha NHBC gunng calendar year 2015 of
which 2 672 were registersd by McCarthy & Stone

Camchk Court, Drayton

Qur regional focus

In Septermber 2015, we launched

three new regtons in the South West,
East Midlands and North West to
support our growth plans and improve
our covarage of local markets We

now have nine profitable regional offices,
with expenenced and high-quality
managament teams i place

FTSE 250

Rejoined the London Stock Exchange in
November 2015 Entered into the FTSE 250
in March 2016
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Qur driving ambition is to enrich the lives

of our homeowners

Group overview

We are the UK's leaching retiremant
housebuiider and have sold over
51,000 apartments across more than
1,100 developrments since 1977

We buy land, secure detalled
planning consent and then buid,
sell and manage high-qualty and
wall-located retrerment developments

Operating in a distinct sector of
the UK housebuilding market, we
offer owner-occcupiad apartrments
specifically designed around the
needs of older customers

Qur mission - enriching lives

Qur dnving ambition s to enrich the lives
of our homeowners and employees

We am to provide the vary best housing
and services that meet the needs of
those in tater kfe, we put our customers
at the heart of everything we do

We are pleased that thuis ambition has
been recognised with a Five Star awarg
for custorner satisfachon in surveys
undertaken with cur homeowners by the
Horme Builders Federation {HBF) and the
Nationat House Buiiding Council (NHBC}
We are the only UK housebuilder, of

any size or type, to win this award for

11 years running, each year since it was
established in 2005

Results of our Bulding Companionship
survey undertaken in the year, In
partnerstup with the cross-party

thunk tank Demos, showed owr
homeowners have a much higher
sense of compantonship than the

over 58s n general housing

McCarthy & Stoneple 03

Recogmton and awards

N -
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We're proud that our role in ennching
lives has been recogrused with a
number of awards in FY16, including

* Customer satsfaction Five Star
award for the 11th year running

+ NHBC Pnde in the Job Tensite
managers recaewved Quality awards

+ Natonal Housing for Older People
awards Two deveiopments were
noted as the best examples of
retiramant housing Rockhaven
Court, Horwich, won Gold
and Queen Elizabeth Court,
Kirkby Lonsdale, won Bronze
In thewr categones

* Housebulder awards Best
Retrement Scheme, Scartet Oak,
Sohhull

* NHBC Heatth & Safety awards
Five site managers received
commendations (¢ 8% of the total
awards made} Paul Gethin, our
site manager n Shrewsbury, was
also hughly commended

+ Considerate Constructors awards
Siver winner, Midhurst

* Building Safety Group (BSG)
2015 Member of the Year

s 08 7% average score achieved in
FY16 against the BSG's ‘generally
complies' cntena

« Sunday Times Grant Thomnton Top
Track 2015 Named mn the top 250
hist of leading UK companies

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Our Business continued

Operating in an exceptional
growth market
=

Graphicremoved

&£ \We have three core
products that deliver
outstanding qualty and
are tallored to the needs
of our customers. 93

Chve Fenton
Chtef Executive Officer

L

Kenton todge, Gosforth

~ 1 T 4%

Of all future housshold growth
n England will come from

those aged 65 or older

c.50%

I_ J |_ J Growth in number of those

Chart removed Chart removed

aged 65 and over by 2035

1 The Department for Committess and Local

Go % (DCLG) proy

2 ONS Population Projactions (2014)
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Our core products
and services

r— ~| Retirement Living

Independence with peace of mind
* Minimurn age 60
* Average age at purchase 79

McCarthy & Stoneplec 05

Graphic removed * Typical number of apartments per site 30-50

* FY16 completions 1,511
* Land bank 62% (6,303 uniis}

¢ Enhanced platinum specification developments also avaitable

I%] a0 pages 12-13

T
-

Assisted Living

A retirement apartment you own with flexible care and support

e Mirimurn agse 70

Average age at purchase 83
Graphic removed
FY18 completions 697

Land bank 30% (3,094 urnuts)

2 & & 9 0

@ Sao pagses 14-15

T
.

Ortus Homes

Downsize for the leisure years
* Mimmum age 55
* Average age at purchase 73

Typical number of apartments per srie 40-60

Enhanced platinum specification developmenits also avallable

Graphic removed + Typcal number of apariments per site 20-4Q

* FY16 complehons 88
» |and bank 8% (789 untts)

@ Ses pages 16-17

S
e

Management Services

Qur new developments are run by our
n-house management teams who
provide unique lifestyle banefits and arm

Graphic removed to improve the lives of our homeowners
They manage all aspects of property
mantenance and provide a range of
care and support seniices

L_ _’ @ See pages 1819

From top

Sanderson Court, Hagley,

Kings Piace, Flas!,

The Plnes, Alloway, and

lunch service at Kenton Lodge, Gosforth

Our House Managers and Estate
Management teams look after our
homeaowners and ther developrarnts,
helping to prowide peace of mind,
security and companionship

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Our Customers

Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Exceptional standards

of customer scatisfaction

The needs of our customers
underpin everything we do,
from the land we buy, to

the developments we build
and the way we manage.

Wea ara the only national housebuilder
to buld exclusively for those in later
Ife, and this gives us an unparalleled
understancing of our market

Our customers want to retain private
ownership and independence, but are
also looking for a ittle more support,
whether in terms of someone o manage
the maintenance of thew property

or provide more hands-on care

We prowide safe, attractive, aspirational
and well-located housing for
homeowners that helps our customers
Iive therr later years to the full We want
them to be happer, healthier, more
active, and ulimately to ennch ther lves
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| Based on the HBF 2018 customer satsfaction survey
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90%

Of our custorners would
recommend us to a fnend

80

Average customer age
at purchase across
&l developments

5

Average miles moved

N ]

Graphics removed
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k& P've lived In the area for most of my life and
followed the progress of the development from
the beginning. | decided that it was the nght
time to downsize and as soon as | stepped
through the door, | just knew that Lyle Court
was for me - it felt nght. 99

Marjorie Crawford, who in November 2015 bought our 50.000th apartment
and moved nto Lyle Court, our Assisted Living development, in Edinburgh

www mccarthyandstonaegroup co uk
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Chaiman’s Statement

Robust

growth delivered in

our first year of trading as
a public company

&€& The Group delivered
record revenue, together
with robust growth in
completions, reservations
and profits in rts first

year of trading as a
public company.?9

John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman

[ B

Graphic removed

| am pleased o present our first set of
results since rejoining the London Stock
Exchange in November 2015 The Group
delivered record revenue, together

with robust growth in complstions,
reservatons and profits, in its first year
of trading as a public company and
contnues to captalise on the attractive
demographic opporturity and structural
shortage of supply of retirement housing
in the UK Revenue increased by 31%

lo a recond £635 9m (FY15 £485 7m)
and legal completions are now at

ther hughest lavel for nine years

Market conditions

Market conditions ware favourable for the
first nine months of the year and during
this penod we achigved strong growth n
our reservations However, as préviously
indicated, thaera was evidence of some
weakness i the secondary housing
market immediately following the EU
Referendum result Cur strong balance
sheet and expenenced management
team enablsd us to show considerable
flaxibility and resilience in responss to
these market developments — we acted
quickly to close out completion chains
and adopted a more measured approach
with respect to land nvestment Ths,
together with the net proceeds from the
IPO of £78 5m, enatled us to improve
significantly our cash position year-on-
year to £52 8m of net cash (FY15 £44 4m
net debt) and maximise cash available
for reinvestment, demonstrating that we
are able to respond quickly and flaxibly
to preserve our financial strength when
external market conditions require

Smce the year end, we have expenenced
a retum to more normal trading
condihons Qur reservation rates, visitor
numbers and sales leads from new
enguines have all been running at levels
sn excess of last year and our forward
order book! including legal complations
1S now ahead of the prior year and stands
at ¢ £250m at 12 November 2016 (FY15
£241m) assisted by three addittonal

sales releases (FY16 13, FY15 len)

The ivestment made n our three new
regions and additional operational

infrastructure to create the platform
for dellvenng our strategic growth plan
18 now showing baneiit, with all nine
regions delivening profit this year In
addition, our continuing focus on our
three strategic mitiatives has allowed
us to deliver further improvement in
our capital turn to 1 2x {FY15 10x)

We have been encouraged by a recent
indication from the Government that
they are beginning to lcok beyond the
first trne buyer when considering their
policy options, with housing for older
peopte identified as the only ‘cntical’
housing need in the Governmaent's 2015
National Planning Practice Guidance
Retirement housing improvas well-being,
releases under-occcupied and much-
needed family-sized homes and i1s huighly
sustainable The provision of apartments
spacifically designed to meet the needs
of the retirement market 1s an essential
part of the UK housing cutput and the
housing needs of this age group should
now become a pnority for Government

We beheve that there are a number

of policy optons available to the
Government to encourage and assist
those wishing to move to more sutable
retirement housing On 21 October, we
wrote to the Chancellor of the Exchequer
to request that he considers a reduction
in Stamp Duty for homeowners looking
to downsize We firmly beleve this

would be a highly effectve incentive

that would help people to move, provide
a much-needed stimulus to the wider
housing market by freaing up large
family-s1ized homes for those lower down
the housing ¢han, and could result na
net revenue ncrease for the Treasury of
some £740m per year through increased
Stamp Duty receipts from the additional
housing chans created as a result

1 Forward order book incudes legal completions
between | September 2018 and 12 November 2016
and reservations as at 12 Novamber 2M6 Ferward
order book as at 31 August 2018 ncluded revenue
siter cash discounts, PX top-ups and other
incentives Forward order beok as at 12 November
2016 included revenue alter cash discounts and
X tap ups QOthar ncentives amounted to £5m
(F¥15 €3m)



Dividend

The Directors are proposing a final
dwidend of 3 5 pence per share n
accordance with previous guidance
This follows the (pro-rata) intenm
dividend of 1 Q pence per share, gving

a total divdend for the year ¢i 4 5 pence

This rernains n tne with our dvidend
policy as stated at the time of our IPO,
which targets a pay-out of ¢ 30% of
profit after tax excluding certan
exceptional tems

Board and executive team

Wa expenenced some natural Board
evolution this year as a result of our
IPO In November 2015, our National
QOperations Oirector, John Tonkiss
was appointed to the Board John
1oned McCarthy & Stone In February
2014 and has been instrumental in
driving our key strategic inthatives
within our core processes and
continues to oversee this work at
Board level His previous expenence
includes a number of years as Chief
Qperating Officer at Unite plgc, the UK's
leading student housing provider

Pnor to the Group's IPO in November
2015, Nils Albert resigned from his
role as a Nomines Chrector on the
Board, representing the Group’s
then largest sharsholder

We will shortly see the departure of
Nick Maddock, our Chief Financial
Officer, whose resignation will take
effect n Q1 of the 2017 calendar

year We are extremely grateful to

Nick for his significant contnbution

to the Board over the past five years
He has played an important role n
recapitaliging the Group, delivering

our growth strategy and prepanng us
for our successful return to the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange
in November 2015 The process to
appoint Nick's successor is now under
way and a further announcerment on
this wili be made in due course

In addition to this, there was a further
change wathin our executive leadership
team, which we announced cn 4 July

Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Kings Place, Figst

2016 Mike Jennings, Operatons
Director South, left McCarthy & Stone
on 31 August after 19 years with the
Group Mike's duties as an Operations
Director transferved to John Tonkiss
frorn 1 Septernber 2016, with his
othar responsibilities being spread
across other existing members of

the executive leadershup team

McCarthy & Stone has a strong platform
in place to deliver s planned growth

We have an expenenced managerment
team and the necessary operatonal
capabirty, a high-qualty land bank with
attractive margins, a strong balance
sheet and continued strength of brand to
support the achievernent of our medium-
term strategic objective of bullding and
selling more than 3,000 units per annum

The markat for retiremeant housing
remains highly attractive With research
by the Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG) now
recognising that around 74% of
household growth in the UK to 2039

18 expacted to come from those aged
65 and over?, McCarthy & Stons
remains uniquely placed to capitalise
on this unprecedented demographic
opportunity in which demand contmues
to exceed supply The Group has made

]

£635.9m

Reverwe FY15 £4857m

+31%

Revenue

great progress towards achieving
its strategic objective this year and
my thanks go to all employees, the
management team and my fellow
Boarg members for the significant
contnbution they have made

John White

Group Nen-Executive Chairman
14 November 20186

2 The Qepartiment lor Commurnties and Locat
Govarnment {DCLG) projecions (uly 2016)

www mccarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk
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Our Portfolio
[_Oakﬁefd Court, Urmston —I

Graphic removed

National scale

meeting local needs

Graphic removed

I_ Hiflborough House, Bexhif on Sea __I




We are the UK's leading retirement housebuilder, with a
nationwide operation. Over the past 12 months, three new
regional offices have been established, bringing our total to

Annwual Report and Accounts 2016

McCarthy & Stane plo

nine. We enjoy close links with the local communities in which
we operate and have in-depth experience and understanding
of local housing needs and planning requirements.

Examples of our current portfolio

-

1 1 1 RN

AN
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Graphic removed
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_l Kingswood Court, Sidcup, L.ondon

_l
B
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e Retrement Living

* 49 apartments

* QOpened February 2016
* 1009% reserved off-plan

Blyton House, Bourne End,
Buckinghamshire

¢ Retirement Lmang (Platinum}

* 25 apartments

* Opened July 2016

* 1009 reserved off-plan

Wykeham Court, Wickham,
Hampshire

* Retirement Lmng (Platinum)
= 31 apartments

* Opened January 2016

* 58% reserved off-plan

Bluebell Court, Tettenhall,
Wolverhampton

* Retrement Living

s 22 apartments

* Opsned November 2015

*  73% reservad off-plan

Wardington Court, Northampton
* Assisted Living

¢ 56 gpartments

* Opened May 2016

= §1% reserved off-plan

William Page Court, Staple Hill,
Bristol

= Retrement Ling

* 43 apartments

* Opened June 2018

* 539% reservad off-plan

N B

Graphic removed
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Bewick Grange,
Harrogate, Yorkshire

* QOrtus Homes

* 33 apartments

» Opened October 2015
* 85% reserved off-plan

N ]

Graphic removed

L _

Lawn Court,
Harwood, Bolton

s Rstirement Limng

e 28 apartments

* QOpened June 2016

= 61% reserved off-plan

[ ]

Graphic removed

L i

The Sycamores,
Kinross, Scotiand

* Retirement Living

* 33 apariments

e Opened February 2016
* 58%% reserved off-plan

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk

"

FONYNYIAOD LVHOLHOD 46043 DI1DIALVHLS

SINIWALYLS TVIONVNIS



12 McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

; Our Products

Graphic remoy

Retirement Living

| Independence with
| pecace of mind

I_ _I Retirement Living provides
high-quality owner-cccupied
apartments exclusively for those
aged 60 and above, offering
homeowners independence
Graphic removed with peace of mind.

Apartments typically feature one or two

bedrooms, spacious lounges, fitted

kitchens, hfts to all floors, level access,
|_ _J extra storage, en-suite bathrooms and

Heron Place, Kidington




ed

often private outside space in the form
of balconies, terraces or patios To
cater for the needs of our homeowners,
ovens and plug sockets are raisad

to waist height and bathrooms are
equipped with slip-resistant flaonng
and lever taps for easier operation

Apartments have a camera door entry
system and a 24-hour emergency call
systemn with an emergency pendant
alarm system Developments also
feature a large amount of communal
space, Including a sharad lounge, guest
suites to accommodate wisiting family
and frends, and landscaped grounds

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

New Retirernenit Lvng
devetopments sales
released in FY16

1,511

Units sold In FY16

62%

Of land bank

Heron Place, Kidington

Our stte-based House Managers provide
help and assistance for homeowners
and are responstble for the day-to-

day running of each development

Since January 2015, the Group has
also provided Plahnum Retirement
Living developments in a select
number of locations throughout the
UK Thase can nclude enhanced
internal and extemal specifications,
such as an exclusive ¢iub lounge

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk

McCarthy & Stone ple

13

-

FONYNHIAOD J1vRBOJH0D 1HOd3Y D1DILVHILS

SAINIWILYLS TVIONYNIL



14 McCarthy & Stone ple Anmual Report and Accounts 2016

" owr Products

Graphic remoy

Assisted Living

A retirement apartment you own
with flexible care and support

l_ _1 Assisted Living is designed
exclusively for customers
aged 70 and over, offering
aretirement apartment
with management services,
Graphicremoved domestic assistance, personal
care and additional support,

ftis an attractive afternative for people
|_ —_| seeking support, or the aption of

seekmng further support, but who wish to
Liberty House, Raynes Park retain independent home ownership and



red

are not yet ready to move Into residential
care The Group 15 the only national
housing provider offenng an Assisted
Lwving product wath these charactenstics

Developments are similar to Retirernent
Lving but have a number of addrional
features They have been designed

to ncrease accessibility and ease

of ving for the later years Facilities
typically inciude a fult table-service
restaurant with meals prepared

freshly on-site, a function room and
secure mobility scooter store room

Anrwal Report and Accounts 2016

10

New Assisted Living

developments sales
released in FY16

697

Units sold in FY16

30%

Of land bank

Liberty House, Raynes Park

Qur Estate Management team 1s
on-site 24 hours a day, 365 days
a year, and each development has
a dedicated Estate Manager who
manages the development

Since January 2015, the Group has
also provided Platinum Asgsisted Living
developments in a select number

of desrrable locattons throughout

the UK where premium pricing can

be achieved These offer enhanced
internal and external specifications

www mccarthyandstonegaroup co uk

McCarthy & Stoneple 15
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- Our Products

Graphic remon

Ortus Homes

Downsize for the leisure years

Ortus Homes 1s our newest
product for customers aged 55
and over lcoking to downsize
for their leisure years.

'— —l We launched Ortus Homes in October
2014 to expand our product range and
capture a wider share of the market
by appealing & more active retirees

Graphic removed Orlus Homes i1s designed for pecple
looking to downsize mto hgh-quality,
well-located and low-mamtenance
apartments Developments typically

have fewar, but larger, apariments
L —l than our other core products, with

Shore House, Swanage



red

higher car parking ratos They are
mteligently and atiractively designed
to future-proof later iving

Features are incorporated ciscreetly

te achieve an ageless design and
developments typically feature an
enhanced lobby area and an open-plan
feel Each apartment has a fully fitted
latchen and master bedroom with an
en-suite bathroom and walk-m wardrobe

As homeowners tend to be more
independent, Ortus Homes
developments have a visiting manager
who 1s on call and ragularly on-site

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

This service 8 provided by our
in-house management services
company As age excluswity 1s less
of a focus, thess davelopments
emphasise secunty and lifestyle, as
wall as privacy and personal space

Qur first Qrtus Homes development

at Scarlet Cak in Solihull won the Best
Retirement Scherne at the annual
Housebuilder Awards in Novernber 2015

McCarthy & Stonepic 17

5

New Orius Homes
developments sales
released in FY16

8

Units sold in FY16

%

Of land bank

19\ Continued
product
innovation

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk

-
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Our Products

Graphlc remon

Management Services

-

Ongoing support for
our customers

Graphicremoved

Our in-house management
services team provides
homeowners with peace
of mind that we will look
after them and their
properties over the long
term. Itis a key part of how
we seek to ennch our
customers’ lives.



red

Provicing our own managemsnt
services allows us to establish a

unique relationshup with our customers,
prowiding personal and efficient services
that not only help them, but also
support the pont of sale and aillow us
to deliver industry-leading standards

of customer satisfaction It inks
together ow expertise n housebulding
and property management

McCarthy & Stone Managemant
Services (MSMS) provides management
services In the Group's Retirement Living
and Ortus Homes developments Each
Retrement Living development typically
has a dedicated House Manager on-site
five days a week during working hours
managng the day-to-day running of

Annual Report and Accoums 2016

the davslopment while also helping

to faciitate vanous social activities
Each Ortus Homes development has
a visiting manager who 1$ i charge of
alt aspects of praperty mantenance

Yourlife Management Services
{YLMS} 1s owned 50/50 by MSMS
and Somerset Care Group, a leading
nol-for-profit care provider It provides
management services, domestic
assistance, catenng, parsanal cars
and additiona! support in our Assisted
Living developments Developrnants
are run by an Estate Manager and

a team of staff members on each
development 10 deliver these services,
24 hours a day, 365 days a year

McCarthy & Stone pic

264

Total number of
managed developments

200 Retirement Living
55 Assisted Living
9 Ortus Homes

11,072

Total number of apartments
7,755 Retirement Living
3,130 Assisted Living

187 Ortus Homes

12,000

Over 12,000 homeowners
as at 31 August 2016

Within
Assisted Living
developments:

* ¢12,300 hours of
domastic assistance
provided per month

¢ ¢ 8,400 hours of care
and addittonal support
provided per month

e ¢ 43 200 meals for
normegwners provided
per month

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Business Model

The Group has a proven business model of buying land, securing
detailed planning consent and then building, selling and managing
high-quality developments across the UK that are specifically
designed to meet the lifestyle needs of retirees.

-

Cur customers Design
A distinct and growing Apartments specifically
customer base designed around the Graphic removed

= Target customer age over 60s needs of older customers

in Retrement Living, over 70s In
Assisted Living and over 555 in L
Ortus Homes

s Qlder owner-occuplers who are
keen to downsize nto attractive ‘
and secure housing with shared Land and planning
benefits and companionship

roach t
» Those who wish to mantan A tailored approach 1o

ther ndependence with land and planning Graphic remaved
support on hand if and
when required

+ Addressing undersupply of
homes dedicated to the needs L

of older customers
Buid l—

Repeatable build
processes Graphic removed

Sales and marketing [_

Marketing proposition
and sales approach Graghic removed
tallored to our customers

Management l_—

A specialised
management services Graphic removed
offerng

_
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Higher density than traditional housebuilding
Developrnents buit to Lifstme Homes Standards or above, for lasting quality
Solely apartments with an average of 41 units per developrnent

Lower parking ratios due to lower car ownership, given the average age of our homeowners and the
central location of our properties

Ongoing Innovation with apartment types and designs to address the changing needs and aspirations
of our customers

Sites are well located within towns and cites, and are typically 0 5 to 3 0 acres in size

Less competibion for our sites from tradittonal housebuilders, who tend to be interested in farger, usually
greenfield, locations

Limited on-site affordable housing requirements and mitigated impact of Section 106 and Community
tnfrastructure Levy payments

Experienced, specialist n-house planning team
Optirnisation of devetopment density through reduced on-site parking and amenity space requirements

Majonty of matenals purchased using national framework agreements, leveraging the Group's
natonwide buying power

Standard designs and short butld cycies give the Group good visibility over build costs and allow
favourable terms with suppliers and contractors to be negotated

39 years' expeneance m designing and bulding apartments in a way 10 increase accessibility and ease
of ving for the later years

High-quality product which captures a significant new bulld premium

Homeowners buy their apartment plus access to shared areas, management and support services,
delivering unique lifestyle benefits

Prced to attract older people wishing to downsize and release equity
Expenenced sales and marketng teams who understand how to sell to this customer base

MSMS, a subsidiary company, delivers management services in new Retirement Living and
QOrtus Homes developments

A flexible personal care and support service n Assisted Living developments is provided by
YLMS, which 1s owned 50/50 by MSMS and Somerset Care Group, a large and experienced
not-for-profit care provider

www mccarthyandstanegroup co uk
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Chief Executive'’s Review

Operational review

Qur strategy

Increased
investment

£

Sales growth

N

Continued
product
innovation

|

Operational
efficiency

Focus on
performance

SO

Qur Strategy
See pages 30-31

Graphic removed

Qur resuits

The Group has delivered strong growth
in its first year since rejoining the Man
Market of the London Stock Exchange
Revenues increased by 31% to a
record £635 9m (FY15 £485 7m) dniven
by an increase in lsgal cormplation
volurnes to 2,299 (FY15 1,923) and an
mcrease in net average selling pace
This led to a robust increase in our
underlying pre-tax profits of 19% to
£105 Om (FY15 £88 4m) Under our
expenencad management team, our
legal completions have now increased
by more than 50% since 2013 and

we have made significant progress
towards delvenng ow medium-term
obyective of doubling the size of the
business by buiding and seling

more than 3,000 units per annum

We opened 64 new sales outlets during
the year (FY15 51}, which contnbuted
to a year-on-year increase of 10% in
our net reservations This enabled

us to deliver a 20% increass in legal
completions to 2,299 (FY15 1,923)

Qur net average seling price increased
by 8% to £259% duning the year (FY15
£239K), refleching further improvement
in the quality and location of the
developments we are now brninging to
market, together with a small element
of house pnce inflation We saw
modest house pnce inflation for the
first nine months of the year, together
with continuing discipling around
incentives, which ensured that they
remained at a simiar overai level 1o
last year despite the addrional help we
provided to our custormers i July and
August in order to close out completion
chains following the EU Referendum

In addion to our financial and
operational progress, we also
successfully rejomed the Main Market
of the London Stock Exchange n
November 2015 This took a huge
amount of preparation, energy and
focus from all nvolved and | am very
proud to have led the Group through
this significant milestone With the
approprate capial structure now in
place, we have the opportunity to
focus on our operational performance
and defivery of our planned growth
over the medium and long term

Investment and growth strategy
We continus to pursue our strategy

of creating an efficient and scalable
busingss, capable of bullding and sefling
more than 3,000 uruis per annum over
the medium-term There s sigrificant
demand for our product and we are
confident that we have put in place alt
the nacassary elaments that will enabie
us to achieve our planned growth We
have a respectad brand with nearly

40 years of experlence, a high-qualrty
land bank, a strong balance sheet

with a robust capital structure and the
necessary organisational capabilty and
platform in order 10 grow our busingss
Qur expenenced management team

15 focused on achieving this goal

Market demand

The structural imbalance between supply
and demand within the housing market
continues to provide us with exceptional
rmarket opportunity Cespite the recent
growth in housebuikding activity, there
remains a significant and growing
shortage of housing supply N the UK
This imbalance 1 particularly acute in
the markst for retirement housing, and
McCarthy & Stone stands alone among
the national housebuilders as the only
one that focuses entirely on this market

During almast four decades as the
retirement housing market leader,

the Group has formulated a talored
approach to sales, site acquisition,
dasign, secunng detailled planning
consents and construction that
mainstream hausebuilders have been
unable to replicate We also ensure
that our customers receaiva the highest
standards of ongoing support through
our management services offenng The
bamers to entry in our market ensure
that we mantain a unique position

as the only housebuwlder capable

of meehng the natonwide need for
high-quality specialist hausing for the
growing nurnber of older people who
are looking to move to properties more
suited to thetr needs and Wfestyle

Qutlook and current trading

The Group delivered strong growth this
year notwithstanging soma impact from
the economic and political uncertainty
following the EU Referendum result in
June We expenenced some weakness
n the secondary housing market in July
and August and, whilst we continued
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to take new reservations, these were

at a lower level than we saw in the first
nne months of the financial year and
with a higher level of cancellations This
ted to the Group carrying a forward
order book’ of ¢ £114m into the new
financial year, which was lower than the
previous financial year (FY15 £131m)
However, over the first ten weeks of

the new financial year, reservations
have been stronger and cancellation
rates have returned to more normal
levels Sales leads from new enguines
havea increased and first time wisitors

10 our develppmenis have aiso been
ahead of the pnor year We have seen
a 13% irnprovernent in our weekly net
reservation rate since 1 September
compared 1o the same penod last

year, assisted by three addtional

sales releases {FY16 13, FY15 ten)
Consegquently, the Group's forward
order pook' Including legal completions
since 1 September 1s now ahead of the
prior year and stands at ¢ £250m as

at 12 November 2016 (FY15 £241m}

This provides continued evidence of
improving customer senrment and a
return to normal trading condrtions
We will continue to montor market
conditions and consumer confidence
closely as negotahons between the
UK Government and the EU progress

Annuat Report and Accounis 2018
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Rejoining the Stock Exchange
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We were dehghted to rejoin the Man Market of the London Stock
Exchange following our successful IPO in November 2015 The
pubkc hsting has helped us to put in place a fong-term, sustainable
and stable ownership structure and allowed a nurmber of nvestors,
as well as our employees, to take a stake in cur business and
share in the benefits of our success We were also pleased to

be readmitted to the FTSE 250 following its quarterly review n

March 2016

While there will be some impact on
our growth in 2017, particutarly in
H1, primanty resciting from a lower
forward order book brought nto the
year following the EU Referendum
and a more measured approach

to land negobation, we have seen
evidence of improved customer
sentwment and a return to nomal
trading conditions, With the necessary
operational nfrastructure and qualty
land bank in place. our confidence in
achisving our medium-termn objeciive
of building and selling 3,000 units
per annum remains unchanged

Land bank

In total, ¢ £500m was invested m land
and build durng the penod We added
a further 65 migh-quality sites with
attractve embedded margins into the
land bank (FY15 80), equivalent to

¢ 2,614 addonat plots {Fy15 3,520),
with terms agreed on a further ¢ 1,700
plots (FY15 ¢ 486 plots)

At the year end, our land bank stood

at 10,186 plots, equivalent to 4 4 years'
supply, of which 2 5 years had detaled
planning consant As a result, the Group
now has suificient iand under control

to deliver all targeted sales to FY19

We delivered 60 detaled planning
consants (FY15 56) and started build
on 42 addironal sites (FY15 70} We
now have sufficient detaled planning
consants in place 1o delver all targeted
sales to FY18 and continue to make
progress towards the target of £2 Sbin
investment in land and buld over

the four finaneal years to FY19

The market for land remains rermarkably
bergn and compettion for our

typical brownfield stes remams tighly
fragmented As a result of this, we were
abte toincrease our rmimmumm hurdie
rates for land purchases dunng the
year n order to mantam operatonal
focus and disciphne and maximise

our potenbal returng Al of our land
Invastment, regardless of product

or Yocahon, 1s assessed agamst the
same hurdle rates and 1s required to

be approved by our Group Investiment
Commuttee, ensunng a disciplined
approach o investment in hight of the

Forward grder back tncludgs lega compls lons
between ) September 2018 and 12 Novembier 2018
and raservasiong as at §2 Novermnber 2018, Forward
osier bagk ag at 31 August 2016 inoudad revenug
aftgr cash discounts PX top-ups and other
ncentwves Forward order bock as at 12 Novembar
2018 included reverua after cash discounts and

FX top ups Other tncentves amounted o £5im
{FY15 £3m)

www mecarthyandstonagroup co uk
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recent economic upcertamty, we have
been more measured in our approach
to land invastment but we continus

to acquire sites n good locations

at attractive margins to ensure that
we can support future growth

Operational mfrastructure

and capabilty

To support this increased investment
and the roif-out of our fand bank, we
now have a total of nine regional offices,
three of which opened at the start

of the financial year and one duning

the previous financial ysar Our North
London region, which was the first

of our new regions 1o be estabished

in FY15, took accupations at eight
developments this year and had an
extremely successful year for sales
This region is now seling from ten sies
and has a further 31 sttes at vanous
stages of its development pipsline

In additon, our newer regional offices
estabhshed on 1 September 2015, in the
South West, East Midlands and North
Woest, are now fully operational They
have high-calibre senior management
teams n place, combining McCarthy
& Stone experience with volume
mainstream housebuilder operational
expertise The establishment of

these new regional offices has been
accelerated by the roll-out of standard
processes and systems and the
transfar of workflow from axisting
regional offices Dunng the year, these
thres regional offices acquired 21 new
daveloprnent sites (881 plots), with
terms agreed on a further nune sites
{372 plots) The establishment of these
new regional offices completes the
platform required to deliver our planned
operational growth to bulld and sell
more than 3,000 units per annum

Strategre intiatives

Qur continued focus on achieving
aperational excellence by accelerating
our working capital cycle has allowed
us to deliver further impravement in
our capital turn which now stands at

1 2x for the year ended 31 August
2016 (FY15 10x) In achieving this, we
have put significant management effart

-

into our three key strategic intiatives
improving sales rates, reducing ime
taken between secunng land and
starting build and implementing
buld programme efficiencies

Sales Inttiative

The sales inruative, launchad n FY15,
sets out consistently to dellver off-plan
reservations of 50% or more, by the date
of first occupaton and then to sefi out aff
remaning apartments within an average
12-month penod

In order to support the sales force

and enable them to achieve these
targets, new sales toolkils have been
implemented within all regions We have
also daveloped a clearer definion of
our best customer prospects to assist
the focus of local marketing, ntroduced
a partnership with a third-party contact
centre and launched a new aniing
visitor booking system {o provide a
more consistent customer experience

Wa have successiully delivered our
strategic target for off-plan reservations
this year, with 50% reserved off-plan
from the 69 sites that first occupied

in FY16 A number of sites achieved
significantly more than this, for example
Bourne End and Sidcup which bath sold
100% off-plan A further rune sites sold
mare than 80% of apariments off-plan
It 1s particularly pleasing that we have
bean able to achieve these accelerated
salas rates while improving pncing

L

_I Broadfield Cour!, Prestwich

Graphi removed
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In addition to this, we have also made
good progress towards our target of
seling out alf developments within

a 12-month penod and achieved a
significant reduction in the average
number of months taken to sell out
our developments this yegar This
average now stands at 18 months

for all sies soid out dunng FY16

Development initiative

Cur development inibiative, also launched
n FY15, aims to reduce the tme taken
between secunng land and build start
This has invalved the implementatian

of a number of process Improvements
with particutar focus on the planning
process and increased standardisation
This is enabling the business to bring
forward profitable developments,

Annwal Report and Accounts 2016

]

accelerate its growth plans and improve
its capital tum Ths initative has now
been fully rolled out across ali regions
and 1s beginning to produce results

Qur target for reducing the time taken
between secunng iand and starting buid
15 16 months for standard sites achteving
a first-time detaled planning consent

tn FY15, we took an average of ¢ 23
months (o complete this process and we
have been working hard to improve this
Durng FY186, we improved this overall
average to ¢ 19 months? and, for the 15
out of our 42 build starts whch were
developed fully under this iniative from
the outset,  arn pleased o raport that
our average development time across
these siles has beaten our strategic
target of 16 months [n addition 1o this

McCarthy & Stone plc 25

achievemeant, we have mplemented

a new information management

systemn that allows us to achieve
greater consistency across product
specificatons and standards This
enables cur teams and partners to work
more effectively together throughout the
development’s life cycle and provides
techrical assurance and compliance
We are also extending the use of 3D
modeting o strearmine the developrnent
process further and mprove the
accuracy of bulid cost estimates

Build mitiative

The build initative, launched in FY15,
has driven improvements to the builld
process 1o accelerate bulld timescales,
reduce build costs, enhance margins
and mitigate the /mpact of buld cost
wmflaton This includes the rofl-out of

a new framework of criical controls
designed to ensure that we maintan

a robust, nsk-based approach to
rmanaging build programmes and
obudgets The rtiative 1s also targeting
margin improvements through
mproved procurement, a more
structured approach to supplier
pannership and value engineenng

of individual developments

This inlhiative has delivered a ¢ 3-week
time saving from build start to first
occupation and has wdentified savings
to the value of £3 3m in relation to
matenals used, including more than
double the amount of rebates coliected
in the prior year An additional ¢ £12m
of cost reductions have also been
identified which are expectad to benefit
the Group over the next four years

2 Exclygmng sites put on hold for erther commercial
or complex planning wasons (FY15 soven sies
FY16 six sites)

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Qur product ranges

Our two pnmary product ranges,
Retrement Living and Assisted Living,
are well estabhshed and continue

to be our core focus We are also
progressing well with our third product,
QOrtus Homes, which we launched

in late 2014 This newer product 1
exclusively for the over 55s and those
in the earier stages of retrement

who are seeking to downsize for their
leisure years We now have a total of
36 Ortus Homes developments in the
pipeline, representing approximatety
8% of our land bank sites This product
is expected to generate completions
over the medium-term at comparable
margins to those generated from our
established Retrernent Living and
Assisted Lvng product ranges

This new range presents an exciting
opportunity for the future, helping us

to capture a2 wider share of the active
retires market for whom the tradriional
concept of retiremant housmg has not
been appropnate Qur first Ortus Homes
development, at Scarlet Qak in Sofihull,
reserved out within a year of opening
and also won the Best Retrement
Scheme at the annual Housebulder
Awards in November 2015 In addrion,
we were pleased that Ramsay Grange
and Lyle Court, our combined Assisted
Lwing and Ortus Homes development
in Bamton, Edinburgh, was also

voted Best Retremernd Scherne at the
sarme awards in November 2016

Qur management services business
continued its rapd growth, adding

68 new developmaents to its portfolio,
which now includes 264 managed
developments Providing our own
managament services allows us to
eslablish a umique relationship with
our customers, providing personal and
efficient services that not only help
them, but also support the point of sale,
and allow us to delwver industry-leading
standards of customer satisfaction

Qur customers

f am pleased to report that we have, once
agamn, achseved the full Five Star rating in
the HBF customer satisfacton survey this
year This marks the 11th consecutive
year 1 which more than 90% of our
custormers have said that they would be
prepared to recommend us to a fnend
We are the only housebuilder of any size
ar type to win this award every year since
1t was introduced in 2005 and we arg one
of only three major housebuilders to have
retaned the top rating this year This
sustained recognition by our customers
of the quality of proguct we deliver is a
strong endorsement of our contnued
desire to design, buid, sell and manage
the very best ratirement developments

In this regard, we were pleased to win a
further award at the annual Houssbuilder
Awards in November 2016, where we
picked up Best Customer Satisfaction
Imbative for our approach to ensunng that
we deliver a five-star service for our
homeowners

Our employees

The growth delvered this year wouid

not have been possible without the
dedication, enthusiasm and expertise of
our peopls We are building & culture of
excellence that providas opportunities

for davelopment and recogrises
actvevements by reguiarly celebrating
those employees who go the extra mile
for a customer ar colleague through

our mstant, quarterly and annual PRIDE
awards, 1 am also delighted to report that,
In our most recent employee survey, 89%
of our employess confirmead that they arg
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone

Dunng FY16, ten of the Group's site
managers were awardad NHBC Pride

In the Job Awards These awards are
amongst the industry's most preshgious
awards and are an excellent reflection
of the qualiy of our construction staff

Qur recent Admission to the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange
has provided an opportunity to enable
our employees to share in our mediym-
term success through the introduction
of employee share plans We have
introduced a long-term incentive plan
for Executive Directors and 61 semor
managers and an ali-employee save

as you earn (SAYE)} scheme and share
incentive plan (SIP) We were delighted
by the mrial 64% of payroll employees
who took up the SAYE scheme launched
in December 2015, providing a powerful
confirmation of the commitment and
dedication of our staff to the future
success of McCarthy & Stone

Health and safety

{ am pleased to report that we have
continued to make good progress with
developing a cufture of excelience in
health ang safety across the Group
QCur vision 1s not |ust fo achieve health
and safety comphance but to lead our
sectar with a robust and consistent
safety culture across our organisation
Qur internal momitonng regims is
supported by a ngorous, independent
site inspection programme including
reqular reporting updates to the Board

During FY16, we recewved five NHBC
heatth and safety commendations,
with one site gong on to receve

a highly commended award

Strategic delivery

Wae have started the new financial

year with a tugh-quality land bank,

a strengthening forward order book,

a strong net cash position and an
expenenced management team i place
We also have the necessary regional
infrastructure and strength of brand that
ensures that we are uniquely placed to
capitahse on the significant demographic
cpportunity avalable to us We remain
on track to deliver our medium-term
strategic objective of bulding and selling
more than 3,000 untts per annum

Chve Fenton
Group Chief Executive Officer
14 November 2016
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Investment Case

An experienced housebuilder with

clear differentication

We are in an unparalleled position to provide

investors with access to a rapidly

growing demagraphic and a company with unique competitive strengths.

We are the UK's leading retirement housebuilder

e argest developer of pnvately-owned retirement
property n the UK with a ¢ 70% market sharg'

* Only retirement housebuilder with coverage in all
UK mainland ragions

« Expenenced management team with deep sector
and financial expertise

» Awarded Five Star customer satisfaction rating
for a record 11 consecutive years

We operate in an exceptional growth market with
positive demographics
s Customer base Is the fastast growing demographic
n the UK
* Almost one in four of those aged 65 or over are keen
to move to purpose-butt rebirement properhes?

= Structural undersuppiy of retirement housing, set within
the context of considerable undersupply of general
housing in the UK

» Almost three-quarters of all housshold growth to 2039
will come from over 6582

@ See 'Qur Marks! pages 28-29

We have a distinct business model

* Focus entirely on retirement housing, a high-margin
business with distinct low-nsk characteristics

+ Differentated business processes with competitve
advantages in an ndustry marked by barmers to entry

* Talored business model that targets different sites from

mainstream housebuilders

= Owver 39 years, the Group has sold over 51,000 apartments

@ Sea ‘Buslness Modal pages 20-21

We have a strong financial position and
hrgh-quaiity land bank

* Strong financial track record with robust balance sheet

* All planning consents in place to deliver targeted sales
to FY18

* Enough land under control to be a 3,000 unit per
annum business

* Robust margins and identified operational efficiencies
to deliver mproved return on capital employed (ROCE)
over the mecium-term

@ Ses Opersting Revisw' pages 34-37

1 Based on 3 453 registrations of cross tanura proparties spacifically dasgned lor tha elderdy with the NHBC duang calendar year 2015 of which 2 672 were ragisterad

by McCarthy & Stone

2 YouGov Rasaarch for McCarthy & Stone n June 2015 published in Ratwrement Gonfidance Index (2016).

3 Trhe Department for Commurstias and Local Govarnment {OCLG) praiecons [ty 2016}

Our market positioning

Ortus Retirement  Assisted Residential
Generalist 1tal 17a] "
housebuilders Homes lemg LlVlng (:ar;a1 llj-nrosi:gs:
Downsize for the Independence with A retirsment @
‘E:g;a'?;e;'gcmﬂ' leisure years peace of mind apartment you Fundamentally
appetite own with flexible care business model

©,

and support
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Retrement willage
market

Not prevalent in the UK

Qther retrement
housebutlders

Lack scale natlonal coverage
and more limited access
to financing

Rental market

UK predeminantly an
owner-occupied market

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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A pressing need
for more retirement

housing

The rate of demographic change presents an
unprecedented opportunity to increase the
supply of retirement housing in the UK.

Chart removed

Chart removed
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Residents at Hilborough House,
Bexhili-on-Sea

_7

ONS - poputation projactions (20143

DCLG projactions (July 20M6).

The DCLG, English Housing Survey 201415
YouGov Rasearch for McCarthy & Stone n
Jung 2016, pubkished n Retwemeni Confidence
ndax (2018)

P X U

The UK’s populalion 1s ageing rapidly
Those aged 85 or over are expected to
double between 2015 and 2035, and
those aged ©5 or over are expected to
increase by almost 509% * Households
headed by someone aged 65 or over
in England are projected to increase
by 155,000 per year, and will account
for almost three-quarters (74%) of

total household growth to 2039 2

Hates of home ownership are also
highest among older psople More
than three-quarters of households
(76%) where the oldest personis
aged 55 or over own therr own home
either with & mortgage or outnght
This is compared to around half
{53%]) of younger households ?

The growth 1 the number of older
people, and their high rate of home
ownership, means there 1s a pressing
nesd for more owner-occupled
retrement housing More than one

in thrée people agad 85 and over
(36%) are likely to move in the future
if something swiable 1s avalable,

and almost a quarter (24%) are keen
to move to purpose-built retiremant
propertigs, equivalent to ¢ 3m people *

Despite ncreasing demand for more
suitable housing, few older people
currently move The UK has one of the
lowest moving rates among its older
population compared to other developad
countnes, and this suggests strong
pent-up demand

5 Indgpendant data prowded by Elderty
Accommodation Counsel (Apri 2016)

B8 Saviis Houelng An ageing population (2015}

7 Krught Frank, Rellrernen Housing (2016) -
Mihon naw homas

B8 The DCLG Ive table 209 ~ parmanant ¢wolkngs.
compieted by isnure and country (2016)

9 B8C News (2016)

One of the main reasons for the low rate
of moving among older people is the
lack of sutable alternatives, reflecting a
long-term structural undersupply of
retirement housing Only ¢ 141,000

unifs of retrernent housing for
homeowners have aver been built *

This indicates potential for strong
growth in this market Sawils suggests
that a build target of 18,000 retirement
units each year would be appropnate
n future®, while Knight Frank
suggests 30,000 units per annum?

This Is set within the wider context

of a general undersupply of aff types

of housing The UK bult 152,520

new homes in 2014/158, short of the
200,000-300,000° homes needed each
year 10 meet demand [n addition, the UK
has delivered over 200,000 new homes
n just faur out of tha last 14 years ™
Increasing supply of retirement housing
could make a sizeable contnbution

to reachung this national objective

Growing Government support

The importance of this part of the market
15 now recogmsed as being fundamental
to UK housing policy Housing for older
people has become the only ‘cntical’
housing need in the Government's 2015
National Planning Practice Guidance

For the first tme, 1t states that local
authortties need to consider the size,
jocation and quality of dwellings needed
for older paople n order to allow them to
move o more sutable accommodation,
and that supporting independent iving
can help to reduce the cosis to health
and social sarvices, as well as free up
houses that are under-occupied

Similar policies also now exist in
Scotland and London, with the Greater
London Authanty’s London Plan,
adopted in March 2015, stating that
older Londoners require 3,600 o 4,200
new specialist relrernent units per
annurm over the penod 2015 to 2025 %

As aresult, the planning system I
becorung increasingly tavourable for
retirement housing, and this should have
a positve impact on future provision
given the increasing demand for this
form of accommaodation

30 CBIHousing fer Britan (2014)

11 Natonal Plannng Prectich Guidance for England
(2015).

12 Estmatad using average vaues of homas and
average aduit household size from Understandng
Sociely Wave 5 {2013/14) - exciuding top 1% and
boitom 1% Apglied to ONS population estmates

i3 The London Aan 2016
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e 70%

Share of ownar-
occupled market

Barriers to entry for new starters

Despite growing demand, thera ara significant bamers to
entry to the sector None of the pnncipal publicly-listed
housebullders currently operate within the speciahst
retirement sector, and none of the smaller retirement
operators have natonal coverage

The lack of competition 15 a result of the challenges of
operating sustainably n this sector These challenges
include understanding the needs of a unique customer
base as well as difficulttes with funding, design. achieving
scale (with the efficiencles and brand recogniton this
entails), and acquinng suitable land and detatled planning
consent. This market 1s a unique sactor and the failure of
any other mainstream national houssbuilder to penetrate
it successfully dlustrates the high leve! of intellectual capital
required to deliver a sustainable propostion

As a result, we retain our ¢ 709" share of the UK owner-
occupied retrament market

141,000

Uruts of retirement
housing for homeowners
have ever been built

£1.34™

Approximate housing
wealth of those aged 65
or over in the UK

1in3
People aged 85 or over (36%)
would consider moving

in the future f something
sutable is avalable

14 Based on 3,451 registranons of cross-tenune
praperiss specilcally des gned {or tha elderly
—l with the NHEC dunng catendar year 2015 of
which 2 672 were registered by McCarthy & Stona

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Our Strategy

Our strategy 15 to create an
efficient and scalable business
capable of building and selling
more than 3,000 units per
annum over the medium-term.

operational efficiencies This enables us
to target top-quartle sector margns and
returns on caputal over the medium term

In suppaort of this strategy we are
increasing investment n our pipelme
of high-quality land, developing our
product to meet the changing needs
of our custorners, bullding an
operational platform and dnving

Strategic prionty Madium-term targets Measure/KPI FY15 FY16
& InC reased Cash wvestment in land and buid [Sbn) £0 4bn 20 5bn
investment
10087 10,186
£2 5bn nvestment in land and build £2 Sbn swestment Land bani {uruts) units units
over four years to FY19 to support tand and butd by FY19
growth and capture a larger share of
the retiree market
Sités acquired S0 stes 65 stes
1923 2,209
/'I Sales Legal complstions {urds) Uit e
M | Sell more than 3,000 unrts
—_— g I'OWth per annum by FY19 at a
Sell more than 3,000 units nat ASP of ¢ £300k Nst avarage salling pnce (ASP) £230k £259k
per annum
Revenue [Em) £4857m | £68359m
rQ\ Continued
U p ro dU Ct Retain Five Star HBF Customer satisfaction rating 5 slar § star
customer satisfachon
innovation rating
Meet our cusiomers’ Grow Ortus Homes to
changing needs and expand ¢ 10% of annual lagal
our customer base completions Ortus Homes legal completions 9% %
[% of total complatrons)
Q Operational
& efficiency
Create an even more efficient
and scalable business to
support planned mvestment
and targeted growth Improve capital turm in
order to maximess ROCE Capital tumn {x) 10 12x
(259 ROCE target}
Undertying operating peofit (£m) £95 3m £107 2m
FOCUS on improve underhy
pe rform ance Opglailng profit nl:g‘gm' Underlying operating profit mangin (35} 20% 17%
targeting top-quartile
Target top-quartile sector sactor marging
marging and returns on capnal ROCE {28 20% 20%
Target improved
ROCE (25% target}
Net debtAcash) (Em) £44 4m {£52 8m)
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Progress in FY16

Cash spend on targst to achieve strategic obective

Land bank now represents 4 4 years' supply

Suificisnt land with detailed planning to deliver all targeted sales to FY18 and sufficient fand
under control to deliver ali targeted sales to FY18

Fawer sitas acquired thus year due ta mare measured approach to land acquisition w ight of
marke! uncertainty in Q4

Terms agreed on a further 42 sites (¢ 1.700 plots) (FY15 11 sites, 486 plots) ensunng a
heslthy land pipeline
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Pnorihes for FY17

Continus o target high-quatty land in

the best possible locations i accardance
with our stnct site purchase ¢nleria,
malntaning contract condisanality

where possible

Land acquisition volumas to be targetad In
support of our growth strategy to build
ant sell more than 3,000 units per annum
over the medium-term

Target land and build spend of ¢ £0 Sbn

20% increase in tegal complations this year m line with stratagic objective

Thrae new regional offices with quality management teams now in place providing a
ptatforrm for our growth plans

8% increase n net ASP in na with strategic abjectiva reflecting the quality and locaton of
new developments and sustamed incentivas conirol

Industry-leading growth of 31% resulbng in a record lavel of revenue achieved this year

Continue to develop capacity and
capability of our regional ieams to
enable growth

Continue to grow completion volumes
and optemise prcing

Five Star HBF customer satisfaction rating retaned for 11th cansecutive yaar

Successfully increased capacity and capability of ow management services business to
ensure that we can mest the needs of customers at all new developments Volums of
developments managed increased from 196 to 264

Ortus Homes now represents ¢ 8% of land bank
Five new Ortus Homes developrnents released for sale in FY16 (FY15 thres)

Retain Five Star HBF customer
satisfaction rating

Continue to increase capacity and
capability of management serices
business in order to keep pace with growth
in new davelopments

Grow Ortus Homes to ¢ 10% of land bank

Continued inngvation in gur ¢ore products
and plabinum range ensunng that we ara
meeting the needs of cur customers

Sales imtiative
50% off-plan sales achisved with two davelopmeants reserving 100% off-plan and a further
ring at over 80%

Good progress towards our tangst to sell out our developments within an average of 12 months
of first occupauan, with an average 18 months to sell out for all sites sold out dunng FY16

Continus to improve off-plan sales rates
and target further reductions in bme to
sell out

Development intiative
Reduction in average time from land exchange t¢ build start from ¢ 23 months in FY15 to
¢ 19 months in FY18 (standard sites only)

All sites fuilty developed within this new mnitiative have been withm our 16-raenth target

Continue to target further reductions n
average tme from fand exchange to
buld start

Butld initiative
¢ 3-week tme saving achieved from build start to first occupation

Build savings of ¢ £12m identified which will benefit the Group over the four years to FY19
Collectron of rebates has more than doubled since prior year

Focus on tighter management of

build cycle by embedding consistent
workung practices

Continus to adopt modern methods
of constructian in order to reduce Huild
tmas further

12% increase achiaved dnvan by increased completion volumes

3ppt decrease due to additional investmeant i new regions and additional iIncentives offered
to customers ¢ close out completion chains in Q4

Sustainsc capital discipiine gnabled 20% ROCE 1o be maintaned despite margin challenges
expengneed during the year

Significant improvermnent in gash position dus 1o more measured approach to land and build
Investrent in Q4 and IPO proceeds

Continug to targst high-quality
land with attractive margins
Maintam strong balance sheet and
focus on cash management

Conbinue 1o pursus build cost 5avings
via the burld iniiative

JONYNHIAQCD FLVHOLHOD LHOdIH HNDALYHLS
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Key Performance Indicators

Revenue

Revenue from sales of new apartments
18 the primary dnver of our profitability
The fundamentals of the retrement
housing market, our distinct business
model and its strong pipetine of gualty
land provides the platform for sustaned
revanue growth over the medium-term

Profit

Management's focus on delivenng
top-ine growth with Improved
operational efficiency will deliver future
margin Improvement

Workflow

Medwm-term growth 1s dependent on
our ability 1o develep our existing land
bank profitably and to sell current stock
to generate cash for remnvestmant

Retums

We have delivered increasing returns
on capital due to a combination of
revenue growth and improving capital
discipline It remains our focus to
continue to tmprove retums on capital
as the current land bark 15 developed

Lega! completions {units)

18 2,209
15 1,923

14 1677

Net average selling pnce (€k)

18 259
16 239

14 214

Gross profit {£m)

18 1364
15 1231

14 1040

Gross profit margin (%)

16 4}

15 25

14 27

Land bank {units)

18 10,186
15 10,087
14 8,701

ROCE (%}
16 20
15 20
14 17

Capital tumn (x)?

18 12
15 10

14 08

Discounts and incentives (%)

16 6

15 [

14 7

Revenue (Em)

16 6359
15 4857

14 878

Undertying operating profit {(£m)’

16 107.2
15 95.3

14 751

Undertying operating profit margin (%)}
16 17

15 20
14 19

Sites acquired

16 85

15 a0
14 74

Tangible gross asset value (Emy

16 sS4
15 5135
14 451.2

Tangible net asset value {Em)

16 6288
15 4691
14 402.3

1 Underlyng operatng prafit has been raconcl'ed wilhin note 6 to the consclidated fnancial statemants

2 Plpase ses glossary on page 122 for definiion



Forward sales (Emp

18 1140

15 1310
14 960

Profit before tax (Em)

16 928
15 809

14 571

Undenying profit before tax (Em)'

16 1050
15 884

14 632

Firushed stock (units)

16 1,512
15 1,169

14 1,370

Gearing {%)?

16 8

15 8

L] 10

Net (cash)/debt (Em)

16 -528

15 444
14 489
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Growth In legal completions and
impraved pricing have both contnbuted
towards a substantial reveriue increase
in FY16 We continued to capitalise on
favourabla market opportunity which has
supported growth in legal completions
An increase in net ASP refiected further
Impravement in the quality and location
of our developments together with
modest house pnce inflation

Volume growth combined with
improved pneing ied to a further
Increase in profits However, margins
have been impacted by the profitability
mix of units sold, the increased usage
of mcentives in July and August and
investmeant in new regional
nfrastructure

New, high-qualty sitas were added ta the
tand bank, which stood at 10,186 ynits as
at the year end This 1s equivalent to 4 4
years of supply and is sufficient to deliver
all targeted sales to FY19

Strong cash generation, together with
IPO proceeds and a more measured
approach 1o land and build mvestment,
improved the net cash position at the
year end This also halped to maintamn
ROCE ievels despite margin chalienges
The benefits of key strategic initiatives
cantinued to contrbute towards a notable
mmprovernent In capial turn

McCarthy & Stoneplc 33

Continued discipline around discounts
and incentives helped to mamtain them
at levels similar o prior year, despite
having to offer higher discounts and
incentives as the secondary housing
market started to weaken following the
EU Referendum At the year end the
Group was carrying a lower forward
order book iImpacted by customer
sentiment following the EU Referendum

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Operating Review - Strategic Initiatives

Sales

ll growth
Operational
efficiency

John leads our businass
improvement programme to enable
business growth, enhance customer
expenence and improve operating
parformance John jained McCarthy
& Stone i February 2014 and was
previously Chief Executive Officer of
Human Recognition Systems
Lirmited Pnor 1o that he worked for
ten years for the Unite Group,
becoming Group Chief Operating
Officer in 2008

[ ]

Graphic removed
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John Tenkiss
Nationat Operations Director

N ]

Chartremaved
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In FY15 we launched three strategic initiatives with the
goal of accelerating the Group’s typical working capital
cycle. These initiatives focus on improving sales rates,
reducing time taken between securing land and starting
build and implementing build programme efficiencies.

Improving sales rates

The sales inttiative was introduced
to achieve 50% or more off-plan
reservations and then reserve

out remaining apartments within
12 months of first cccupation

In order to support the sales force
and enable them to actveve thase
targets, we have overhauled our sales
induction and training programmes
and introduced new salas toclkits in all
regons These toclkits are designed
to mantain high levels of presentation
and saleability tailored to the specific
features and henefits of each site We
hava also focused our local marketing
and lead generation on a more
precisely defined set of best prospect
customers In additon, we have
developed a partnership with a third-
party contact centre and introduced
a new anfine visitor booking systam
to provide 8 more consistent salas
process and customer expernence

To improve web raffic and customer
axpenence, we have also developed
our web platform, a key element
being the mobie-enabled website

Wa have successfully delivered our
strategic target for off-plan reservations
this year, with an average of 50%
reserved off-plan from the 69 sites

that first occupied n FY16 A number
of sites achieved significantly more
than this, for example Blyton House,
Bourne End and Kingswood Court,
Sidcup which both sold 100% off-plan
A further nine sites have reserved more
than 80% of ther apartiments off-plan

1 Exclucing sites put on hold lor either commercial
or complex planning reasons (FY15 seven sites
FY16 six s las)

As a result of our focus on post first
occupation sales dunng the year, we have
managed to delver a significant reduchon
in {he average number of months taken
to sell out our developments, which
stood at 18 months for all sites

sold out during FY16

The FY17 plans aim to improve customer
relationship management and increase
conversion rates from callers to the
contact centre In addrion, we are
adopting mystery shopper programmes
to drrve high sales performance
throughout cur business, alongside
improvements to our sales progresstan
process Our Group-wide marketng
team have developed a new creative
that offers a stronger brand 1mage

and clearer Ifestyle benefits while also
further developing our web content

Accelerating our development cycle
The development initrative (Project
Fusion} ams to reducs the hme taken
between securing land and starting
buld A number of changes designed
to accelerate this cycle have been
implemented, with particular focus
on the planning process, increased
standardisation, and cross-functional
project teams from the outset Qur
target for reducing the time taken
between secunng land and starting
build 15 16 months for standard sites
achieving a first-time detalled planning
consent In FY15, wa tock an average
of ¢ 23 months to complete this
process and we have been working
hard to improve this Dunng FY18, we
nproved this gverall average to ¢ 19
months' {or the 15 out of our 42 build
starts which were developed fully
under this niiaiive from the outset
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The foundation of these cycle-time reductions has been the establishment of a streamiined and simpiified six-stage Fusion
development process from Land Evaluaton through to Construction

STAGE 0

Land Evalyation

IR

Land Cffor Scolors
Acvapled trstnecied

n support of the Fusion process,
the team have also deliverad a new
information management system
This online repository holds our
Group-wide product standards and
specifications, alongside our key
suppher and framework agreements
and has been nstrumental in drving
increased product standardisaion
throughout the business

Product
Management

Build programme efficiencies
This inhiative builds on the Fusion
process in order 10 reduce our

build cycle imes and deliver margin
improvernents The key elements
include improved procurerment, a more
structured approach to subcontractor
partnerships, value engineenng

of ndivtdual developments and a
rmore consistent set of construction
management practices

Dunng FY16 this programma rolled
out a new framework of critical
controls 1n support of robust build
prograrmumes and budgets, plus the
adoption of a nsk-based approach
to manage the build programmes

STAGE 2

STAGE 1
Briet Design Concept Design

$ $3

Exchange Panrng Desgn
Comrects Soulon Fraaze

The information management
system helps 10 ensure a consistent
and standardised high-qualty
product The process enables our
teams and partners to work more
effectively together throughout

a development’s Ife cycle

Specification Buiiding
— and Standards — Information
Toolkit Model

> STAGE 3 > STAGE 4 ) STAGE 5
Coerdl d Dasign Tech f Design Site and Build Start

$ $44 & 3

Recout’on
to Gram

STAGE 6

Construction

Planning Ste EBud Maketng Fral
Aproval St Swa SumCpan  Qeswdaon

Hawving established the system,
we are now developing ncreased
functonality including integrated
3D bullding models, build cost
estmating teols, and property
management asset registers

Cost

—_
Tool

Operate <+ Construct « Sell

The commercial structure has been
revised to reduce the admirustration
burden on surveyors and allow greater
focus on cost management We have
also driven greater cost ownership
and compliance across our regions
through streamiined cost coding,
improved reporting and benchmarking

This initiative has dentified savings

to the valua of £3 3m in relation to
matenals used, including more than
doubde the amount of rebates callected
In the prior year An additional ¢ £12m
of cost reductions have also been
wdentiied, which are expected to benefit
the Group over the penod to FY19

1.2x

Capital tum
FY15 10x)

FY16 also saw an improved average
buld tme, with the 68 first occupations
delvered on average ¢ 3 weeks

faster {from build start) than dunng
FY15 Into FY17 the continuous
mprovement plan will focus on

making further mprovements and
greater standardisaton K will do this
through bghter management of the
build programme wath more granular
miiestones and by embedding a
framework of consistent working
practices and management tools

for all site teams. The business Is
increasingly adopting modern methods
af gonstructan (MMG) (in ¢ 25% of
sites under construction dunng FY17)

www meearthyandstonegroup co uk
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Operating Review - Land and Planning

Increased
investment

Graphtc removed

L

Gary Day
Land and Planning Director

Chartremoved

Gary is a Chartered Town Planner and member of
the Chartered Institute of Housing. He has more
than 40 years’ experience in the industry.

Gary joined the Group in 1988 having worked 1n local government for

13 years as a Town Planner He was a member of the Homes and
Comrmumihes Agency's former Vulnerable and Older People's Advisory
Group and 1s currently a member of the Welsh Government's Expart
Group on Housing an Ageing Populaticn Over the years he has sat on
numerous cther govermmental and staksholder groups concerned with the
housing implications cf the UK's againg population

Gary was apponted Land and Planning Director in 2002 and chairs the
Group Investment Committee, which approves all of the Group's land
acquisiions, and the Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Commutiee
He has executive responsibiity for land conveyancing, planning, poltical
and public affarrs, and the Group's management services business

Consented land 15 the Ifeblood of cur
business, forming ons of the five key
operational functions of our business
We have a well-established and tallored
approach to {and and planning, with
clear critena for site acquisitions,
design and planning, including the
review and approva! process Thare
are three elements that differentate
our land model our strict site purchase
critena, the condihionality of our
purchase agreements, and the imited
degree of competiion that we face on
the types of sites that we pursue

We have seen significant growth

n recent years, the land bank has
ncreased by 17% over the last two
financial years Sites exchanged in
FY16 are spread from locations near
Aberdeen, Scotland to a srie near
Bnghton, East Sussex Our national
reach and profile, logether with our
strong track record and reputation in
delivenng on our promises, leads to
favourable responses from landowners
and agents These relationships

are fostered and maintaned by our
expenenced regional land buying teams

At the year end, our land bank

stood at 10,186 plots, equivalent to

4 4 years’ supply, and as a result

we now have sufficient land under
control to deliver all targeted sales to
FY19 During the year, we secured
legal intarests n 65 new high-quality
development sites (FY15 90), equivalent
to ¢ 2,614 additonal units (FY15

¢ 3,522) We also obtained 60 detalled
planning consents, providing 2,449
developable units (FY15 56/ 2,122}

How we buy land

Stte purchase critena

QOur differentiated land model provides
a clear land acquisttion entena and

a strict approval process The stnct
controls and processas ensure that
there 1s visibility, by senior management,
throughout the procass, enabling
considered and reactive decisions

Qur focus 1s on smaller, centrally
located brownfield sites in urban

areas This means that we face

less competdion for our sites than
rnainstream housebullders, who are
typically interested in langer, usually
greenfield sites We have smaller slze
requrements due to the higher density
of the Group's developments compared
to manstrearm housebuilders, which
gives us a competitive advantage in land
acgusitions and permits the acquisition
of srtes that are close to ameniies

and with good pubhic transport links,
enhancing the attractiveness of our
developments to target customers We
expenence other benefils from building
on brownfield sites - such as greater
Government support for previously-
developed land, reduced affordable
housing and Gommunity Infrastructure
Levy {CIL} contnbutions, and no
exposure to large infrastructure costs
We also benefit from an increasing
planning policy presumphon in favour
of the type of specialist housing that

we deliver, reflectng the Government’s
recognition that the housing needs of the
ageing populaton has become ‘cntical’

The requirements around proximuty
to shops, faciities and transport
Iinks vary depending on the type of



development but the existence of an
existing established community 1s a
consideration for ail sites We aim to
make sure that our sites are in prominent
locations, with a ‘feel good' factor that
wiil ennch the lives of our homeowners

Condrtionahty

it 1s our polcy to try and secure land
under the most favourable terms -

not only with regard to pnce but also
with respect to presening optionality
Sites are normally secured by means
of cption agreements or via highly
conditional contracts, with the prncipal
condrtion being obtaning a satisfactory
planning consent without onerous
condrtions Where possible we seek

to preserve additional flexibility 1n our
caonditional contracts by including a
nght to terminate the contract if there is
a nsk that the development will not be
economically or commercially viable
Such nghts are normally exercisable

at any time before completion and
notwithstanding that other conditions
may have been satsfied

Land approval

The Group has strict critena which

all sites must meet, including size

and proximity to local amenities and
transport inks Land buyers visit all
potential sites and perform an inioal
high level sutability appraisal using
the set land acquisition cntena if the
appraisal indicates that the site should
progress, the Regional Land Director
will evaluate all aspects of the potential
site and if this proves posrive, will
subrmit an investment appraisal to the
regional investment committee charred
by the Regional Managing Director If
the Regional Investment Committes
approves the site, the appraisal will be
submitted to the Group investment
Committes (GIC} for approval At least
one member of the GIC wili review
every site, and where main Board
approval s required the Chief Executive
Officer will visit the site Main Board
approval 1s required where a site 1S

to be purchased uncondittonally for
£250,000 or more, or any land to be
purchased for £4 0m or more (whether
condiuonal or unconditienal)

Planning process

The Group's specialist n-house
planning team, the Planning Bureau,
deals with all aspects oi the planning
process including the monitonng and
influencing of emerging retevant national
and regional planning policies The
Pianning Bureau becomes involved n a
site from the inshial high level suitabulity
appraisal and then works with the design
teams throughout the design process
of each site
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Humphrey Court, Stafford

The Planming Bureau staff hotd
extensive public consultations pror
to the submission of the planrmng
apphcation as well as laising
throughout the process with local
planning authonties

As the Group's developments are
prmarily iocated on brownfield sites,
the Group normally applies directly

for detated planming consents This
typically enables the Group to complets
the planning process more quickly
relative to mainstream housebuilders

_

10, 186 units

All the land needed to deliver to FY19

65

New sites exchanged in FY16

6

Detailled planning consents achieved
nFY18

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Risk Mcnagement

How we manage the risks
to our business

Effective management of risk is integral to the successful
implementation of our corporate strategy. Risk is managed
through a five-step risk management process, led from

the Board.

Our nsk management process

Identify
risk

Board assessment

The Group's nsk management
frarnework requires the mamntsnance
and regular update of Group and
regional nsk reqisters to identify the
nsks to cur business model and
strategic plan, with the major nsks
reviewed by the Board in the context
of the Group's appetite for nsk

These nsk regisiers are supported
by frameworks of key operationat
and financial controls that enable
nisks to be treated, tolerated or
transferred to third parties

How we manage nsk

Determine
rnsk appetite

Risk registers

Treat,
tolerate or M?_I;II:OF
transfer risk, '

Key controls framework Key nisk indicators

The nsk registers are complemented
by the momtonng of a set of key nsk
Indicators approved by the executive
leadership team, which providle early
warning of potential Issues and enable
management to react accordingly
Those nsk mdicators establish the

risk appetrte for each risk and are
monrored at Group and regional levels

Assurance 1s provided over the
effective design and operation of
the nsk framework through a formal
programme of assurance actity

Review
risk

ASsurance prograrmme

Thig 15 structured around thres lines

of defence managermeant assurance,
through operational controls and
reporting, functional support in the form
of formal policies and procedures, and
a programme of assurance activily,
including internal and external audit

Overall oversight 1s provided by the
Board, with mdmdual members of the
Board and the executive leadership team
sponsonng each of the key nsks

Board 1 Oversight and stewardship
Group 2
management
First line of dafence
Regional
managerment 3 operationa! controls
and reporting
Site/development 4
management
Functional 5 Second {ine of defenca
support pobcres and procedures
Risk and 6 Thurd ine of defence
mternal audi internal and external audit

The maintenance of formal nsk registers,
the identfication af key cantral
frameworks, the monitonng of key nsk
inclicators and the pursuit of a broad

assurance programme provids all levels
of management with a clear framewark
within which to operate



Monitoring key business nisks

Key business nsks are formally dentified,
reviewed and updated by the executive
leadership team every six months
using a nsk sconng methodology

Each nsk Is categonsed based on
Iikelihood and potential Impact Once
agreed with the executive leadership
team, the nsks are plotted on a nsk
heat map and submitted to the Fisk
and Audit Commuittes for approval

and subsequently to the Board

The nsk appetite 1s establishad by a
twice yearty review of the nsk heat map
by the executive leadership tearmt This
review confirms whether the relative
position of nsks is acceptable and if

not what actions need to be taken to
reduce the likelihood or impact A rating
15 given to each nsk that defines whether
the nsk 1s within the nsk appetite

and requires no further attention, f

the nsk is crystallising and therefore
action should be taken before the risk
appetite I1s breached or whether the
nsk is already beyond the nsk appette
requinng wnmediaie action The status
of each key nsk ndicator is reviewed
for all nsks beyond the nsk appetrte and
reported to the Executive Board and
Main Board As part of this review the
executive leadership team will review
the actions requrred and ensure that
progress 1s being made and whether
the proposed actions are still suffictent

The Directors have camed out a robust
assessment of the pnncipal risks facing
the Company, inclueding those that would
threaten its busmness mode, future
performance, soivency or liquidity

Internal control environment

The core elements of the Group-wide
intemal coniral smvironment are
organisational structure, cutture and
values, corporate strategy and a key
controls framework

The Group’s organisational structure s
established around clear dvisions of
responsibiibies between the Board and
the executive leadership team The
Board 1s responstble for the operationat
control of the Group, including all
strategic, financial, organisationat, legal
and regulatory matters
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The executive leadership team

i responstble for the day-to-day
management of the ocperational
activihes of the Group Each member
of the executiva leadership team has
a 'leadership team’ of direct reports,
who are collectively responsible

for the overall system of internal
control across the business

The Group has developed a values
framewark which conststs of five
comerstone principles passion,
respansibility, nnovation, determination
and excellence (PRIDE) These are used
as a guide to conduct business from
key decisions to day-to-day actvities

These values are widely communicated
across the business to ensure
algnment with strategic aims and

to actively encourage a culture that
promotes teamwork, involvement

and empowerrnent at all levels of the
Group These values play a key role

In recrutment across the business

The corporate strategy was developed
1 preparation for the IPO and pnncipally
focuses on doubling the size of the
business over the medium-tarm The
strategy has been well documented

and communicated both internally and
externally To support this strategy

the Group has identified five strategic
pnonties, as discussed on page 30

The key conirols framework defines
the Group's most important internal
controls on which it places key reliance
in the management of its core business
and reporting on its performance and
progress towards strategic objectives
The Group operates consistent financial
management, reporting controls and
processses across its nine regions
These are monitored by the Group
Financial Controller and her team In
order to ensure therr effectiveness

The key controls framework is
reviewed and tested annually, and 1s
also subject to Intermnal auvdit review
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Viabiity statement

In addition to making a going
concern statement, the Directors
are also required to make a longer-
term wviability staternent to comply
with prowvision C 2 2 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014

In respense to that, the Directors
have assessed the prospects and
financial viabiity of the Group,
taking into account both its current
position and circumstances, and
the potential mpact of its pnncipat
nsks The Directors considered that
a three-year penod was appropnate
for thus assessment The caputal
cycle from land completion to

final sell-out of a devslopment, for
FY16 build starts, 15 approximataly
three years The land pipeline also
provides us with sufficient land
under control to meet sales targets
for the next three years Accordingly,
it 1s considered appropriate that

the viabilty review penod 1s broadly
ahgned wrth the expected longewty
of the owned fand supply

The Group 15 subject to a number
of pnncipal rigks (as set out In
more detal on pages 40 and

41}, and the Directors’ wiability
statement review considered the
wnpact that these nsks might have
on the Group's alilty to mest

its targets This was underiaken
through the performance of a single
downside case sensitivity, which
reflects a severe but plausible
impact assurning that appropnate
steps are taken to mitigate the
impact of the downside

The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company
will be able to continue in
operation and meet its lizabilihes
as they fall due over the three-
year assessment penod
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but are not lmited to

Risk area

Risk description

Mitigating actions

Risk change

Fconomic
conditions

Reputation
and customer
satisfaction

liquidity of
land and
apartments

Owned land
may decline
N value

Housebulding s cyclical and
reliant on the broadler economy
A detenoration in the economic
outlook could have a significant
mpact on the Group's financial
performance The result of the
EU Referendum has increased
the uncertainty in the economy
and specifically the secondary
housebuillding market i the
short term

The Group constructs and sells a
quality product to an againg and
sometimes fral customer base and
provides ongoing management
and personal care services

Any 1ssues with the products or
services the Group provide could
impact on customer salisfaction

to the detnment of the Group's
businass mode!

Land and apartments can be
relatively fliquid assets affecting the
Group's abiity to value or liquidate
part of its land bank in a timely
fashuon and at satisfactory pnces n
responge to changes in economic,
property market or other conditions

The net realisable value of land
owned by the Group may decline
dus to changes in the property
market or cther conditions, or the
Group being unable to secure
detailled planning consent on land
purchased unconditionally

The Group closely monitors
industry indicators and assesses
the potential impact of different
economic scenarios Decisions
to allocate new capnal to land
and build are managed centrally
through the Group Investment
Committee The Group ams to
mauittasn a national and product
spread of developments to
ensure that i 1s not rehant on one
particutar focafity or product type

The Group enforces stnct
proceduras over the hand over

of developments for occupation
and the hand over of specific
apartments to ndmdual
customers Ongoing management
and personal care services

are provided within a robust
framework of controls which 1S
closely momtorad The busingss
has dedicated customer services
capability and tracks customer
satisfaction through NHBC surveys
and other routes

Whenever possible, the Group tnes
to preserve the maximum amount
of ophionalty in land payments

The Group alsc closely monitors

its forecasted cash postion to
ensure it Is funded in the most cost
effective manner

Whenever possible, contracts

to purchase land are conditional

on the Group obtaining detaled
planning cansent The Group
performs impairment reviews In ine
with IFRS requirements

Q)
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@ Risk Increased @ Risk decreased @ Risk unchanged
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Risk area

Risk description

Mitigating actons Risk change

Build
programmes
and build
COSts

Employees

Health and
salety

Land
acquisition
and planning

The Group's financial performance

15 dependent on its ability to deliver
build programmes on time and on
budget Build programme or cost
over-runs could resutt in slower sales
or reduced margins

The Group's employees are central
to the achievenent of the Group's
ohjectives Failure to recruit and
retain sufficient staff resource of
the nght quality could constrain
growth plans

Construction sites are mherentty
nsky, which could expose
employees/contractors to the risk of
senous inuryfiatality Home owners
in the developments the Group
manages are ageing and somstimes
frail, with the nsk that they can be
more susceptible to injury

Poor quality tand and/or location
could result in programme/cost
over-runs and difficutty in seling
Fallure to obtain timely planning
parmissions will adversely affect
warkflow rasulting in fallure o
meet targeted growth rates,
future sales and/for cash flow

Buld pregress and costs are
reviewed regularly by dedicatad
regional commercial teams, as well
as being reportad to regional and
Group management Independent
assurance is provided through a
dedicated commercial internal audit
resource involving deep dives into
developments under construction
Framework agreements have been
astablished with key subcontractors
and suppliers to provde greater
certainty of pnce and supply There
1S & continuing drive 10 reglise
procurement efficiencies

©,

The Group has put in place
attractive reward mechanisms
and prowvitles extensive
opportuntties for personal
development and traiming, bath
of which are regularly reviewed
against peer housebuilders and
other employers in local markets
Resource requirements are
assessed agamst annual budgets
and recruitment processes are
designed to ensure the avalability
of the nght rescurce to deliver
against the Group's plans

©,

The Group strives for excellence
in health and safety and considers
it to be the top prionty The Health
& Safety Operations Director
reports directly to the executive
leadership team, dentifying

areas of concern, near misses
and accidents, and supports

this with a ngorous, independent
site nspection pracess which
routinely assesses and reports on
standards Buiding Safety Group
audits help the Group move closer
to its goal of achueving a culture of
excellence m health and saisty

Regionat land buying teams are
n place across all regions
providing tocal knowledge and
expertise These teamns are
targeted on land exchange as
part of ther bonus structure

©

Regional planning teams have the
support and oversight of the Group
Investment Committee and are
overseen by the Board
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Financial Review

Graphicremoved

Nick Maddock
Group Chief Financial Officer

Chartremoved

Qur performance

MeCarthy & Stone has made good
progress towards achieving its medium-
term stratagic objective this year with
significant focus placed on achieving
growth, improving caprtal turn and
mantainng a favourable capial
structure and robust balance sheet
The Group delivered an increase In
legal completions, as well as improved
pricing, revenue and profit before tax

Ravenue

Revenue increased by 31% this year

to £635 9m {FY15 £485 7m) dnven by
both volume growth and an increase

in net average selling pnces Lagal
completions increased by 20% tc 2,299
units {FY15 1,923} bensfitng from an
mereased number of new developments
released for sale and accelerated

sales rates, especally off-plan sales

The Group's net average seling

pnce increasead by 8% 10 L2509k
(FY15 £238K) which primarly reflects
further improvements in the qualty
and iocation of the developments
McCarthy & Stone 1S now bringing to
market, togethar with a small element
of house price inflation Management
also exerted continued control over
the level of discounts and incentives
given to customers which, desprie
the impact of the EU Referendum and
subsequent use of tugher ncentives
to close completion chains, ended at
6% for the year, in ling with FY15

Profit

The Group achieved strong growth in
underiying profit before tax for the year,
which was up 19% to £105 Om (FY15
£88 4m), and m statutory profit before
tax, which was up 15% to £82 8m [FY15
£80 9m) This was achieved at a gross
profit margin of 21 4% (FY15 25 3%)
and an underlying operating margin of
16 9% (FY15 196%) The reduction in
these margin percentages was dnven
by the profitaility mix of units sold, the
ngrease n incentive usage in July and
August together with some additional
abortive land costs and our investment
In new regions and addrtional operational
infrastructure to support our growth

+ Urderlying operanng profit has bean
regoncited within note B to the consolidated
financial statements

Qur regions saw a return to modest
house price mflaion duning the first nine
months of the year but the effect of this
increase has been offset at a gross profit
level by build cost inflabion, particularly
dnven by an increase in labour costs
Further build cost inflation 1s expected
during FY17 and the wark currently being
undertaken as part of our build cost
nitrative seeks to mihgate the impact of
this where possible by working towards
securng 70% bulld cost certainty

prior to build start and managing

75% of bulld spend wia centrally
negotiated framework agrasments

The level of overhaads in the business
continued to be tightly controlled,
with total administrative expenses,
excluding exceptional items and
amortisation of brand, remaining
broadly at the same level as last year
of €32 8m (FY15 £32 4rm) despite

a 31% increase In revenue

Capital structure and interest

The Group closed the year with a further
increase In its tangible gross asset

value to £574 1m (FY15 £513 5m) and
atangible net asset value of £626 8m
(FY15 £4691m) The November IPO
raised £78 5m of net proceeds and the
Group continues to maintain a robust
financial posibon with a net cash balance
of £52 8m at 31 August 2016 (FY15 net
debt of €44 4m) and negative gearing of
8% {FY15 positve geanng of 8%) This
reflects a strong financral year, the net
proceeds from the IPO, actions taken by
managemeant 1n response 10 economic
uncertanty and disciplined cash
management We continued to maintain
a strong balance sheet and appropnate
headroom aganst our £200m revoiving
credit facility (RCF) throughout the year

The Group amended its financing
arrangements relating to fts RCF
dunng the year This has resulted in
improved commercial terms, Including
the extension of the facility's matunty
from 19 December 2019 to 23 May
2021 and improved margn terms,
which are expected to save ¢ £10m
per annum in Interest expense



This refinancing demonstrates the
strong and ongoing comrritment of
McCarthy & Stone's refationship banks
In supporting our £2 5bn nvestment
programme and our medium-term
strategic objective of bullding and seling
rmore than 3,000 urnits per annum

The Group incurred net inance
expenses of £2 2m dunng the year
{FY15 £6 9m), benefiting from lower
nterest costs under the Group's
amended RCF and the annual
revaluation of its shared equity debtors

Exceptional costs

Total exceptional costs recognised
within the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income dunng the year
were £10 0m, of which £8 5m related to
IPO adwiser fees and associated costs
and £1 5m related to Management
Incentive Plan charges, restructurng,
redundancy and refinancing costs

Taxation

We adopt a clear and transparent
approach lo taxation and do not
pursue aggressive techniques

to reduce our tax hability

The total tax charge for the year is

£19 4m which represents an efiective
tax rate of 20 9% (FY15 20 5%) based
on a profit before tax of £929m The
main tax reconciling tem that ncreased
the effective tax rate to 20 9% from the
statutory rate of 20 0% is the ¢ £6 9m
non-deductible portion of adwviser

cosis incurred in connection with the
hsting These costs largely related to
the secondary proceeds and were
incurred by the Company far the benefit
of the exiting shareholders, prior to the
isting We expect our effective tax rate
to revert to close to the statutory rate
from the current financial year onwards

Earnings and dividend

Adjusted underlying basic earnings
per share increased by §% to 16 1p
{FY15 14 8p} Basic earnings per
share for FY16 were 13 9p (FY15

3 4p) Details of the calculation of
earnings per share can be found in
note 12 to the financial statements

£259xk

Net average seling pnce
{FY15 £239k)
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We are delighted to be proposing

our first final dividend of 3 5 pence

per share resulting in a total ordinary
dvidend for the year of 4 5 pence This
reflects cur ordnary dividend policy

as stated at the IPO which commits to
paying a dividend equivalent {o ¢ 30%

of undertying profit after tax and before
certan exceptional tems The proposed
dividend is covered three tmes by
earnings Subject to shareholder
approval at the AGM, the dwvidend will be
pald on 1 February 2017 to shareholders
on the register at 6 January 2017

The total cost of the final dwdend 1s
£18 8m, resuliing In a total dvidend
cost relatng to the year of £24 2m

Risk management

The Group maintains a robust nsk
management framework, providing

a clear ink between strategy and the
strategic, operational and financial nsks
faced by the business The approach to
nsk 1s set by the Board, which maintains
a close mvolvernent in identifying and
mutigating nsk and monitors certan key
nsk indicators at Board meetings on a
regular basis The control environment
has been further enhanced during the
year through the estabishment of a

nsk manual and a further review and
updale of our existing finance manua

As part of managing the financial rsk
w the business, the potential impact of
a downturn in the housing market or
the broader UK econormic environment
1s regularly evaluated and we have

a numbser of key nsk indicators that

are used at Board level m order to
assess this Our nationa! reach and
diversifisd portfolio of land ensuras
that we are not overly dependent on
particular local markets or indivicdual
developments In addition, our distinct
business model helps to insulate our
business from a downturn, with land
acqguisttion normally contracted subject
to planning and also often subject to
commercial wiability or by way of aption,
enabling us to review land acquistion
decisions in ight of planning outcomes
and latest market conditions prior

to commutting sigruficant capital

£105.0m

Undertying profit before tax
{FY15 £88 am}
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Target returns

We have demonstrated sustained capital
discipline this year, mamtaining a 20%
ROCE (FY15 20%) Ttus has besn
achieved despite the constraints of buid
cost Inflation, additional invastmant

n our operational infrastructure
necessary to support growth, sustaned
investment in our growing iand bank
and additional incentives used in July
and August to Close out completion
chains However, we have seen a
rmarked improvement in capital turn

to 1 2x (FY15 1 Ox}illustrating that our
key strategic initiatives to improve sales
rates, reduce development time and
implement build efficiencies are on track
and contmuing to produce results

The Group continues to target future
Increases in operatng margin and ROCE
and remains committad to s medium-
term strategic objective of building

and seling more than 3,000 units per
annurn and achieving a ROGCE of 25%

Nick Maddaock

Group Chief Financial Officer
14 November 2016

£52.8m

Net cash
(FY15 net debt £44 4m)
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Corporcte Social Responsibility
-
A responsible
housebuilder
‘» We are committed to delivering
social and environmental benefits

Graphic removed




Our approach -

enriching lives

As the UK's leading retirement

housebuilder, our driving ambition

across our business 1s to enrich

the Ives of our hormeowners and

employeas Wae aim to deliver this by

* Engagmng positively with the local
commumities m which our
developments are built

» Building safe and vibrant
developments to help older people
lead healthy independent lives

s Providing high-guality management
services for our homeowners

* Minimising the environmental impact
of our activries

» Building & culture of excellence In
health and safety across all our
business activites

» Creating a great place to work
which s both safe and inspiring
for our employees

Qur Comporate Socia! Responsibiity
(CSR) Commuttee was formed In
2015 The Committee wtuch mesls
quarterly, 1s chared by our Land and
Planning Direclor and reports directly
to the executive leadership team

Our priorities for FY16
and FY17

The main pnonttes of the Committee

in FY16 have been to establish

* A CSR policy covenng all aspects of
the Group's business

= Aframework for CSR reporting within
the Group following the IPQ in
November 2015

Dunng FY17, the Commuittee will focus on

* Agreemng appropnate KPls and
targets and measunng our
performance agamnst these

+ Establishing a framework for
greanhouse gas enission reporiing

A full year's reporting across all the KPIs
has not been possible dunng FY16 as
data was not collected throughout the
financial year due to the fact that this
was not a requirement prior to the hsting
of the Group in November 2015 There
are also, therefore, no comparatives for
previcus years n this year's report

Top left Hormeowners at The Sycamores,
Kinross

Bottomn left Locai children from Evendons
Prmary School with the site team
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Greenhouse gas
emission reporting

As permitted under the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Directors’ Report)
Regutations 2013, the Group has
decided not to report s Scope 1 and
Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions
but to explan why we have not
complied The Company only becams
a public imited company with listing
on the London Stock Exchange in
November 2015 Therefore, we were
only subject {o these rules for part of
the financial year under revtew and are
not able to provide data for the whole
year, due to the requisite systems not
being in place to capture the relevant
data The Company will report on s
Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas
emIssions N our next Annual Report

Planning and design

We understand that our homeowners
want to be active within ther communrity
and near to local amenities and

public transport inks On averags our
homeowners move no more than five
miles from thew current homes into a
McCarthy & Stone apartment, so our
developments are clearty helping to meet
a cntical and growing local housing need

We have strict cntena when purchasing
land to ensure the location will surt the
needs and aspirations of customers
Qur developments are typically built

on centrally-located, urban, brownfietd
sites which were previously developed
or had an exishng established use

We optimise the development density
of our srtes with an average site
density In FY16 of 31 dwellings per acre
(76 per hactare} Thig, combined with
a relatively low level of car ownership
and usage amongst our homeowners,
means that we deliver a highly
sustanable form of development

Commumty consultation

We consult local communities,
businesses and other relevant
stakeholders on every new planning
application we bring forward (both pre-
and post-submission), inctuding holding
one-to-one meetings, discussions

with affecied parties and public
exhiitions  This gives neighbours and

130"

Planning consultations and
exhibiions dunng FY16
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other affected parties a platform 1o
voice therr opirions, many of which
influence owr designs and approach to
construction During FY16, over 130
consultatrons and exhibitions were
held with 80% of attendees advising
that they found them informative

A number of our developments have
recently won awards for design
including Queen Elizabeth Court, Kirkby
Lonsdale and Scartet Oak, Sclihull

Benefits of McCarthy & Stone

developments

¢ Support of our management team

¢ Ceniral locations

¢ High-guality weli-designed
apartments

+ Contnbution to the local economy

» Reducing stran on local
nfrastructure

+ Radavelopment of brownfield land

* Freeing up under-occupred homes

* More interachon with other peaple
and reduced loneliness

» Enhanced safety and secunty

* Wide range of social activites

Construction

We are aware of the impact that the
canstruction phase of our activibes
can have on the local community
All of our sites must comply with
internal polices around levels of noise,
cleaniness and presentation Some
of our sites are accredited under the
Considerate Constructors Scheme
(CCS), including our site at Midhurst
n our South East region, which
won a CCS siiver award in 2016

Minimising our impact

on the environment

There are clear environmental and
business benefits to designing energy
efficient homes, using responsibly
sourced and efficient matenals, and with
the mimimum of waste sent to landfill

Having a clear understanding of where
our money 1s being spent and how much
waste we create during the construction
and operation of our developments
allows us to make better informed
business decisions while ensunng we
mInrmISe our envircnmental iImpact

www mccarthyandstonegroup ¢o uk
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Corporcte Social Responsibility continued

We are committed to reducing levels of
waste generated by our construction
sites year-on-year as this will bnng both
financial and environmaental benefits

Dunng FY16, we replaced our waste
management supplier with two new
suppliers, Kenny and Waste Cycle, and
thewr emvironmental credentials were a
key factor in our selechon process We
are proud to report that of the 21,316
tonnes of wasts generated on our
construchon sites In FY16, only 5 6%
(being 1,185 tonnes) went to landfill,
the rest being recycled We continue
to work with our waste management
companies to further improve this figure,
as well as with our suppliers to reduce
waste further up the supply chan

Efficient homes

We design our developments to maxmuse

the performance of the fabnc and

matenals of the bulding This approach

s used for a number of reasons

+ [t pnontises the largest temn of
energy consumption in homes,
being mamntaining a comfortable
intermal temperature

+ The energy effictency I1s integrated
into the building and does nol require
occupants to operate complex
systerns or change therr behaviours

* Energy efficiencies will last as long
as the building lasts and costly
marnienance of heating systems,
for example, Is avoided

Wea employ a range of methods across

our ‘fabng first' approach including

* Maximising air ughtness

« [nstalling insulation n walls and
loft spaces

* Optmising solar gan through
openings and shades

* Ophmising ventilation and using the
thermal mass of bulding fabncs

» Addition of photo voltaic cells to
buldings where practical

Engaging with the community
We do not just consult with local
communities at the planning stage
- we also engage with them dunng
the construction phase Activities
include wvisiting iocal schools or

94.4%

Of waste was diverted from
landfill n FY16

arganising visits to our srtes to
encourage children to understand
the dangers of construction sites

Living in a McCarthy &
Stone development

Our Retirement Living and Assisted
Lming developments have a House
Manager or Estate Manager on-site
dunng working hours or up to 24 hours
a day, respectively Since 2010 those
services have been provided in all

new developments by our in-house
managament services companies
Thew role 1$ not only to help deal with
any issues that our homeowners may
have but also to help create a fnendiy
and communal environment where the
homeowners can, If they wish, seek
companionship and make new fhends

We are very proud of the work of our
management services business in
promoting social interaction among
our homeowners In FY16, there were
between 1,700 and 1,900 events

held across our developments each
menth Social events are crganised n
our homeowners’ lounges and range
from coffee mornings, film and quiz
nights, music evenings, exarciss and
craft classes and local interest tatks
and events Participation and feedback
from homeowners Is very encouraging

n N
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To support this, the Group has set

up a ‘community fund’ which can be
spent at the House/Estate Manager's
discretion wrth the airn of engendering
a sense of community within the first
year of each new development

We are very pleased that two of our
developments, Rockhaven Court

in Horwich and Queen Ehzabeth
Court n Kirkby Lonsdale won
awards at the National Housing for
Older People Awards 2015 Thess
awards celebrate the best specialist
housing for older people and are
voted for by residents and staff

in Apnl 2016, we published a report

mn partnership with the cross-party
think tank Demos entitled *‘Building
Companionship how better design
can combat loneliness n later life’
which highlighted the social benefits
of our developments, particularly in
addressing the 1ssue of loneliness
among clder people The report
showed that our homeowners fesl
much higher levels of companionship
and have more social interachon since
mowving mio one of our developments

Building Companionship: how better design can combat loneliness in later life
Results of the survey comparing our homeowners with the over 55s in general housing

AN agas of McCarthy & Stone

Age of paople surveyed popuiabion 55-64 85-74 75+ hormeowners
There 1s a sense of community

among the people whe live

I my housing development/

nexghbourhood or street 49%  42%  58% 51% 85%
There are sufficient social events

far my age group 38% 36% S53% 56% 73%

8 5%

Of our homeowners feel there
15 & sense of community
In thewr developments

1,700+

In FY16 between 1,700 and 1,900
social events were held across our
developments every month




QOur commuiment to our cusiomers
has been recognised by us ganing the
prestigious HBF Five Star customer
sahisfachon award for a record 11
consecutive years - making us

the only major housebuilder of any
size or type to actweve this award
evary year since its nception

Helping our hecmeowners to reduce
their carbon footprint

Ouring 2016, we began a roli-out of
smart electricity meters across our
developments These allow us to
rnonitor usage on a real time basis,
both in terms of kWh and cost,

of eleciricily used within shared

areas on a haif-hourty basis As at

31 August 2016, 57 developments
had these new srart meters instafled,
reprasenting approximately 229% of the
Group's managed developments

The dala from the new matars has been
recesved enthusiastically by homeowners
with energy savings already slarting to be
seen Some of the benefits include
laurdry facilities being used outside of
peak hours when electncity 1s cheaper,
windows and doors baing kept shut
when heatng 1s on, and heating baing
turned down when not required

Smart gas meters are also being rolled
out across the Group's Assisted Living
developments which use gas

With the planned deregulation of the
English water market 1n Apnl 2017, we are
planning to install smart water meters to
measurg water usage across our
developments with the aim, agamn, beng
to reduce ths volume of water used

Charitable donations and
community contributions
We always try to contnbute to
commurnities both around our
developments and our offices This s
done regionally and can take the form of
chantabls donations or time donated by
our employees, particularly focusing on
local chanties and local communidy
groups In additton, our Corporate
Cantre has a monthly chanty collection,

48%

Of our workforce was female
at 31 August 2016
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with the chosen chanty, typically a small
local organisabon, being nominated by a
member of staff

Case study

Fernheath Play Association
Since June 2015, McCarthy & Stone
has pledged £24k to Fernheath
Play Assocatton, a Bournemouth-
based chanty Fernheath Play
Association offers play facites to
local disabled and disadvantaged
children and our two-year
commitment has contnbuted
towards much-neeced staffing of
the centre after it was forced to
suspendits play work for the first
time in 38 years, and has allowed ¢
to reopen during school term tmes

The Association 1s the only fully
inclusive play and short breaks
centre in Boumemouth, meaning

all children who attend have the
ability to interact and engage in
imaginative play The Association
has a wide range of outdoor
equipment, as well as Indeor spaces
for activities, table top games,

and play and sensory rooms

We are delightad to support
Fernheath Play Association

in its important role in helping
the local commuruty

N N
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From teft to right

Jeg Elston, Femheath Play Manager,
Gary Day, our Land and Planning
Crrector; Paddy Withamson,
Fernheath Play Chairperson,

andl Conor Burns, MP and Fernheath
Play Patron

19%

Of our sentor management at year
and were female
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Creating a culture of
excellence and a great

place to work

Qur people are vital to the continued
growth and success of our business
The Group recognises that attracting
and retaining empioyees 1s only
possible If we provide the nght working
environment, appropriate reward and
recognition schemes and opportunities
for personal development and traiming

At 31 August 2016, the Group employed
1,344 people (FY15 1,158) This figure
excludes the Estates Management
teams, subcontractors and agency
workers Some 48% of employees in
the main business are employed on
sites or at developments or as House
Managers with the balance based

n our regional and central offices

Mals Femals
Directors of
the Company
{tnciuding NEDs) 3] 1

Employees in semor
management posiions
n¢lucing Directors of
subsichary comparnies g8 24

Total employees of the
Group {excluding NEDs) 659 645

At the end of the financial year 48%
of all employees were fomale and
45% were over the age of 50

Diversity and inclusivity

The Group 15 committed to
promoting polictes to ensure that
those who are smployed by the
Group's businesses are treated
equally, regardless of status,
gender, sex, age, colour, race

or ethnic origin

We give full consideration to
applications for employment from
persons with disabilties where the
requirements of the job can be
adequately fulfilled by a person with
a disability Should any smployee
become disabled, it 1s the Group's
palicy, wherever possible, to
continue the empioyment of that
person Itis the Group's policy to
provide equal opportunities for the
training and career development of
employees with disabilities

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk

IDNVYNHIAQD BLYHOJHOD 1HOd3Y SI93.1vHLS

SLNIWILYLS TVIDONYNIL




48 McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Employes communications

We communicate with our employees through a vanety of channels including regular
updates and the Group's quarterly staff newsletier Group-wide business updates led
by our Chief Exacutive Officer on the business strategy provide employees with an
opporiunity to provide feedback to management

Employee survey

Our latest all-employee survey was camed out in October 2015 The response rate
was 90%, up from 87% in 2014 The resulls showed some extramely encouraging
year-on-year improvements compared with the 2014 resuits, which were already
well ahead of external benchmarks Significant improvermnents were made agamst
our five key employee engagement metncs

Bxtarnal

2015 2014 banchmark

% % %

I am proud to work for McCarthy & Stone 89 79 76
| would be happy to recommend McCarthy & Stong

as a place to work 81 68 74

I feel a sense of belonging at McCarthy & Stone 76 51 54

| feel valued for the work { do 4 62 44

| am clear about how my role contnbutes to
McCarthy & Stone’s success 91 82 62

Recognition of achievements

Qur values, which were chosen by our employeas, are the standards to which we
hold ourselves accountable and reflect the way we work, the way we communicate
and the way we act

Qur values are:
Passion
Responsibility
Innovation
Determination
Excellence

We celebrate and recognise employees who go the extra mile for a ¢ustomer or
colleague through our quarterty and annual PRIDE awards Our progress Is ilustrated
by our most recent employes survey, which identified that 88% of our employees are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone

Any staff member can nominate a colleague for an instant PRIDE award which 1s
Judged by our regional PRIDE champions Each quartar, instant PRIDE winners are
then put forward for quarterly awards with averall winners bemng judged on an annual
basis Dunng FY16, 572 PRIDE awards were presented

Qur overali PRIDE champion for the year was our Senior Benefits Adwiser, Colin
Cuthbert Colin heads up the team who offer free and confidential advice to prospective
customers on any benefits they may be entitisd to This service reviews their Indmdual
circurnstances and determines whether they are entitled 10 any Government funding,
ranging from Pension Credits, to housing support and attendance allowance, nght
down to free telewsion licences for the over 75s The service has helped almost 500
customers access £2m of unclamed benefits in the last ysar

B i

| 90%+

Over 90% of our homeowners said
that they would recommend ustoa
frend, a great endorsement of our
customer-centnc approach

Graphic removed
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Colir Cuthberl, Semor Benelits Adviser

Employee invoivernent

Employees are encouraged to participate
in the success of the Group and dunng
the year two share schemes were
introduced a share save plan (SAYE)
and a shase ncentive plan {SIP) Both
schemnas are open to all employees

The SAYE savings contracts are for
either three or five years Neither scherne
15 subject to performance conditions

NHBC Prnide in the Job Awards
We are extremsly pleased that our
standards are recogrised extarnally
In 206, ten of the Group s Site
Managers wera awarded NHBG Pride
in the Job Awards These awards
are the industry's maost prastigious
awards programme and recognise
Site Managers who achieve the
highest standards of housebulding
and who demonstrate the highest
gualities of workmanshp, leadership,
techmeal expertise and health and
safety awareness Our Pnde In

the Job Award winners will now
progress o the next stage of the
awards process in the autumn

Apprentices and trainees

We offer aspinng site managers the
opporturity to learn hands-on skills on
our construction sites whilst studving
towards a NVQ qualification such

as Level 4 Diploma in Construction
and Bulding Services Managerment,
and Supervisions and Technical
Certoficate Level 4 NHC in Construction
and the Built Environment We

also participate in a Shared Trade
Apprentice Scheme, Partnering with
South West based subceontractors,
and Bourmemouth and Poole College
We hops that, once quahfied, the
apprentices will continue working for
the Group, thus helping to allsviate
national shortages in skilled labour the
industry 1S currently expensncing

We also offer trainea contracts in other
departments such as Sales, Finance and
Legal Services

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment 1o
traimng, and personal and professional
development Performance aganst
objectives 1s formally reviewed on

an annual basis As well as setting

10

NHBC Pnde in the Job
Awards m FY16




obyectives, the process includes the
identification and implementation of a
talored personal development plan
Improvement programmes focusing on
quaity, efficiency and customer service
provide an opportunity for all empioyees
to be involved in the development of
the Group's business and products

Student placement scheme

The Group 1s also developing the next
generation of housebunlders through

a student ptacement schame run n
conjunction with Northumbna University
As part of the scheme, which has been
running since 1991, students studying
for the BSc Hons in Construction Project
Management have the opportunity

10 spend a year working at McCarthy

& Stone This works well for both the
students, who gain an-site experience,
and for the McCarthy & Stone Group,
with many students competing for
placements and choosing to become
employees after they graduate

Four new students started thewr placement
years at the Group m August 2015 in
total, over 130 peopie have completed
the scheme with us since it was launched
with several scheme parucipants
continuing to work for us after completing
therr degrees Soma have nsen to ssnior
roles i the orgamsation

Building a culture of
excellence in health

and safety

Health and safety 15 a top prionty
for the Group The Heaith and
Safaty Operations Diractor reports
directly to the executive leadership
team In addrion to the central
tearn wheo determine our health and
safety strategy, we have a Group
Construction Health and Safety
Manager and regional agvisers

Construction sites

On site, we amphasise both a proactive
approach to health and safety as well as
underlining the individual responsibility
every site worker has for therr and

therr colieagues’ health and safety All
staff (both employees and contractors)
are required to have adequate health
and safety qualifications before

starting work on one of our sites and

98.7%

Average score achigved in
FY16 against the BSG's
‘generally comphes' cntena
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all contractors are required to hold a
vald Construction Skills Certfication
Scheme Card This evidencas that
the contractor has the relevant skils
required for therr role, including
understanding the health and safety
implications of the work they perform

We require all our Site Managers and
Assistant Site Managers 1o have the
Construction Industry Training Board's
(CITB) Site Management Safety Training
Scheme qualfications and to be
qualfied first arders There must be a
qualfied first aider on site at all times

During FY16, wa reported nine incidents
under the Reporting of Incidents
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations {RIDDOR) to the Health and
Safety Executive

We employ the BSG to undertake
independent audits of our construction
sites throughout the year and they wisit
each site every three weeks dunng the
build process Dunng FY16, our average
score was 98 7%, which was achieved
by scoring 1,326 pomnts in 1,032 wisits
These audits help the Group move
closer to Its goal of achieving a cuture
of excellence in health and safety

Since 2015, the Group has entered its
sites for the NHBG Health and Safety
Awards These have been runmng for
seven years, and recognise and reward
the very best in health and safety, with
the aim of dnving up standards, and
showcasing and shanng best practice

Duning FY16, wa recaved five NHBC
Health and Satety cornmendations
with ons site going on to receive a
highly commended award In FY15,
wa receved two commendations and
cne highly commended award We
have also been narminated for four
awards from BSG for FY16 In FY15,
we ware BSG's UK member of the
year and also recewved two regional
awards and two site manager awards

Managed developments

At 31 August 2016, we were managing
264 developments occupred by over
12,000 homeowners At our Retirgment
Living developments, a House Manager
18 on-site dunng working howrs and

5

NHBC Health and Safety
commendations in FY16 with
cne site going on to receve a
highly commended award
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at Assisted Living developments a
member of the Estate Management
team is typically on site 24 hours a day

All our House Managers and Estate
Managsrs have basic first aid trairng
and are qualified to make iniial
assessments on rminor tnps and falls
Any incident involving a homeowner
on one of our developrnents will have
a full nquiry performed by our health
and safety team with a view o ensuring
the incident 1S not repeated There
ware five RIDDOR incidents at our
developments dunng FY18, anly two
of which could be attnbuted to us

Offices

All offices have a quabfied first

aider whose traming 15 refreshed
annually All staff are also required to
complete a desk-based questionnare
concerning therr desk space

and seating arrangernents

In 2014, we brought our health and
safety traming in-house, allowing us

to taulor the courses {0 our needs

We have ntroduced traiming for staff

to enable them to become Increasingly
set-supporting in ther managernent

of health and safety During FY18, the
Group delvered 355 in-house trarung
courses for employees and 178 in-house
training courses for contractors 563
peaple attended safety workshops and
12 BSG safety surgenes were held

Human rights

We support the United Nations'
Unversal Declaration of Human Rights
and have polictes and processes in place
to ensure that we act in accordance with
our pnnciples In refation to areas such as
anti-corruption, diversity, whistieblowing
and the requirements of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 All suppliers are
required to confirm compliance with

our Modern Slavery policy which

was adopted dunng the year

Our strategic report, on pages
(01-49 has been reviewed and
approved by the Board

On behalf of the Board

Clive Fenton
14 November 2016

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Board of Directors
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John White
Non-Executive Chairman

a

Expetience

John White was appontad as the Independent
Non-Exsecutive Charman of the Group n
September 2013 and Is Chalrman of the
Norninations Comrittes, He was Group
Chalrman of Persimmon pic, a position he held
between Aprd 2008 and Apnl 2011, having
previously been Group Cheef Executive Officar
since 1983 He has spent al lus worlang Iife

In the housing Industry and has unnvatad
axpenence of wordang within the sector

John s also Deputy Chaiman of
Northampton Sainis plc and a drector of
Northampton Rugby Football Ciub Limited

Cammittees
Chayrman of Nominatons Committes and
member of Remuneration Commities

N ]
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Expenence

Geeta Nandz joinad the Board i Apn/ 2015 as a
Non-Exacutive Director She has mora than 28
years' expenenca n the housing sector and
currently serves as Chef Executive Officer of
Thames Valkey Housing Assoc@abon (TVHA)
Geeta joined TVHA 1n 2008 and n 2013 was
awarded an OBE for her achievernents to socal
housing Geeta ls a Dwector of Fizzy Enterpnses
{& joint veniure with Siver Armow, a subsiciary of
the Abuy Dhab Investment Authorty) which she
launchad v 2012 as a brandad market rent
proposiion She has 23 years’ expenence in
non-execuiive roles and has served on the
Boards of two housing ongarwsations end natonal
and local chanties She s cumently a member of
the coast 1o capital housirg task jorce

Committees
Member of Risk and Audit Comemxttes, and
Remunarabon Committee
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Frank Nelson
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Experience

Frank Neison joined the Board In November
2013 and is the Senior indapeandant Dector and
Chairman of the Risk and Audit Committes. Ha is
a qualified accountant, with 30 years' expenence
in the housebulding, infrastructure art energy
sectors He was Finance Diractor of Galiford

Try pic from 2000 untl 2092 and was also
responsibie for thar PFUPPP actmties. He was
praviousty Finance Dwactor of Try Group plc from
1987, lsading the company through ds flotation

In 1988 and subsequent menger with Callford.
Maove recantly, Frank was the intanm Chigf
Financial Officer of Larmpre, the Dubar-based
offshore constructon compary, whars he helped
complale a cornplex refinancing belore leaving

n October 2013, He s presently the Samor
Independant Direcior of HICL Infrastructure,
Telford Homes pic and Eurocell pic

Committees

Chasrrman of Risk and Audit Committee, and
member of Remunerabon Commitise and
Nominations Commuitiea

[ ]
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Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director

Experience

Mika Parsons oined the Board in November
2013 as a Non-Executive Dractor and is
Chairrnan of the Remuneraton Committee He
founded Barchester Healthcare 23 years ago,
folowing a successful career in adverising.
Award-wirvung Barchestsr has grown mpidly,
based on a pranmum positioning In the
spacialist care homes sactor The Compary
has grown organcally and, through the
acquisihon in 2004 of Westminster Healthcare
for £525m became the fourth largest
ndepsndent healthcare provder in the UK

Committees

Chaimnan of Remuneration Committes and
member of Risk and Audit Committes, and
Norminahons Commuittee
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Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Cfficer

Expenence

Clive Fenton joned the Group as Chyef
Executive Officer m Febnuary 2014 He has a
wealth of both housebuiiding and busness
experience, having spent almost 30 years
with Barratt Developments plc. He panad
Barratt v 1983 and workad i a number of
finance and operational roles before beng
appointed to the Group Board in 2003 with
ovarall responsibiity for all operations in the
south of England  He was also responsible
for gnoup strategic land, partnerstug housing
and retirament homes. Move recently he
was Chef Executive Officer of Mount Arwd,

a development company specalsing n the
residential property market in central London

Committees
Member of Nomnations Commitiae

N ]
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Patrick Hole
General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Expenence

Patnck Hole joined McCarthy & Stone in July
2014 Patnck 1s responsible for the Lagal and
Company Secretanal functons of the Group
ko 15 a quakfied solicitor with more than 20
years' post qualficaton expenence Patnck has
been a partner in private practice for many
years and also has a broad range of in-house
expenence, inciuding mtenm roles at both OTZ
and Keepmoat,

BRE

AL
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Nick Maddock
Chief Financial Officer

Expenence

Nick Maddock jined the Group as Chief
Financial Officer in September 2011, having
previously worked as Finance Dvector for
Caninca's upstream oil and gas business,
financial Controlier at British Gas and a Director
In Mergers and Acquistions at ING Banngs
Nick trained as a chartered accountant and
chartered {ax adviser at Emst & Young

On 11 October 2016 the Company announced
that Nick has resignad His departure date has
not yet been finaksed

Committees
None
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John Tonkiss
National Operations Director

Expenence

John Tonkiss joned MeCarthy & Stone n
February 2014 and became a Board Director
in October 2015 He previousty hakd the roles
of Operations Dwector — North and Businass
Transformation Dwector, and became Natlonal
Operations Director in September 2016 He
Is responsible for the Group's mine operating
regions and also leads the improvement
change programme to accelerats business
growth, anhance CusIomer expenence

and irmprove operabing performance John
was previously Chief Exacutve Officer of
Heaman Racogniion Systems, the UK's
lgading tiometric solutions provider Pnor to
that, he worked for tan years for the Unite
Group the UKs largest provider of purpose-
bultt student accommodation, becoming
Group Ghief Operating Officer n 2008

Committees
Nona

www mcearthyandstonegroup co uk
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Corporate Governance
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This has been an axcring and challenging year for us as we
moved from prvate to public owngrship following the IPO in
November 2015

This Corporate Governance Report describes our governance
structure and explains how we have applied the main
principles of the UK Corporate Governance Cade 2014 (and
rélevant updates) (the Cods) (www frc org uk) and the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authonty handbook {DTR Rules) since our flotation

We beheve that a solid corporate governance framework 1s
essential for upholding our core busness values and delivenng
our strategy and i 1 my rasponsibility to promote huigh
standards of governance and business practice throughout the
organisation In this section of the report we explain how we
managse our business and promote such high standards of
governarice across the Group

Compliance with the Code

The Company has compled with the Code for the part of the

yaar that we were listed with the following exceptions

a} The Non-Executive Direclors’ letters of appointment were
not for a fixed term — this has now been rectified (B2 3)

t) Although the Risk and Audit Cornmittee reviewsd the
nternal controls and nsk management dunng the year, the
effectveness review by the Board took placs after year and
n November 2016 (C 2 3)

The following sets out how we have complied with the Code
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A Leadership

The role of the Board (A1)

The Board 1s responsible for operational controt of the Group,
including all strategic, financial, organisational, Isgal and
regulatory matters and the Directors meet regularly to enable
tham to discharge ther duties The Company Secretary I1s
responsible for ensunng that Board procedures are followad
and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with
in addiion, the Directors may 1ake ndependent professional
adwvice as required

There 1s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved

for Board decision which was updated in Novermnber 2015 to
ensure that it 1s relevant 1o a UK iisted company Matters which
require Board approval Include strategy and management,
structure and capital, financial reporting, internal contrals,
cantracts and expenditure and communications

Decisions on wvestments and development actvhes are made by
the Group Investment Committee which meets weekly and 18
chawed by the Crel Executve Officer, wihile mapor rivestrnent
deaisions are referred to the Board for approval

The Board has established three Board Committees Risk and
Audit, Remuneration and Nominations  The resmbership of sach of
the Committees s in compliance with the requirements of the Code
and the terms of refarence of the Committees are included on our
corporate websits. Detals of the actvbes of each of the Commitees
dunng the year are sat out later in this document The Company
Secretary acts as secretary to each of the Committees

There are nine scheduled Board mestings each year, aithough
dunng FY16 thers were 11 formal Board meetngs  Attendance
at the Board and the Committee meetings 1s shown below

Risk and
Audit Remuneraton Nomngbons

Ciractor Board Commitiee Committée  Commities
Number of meetings 11 3 5 1
John White 1/11 n/a 5/5 11
Clhiva Fenton 11/M nfa n/a i7a!
Nick Maddock 11/11 n/a n/a nfa
John Tonkiss* 11/11 n/a nfa n/a
Mike Parsons 11/11 3/3 5/5 1/1
Frank Nelson 1111 313 5/5 1/1
Geeta Nanda? 11/11 2/2 1M n/a
Nils Albert? 343 11 n/a n/a

1 Appowited to the Soard on 5 November 2015
2 Appointad to the Risk and Audit and Remunesation Commitiees on 8 Novernbar 2015
3 Resgned on 21 October 2005

Division of responsibilities (A2, A3)
There 1s a clear wniten policy seting out the separation of the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

lam as Chawman, responsible for leadership of the Board
and for ensunng that the strategic diraction and objectves

of the Group are relevant to deliver sharehalder value and to
promote the long-term success of the Group | lead the Board
n its constructive challenge of the executive management and
ensure thal Board discusstons are searching and forward-
thinking | am also responsible for promoting high standards
of corporate governance and good business practice

Chve Fenton, cur Chief Executive Officer, 15 responsible for the
day-to-day management of the operational activibes of the
Group and the development and mnovation of the Group's
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businass He lsads the executive team In implementing the
strategies and objectives agreed by the Board and in delivenng
operational performance and success

Non-Executive Directors (Ad)

The Board currently has three Non-Executive Directors -
Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons and Geeta Nanda - who have
all been appointed dunng the past three years Tharr previous
expenence of either the housing sector or providing services
to the elderly add valuable skills and input to the Board

Frank Nelson s the Senior independent Director Nils Albert was
a Non-Executive Director who resigned on 21 October 2015

B. Effectiveness

Board composition and independence {B1)

The appoiniment and reptacement of the Company’s Directors
15 governed by the Company's Articles of Association, the
Companies Act and the Indmvidual service contracts and terms
of appointment of the Directors The Articles permit a
maxarmurn of 12 Directors

The Board currently compnises the Chairman (who was
independent on appontment), three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-Executive Directers  Shart biographical
details of each of the Directors are set out on pages 50 and 51

At its meeting s August, the Nominations Committes
considered the ndependence of the indmvidual Directors

and confirmed that there are no ndependence issues,
notwthstanding the fact that two of the three Non-Executive
Directors, Frank Nelson and Mike Parsons, were included in
the Company's Management Incentive Plan which was put
n place in 2013 and was wound up N November 2015 Therr
participation in the plan 1s a reflection of the ditferent ownership
structure of the Company at that time  Since Admission,

the Non-Executive Directors have nat been included in

any of the Group's share plans or bonus arrangements

Appointments and commitment (B2, B3, B7)

The date of appointment of sach of the Dwectors is set out on
pages 50 and 51 - nane of the Directors has served for more
than six years Nis Albert, who had been apponted by our
largest prvate equity wvestor, resigned on 21 October 2015
and John Tonkiss, Nabonal Operations Director, joined the
Board on 5 Novermber 2015 There have not been any changes
to the Board composiiion since we Iisted m November 2015
Appontments now fall under the remit of the Nominations
Committee who will lead the process in selecting any new
Directors before making recommendations to the Board The
Nominations Commttee s working with senlor management
to ensure that satisfactory succession plans are n place

The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment set
out the ime commitment expected to fulfll therr role The Board
15 satisfied that each of the Diractors has committed sufficient
tme and nput duning the year to enable him/her to fulfil his/her
duties as evidenced by the 100% attendance at all the Board
and relevant Committee meetings throughout the year

The Non-Executive Directors' letters of appointment were
put In place when the Company was stll in private equity
ownership and were not for fixed three year terms This has
been rectfied since year end through vanation letters

As the Company s included in the FTSE 350, all of the Directors
will be required to seek re-glection at each AGM The resolutions
for the re~efaction of the current Board members are included in
the separate Notice of AGM
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Induction, development and support (B4, BS)

On joining the Board, each Directer 1s provided with a. full
introduction to the business and i order to assist the Directors
n their ongoing understanding of the business, some of the
Board meetings are held at the regional offices to provide an
opportunity for the Diractors to meet local management and to
visit some of the Group's developments Papers are circulated
n & tmely manner to enable the Directors to undertake full and
detalled consideration of the agenda items in advance of the
meeting and each of the Directors has access to the services
of the Company Secretary

Board evaluation (BE)

An evaluation of the performance of the Board, its members and
Committees was carned out dunng FY18 by the Nominations
Committes and details of the evaluation process and findings
are included 1n the Nominations Commities Report on page 54

C Accountability

Reporting {C1})

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibiiities 1s on page 80 The
viability staterment is on pags 39 The Independent Auditor's
Report 1s on pages 81 to 85 The staternent on going concern
is on page 79 Detalls of the Board's arrangements to ensure
that the information preserted in this report is farr, balanced
and understandable i1s set out on page 80

Risk management and internal controls {C2)

Details of the nsk management process and the pancipal nsks
facing the Group are set out on pages 38 and 41 The Board
1S responsible for the system of internal controls, which are
designed to manage the business nsks faced by the Group,
and for raviewing the eflectivenass of those controls Business
targets are set within appropnate tmeframes, policies,
procedures and control processes for managing the Group's
business actvities have been put in place, and key financial
nisks are controlled through clearty laid down authorsation
levels and segregation of accounting duties

Thae Risk and Audit Committee, together with the Internal Audit
function, has identfied the pnncipal nisks facing the Group and
has established systerns for evaluating and managing those
nsks These systems have been n place for the whole of the
year under review and up to the date of this report Further
information ¢an be found on pages 56 and 57, and 38 and 39

Audit and Auditors (C3)
Details of the work of the Risk and Audit Committee and the
aucitors are set out on pages 56 and 57

D. Remuneration
Details of Executive Directors’ remuneration and the Group's
approach to remunaration policy are set out on pages 58 to 77

E Relations with shareholders

Although rmost direct shareholder contact 1s by the Chief Executve
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, teedback 1s communicated
back to the other Directors primanly through reports 10 the Board
and copes of analysts' presentations

It 1s anticipated that all membars of the Board will attend the

AGM n January 2017 and that the meeting will be organised
in comphance with the Code

ol LA

www mecarthyandstonegroup co uk

On behalf of the Board

John White
Chairman
14 November 2016
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Introduction

| am pieased to present the Committee’s report for FY16

The Nominations Committee’s pnmary responsibilties are to
review the structure, sizé and composition of the Board and
its Commuittees, ncluding making recommendatons for
appontments and re-elections to the Board, and succession
planning for the Directors and senior management in

the Group

in our first year post-IPQ, the main area of focus for the
Committee has been 10 undertake an evaluation of our Board
and its Committees and our Directors to seek to identfy any
areas where performarnce and procedures can be improved
and to reassura ourselves that we have the nght people leading
our business

The results of the evatuation process are set out baelow

Membership and tenure
Members of the Commuttee are appointed by the Board
The members of the Committee dunng FY16 were

John White
Clive Fenton
Frank Nelson
Mike Parsons

Nils Albert was also a member of the Committee for part of the
year untl his resignatlon from the Board on 21 October 215
The membership of the Committee was reviewed in advance
of the IPO process last year Apart from Mr Albert’s resignation,
no further changes were considered necessary at that time

There was one meating of the Committee dunng the year
all the current members of the Commitiee attended

Responsibilities and terms of reference

The terms of reference, which are avadable on our website,
werg adopted with effect from 11 November 2015 The man
areas of rasponsibility of the Committee are overseeing the
appointrment of Directors, ensuning that the skills and
expenence of the Board remains appropriate and balanced,
succession planning, and the annual evaluation process

Activities during FY18

Dunng the year the Committes reviewed the size, Structure
and composition of the Board and the performance and
effectiveness of the Board and ds Committees as well as the
performance and contnbution of each of the Directors it was
decided not to undertake an external evaluation during FY16
The Committese will review the timing of the externat evaluation
duning FY17

The Committee also reviewed the Group’s Equal Opportunities
Policy and 1ts awn terms of reference

Evaluation process and results

The Carmmittes camed out a thorough, in-housé evaluation

of the Board and each of its Committeas (Risk and Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations), as well as the performance
of each of the Diractors This was carned out by way of a
questionnaire as wall as one-to-one meetings between the
Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors on the performance
of the indmdual Directors The review of the Chairman'’s
performance was led by the Senior Independent Director

The effectiveness of the Board was assessed In respect of
its structure, organisation, reporting and communications
Directors were also invited to make recommendations on
how the performance and operation of the Board could
be mproved Board performance scored, in genaral, quite
highly, although there were some areas whera Directors
felt there could be improvement, including succassion
planning and greater communication with employees

L was particularty pleased that, compared to other Boards
on which the Birectors have served in the past, McCarthy
& Stone's Board s considered to be more open with an
excellent mix of expenence and a better balance between
the Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Directors
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Some areas were identified where improvement could be
made The Committee has therefore set up an acton plan
to address these points, which will be reviewed again as
part of next year's evaluahon process 1o compare progress
against objectwes

Board compasition and succession planning

Board composition was already & focus for the Company
prior to our IPC m November 2015, with ermnphasis on
establishing a Board with a strong background in the
housebullding sector and solid histed company expenence
that could guide the Group through the listing process

Conssquentily, the Board has been completaly refreshed in
the past five years, with six of the current seven Directors
having been on the Board for three years or less

Date ol appomnirent
Dttt Aole to the Board
John White Chairman 23 Septernber 2013
Chve Fenton  Chief Executve Officer 17 February 2014
Nick Maddock Chief Financial Qfficer 19 Septermber 2011
John Tonkiss  QOgperations Director 5 November 2015

Non-Exacutive Cirector 4 November 2013
Non-Executive Director 18 November 2013
Non-Executve Director 1 Apnl 2015

Mike Parsons
Frank Nelson
Geeta Nanda

Thers have not been any Board appontments since the
Company listed As part of the evaluation process, it was
dentified that the composition should be kept under review
by the Commuttee in order to ensure that the mix and
expernence remains relevant to our business Due fo the
resignation of Nick Maddock, the Nominations Committes
will be involved in the search for a new Chief Financial Officer

The terms of reference of the Committee require a description
and capabilites of the role to be prepared in advance of the
recrutment process The Committes may use the services of
external independent advisers

One of the areas identified in the evaluation where it was feft
that additional attention was needed was succession planning,
which, given the recent tenure of the current Board has not
been a pnonty in the past couple of years The Group is i

the process of formulating a new successton plan which the
Committee will continue to keep under review

Rettrement and re-election of Directors

in accordance with our Articles of Association and as
a FTSE 350 company, all of our [irectors are required
to retire and those who wish to continue to serve must
sesk re-glection by our shareholclers at each AGM

As part of its evaluation process, the Commitiee reviewed

the experience and contribution of each of the Directors,
before recommending to the Board that all of the Directors
should be recommended for re-election at our AGM to

be held in January 2017 It was felt that the breadth of
knowledge and expenence across the Board was appropnats,
partcularly at this stage in our evalution Further details

on each of the Directors are set out on pages 50 and 51
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Diwversity

The Group has an Equal Opportunities Policy, which commits

us to zero tolerance of unlawful discrimination and encourages
diversity in our workiorce The Commuttee reviewed the Policy
dunng the year and will continue to keep this under teview

o ensure that it remains appropnate for the business

Although the Group has not set specific gender targets,

as we believe that appomtments should be based on ment,
we support the pnnciple of diversity, not just at Board level
but throughout the Group At year end we had one femals
member of the Board (representing 149} and 48% of our total
waorkforce were female Further breakdown i1s provided on
page 47

John White

Nominations Committee Chairman
14 November 2016

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Introduction

This 1s my first report following our listing on the London Stock
Exchange We were not listed for the whole of the year under
review and further changes were required in the membership
of the Committee and our terms of reference to put in place
arrangements appropnate {0 our new status as a listed
company We are confident we have the nght peopls in place
to drnve forward the nsk and audit oversight for the Group

Membership and tenure

At the beginring of FY16 the members of the Committee were
Frank Nelson {Chairman), John White, Nils Albert and Mike
Parsons Mr Albert resignad from the Board on 21 Oclober
2015 The membership was further amended in advancs of the
IPO and in order to ensure compliance with the UK Corporate
Govermnance Code, when John White stepped down from the
Committee and was replaced by Geeta Nanda The current
membership 1s therefore Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons and
Geeta Nanda, all Independent Non-Executiva Directors

Prior to his appomtment to the Board, Frank Nelson was
previously Finance Director of Galiford Try ple, the FTSE 250
housebuilding and construction group for 25 years and the
Board has determined that his racent and relevant financial
expenence makes him the ideal Director to char the
Committee The Commitiee as a wholg has competence
relevant to our business with Frank Nelson and Geeta Nanda
having considaerable experience working in the housing sector
and Mike Parsons having a background n providing care for
eldery people Further details of thew background and
expenence are set out on pages 50 and 51

Responsibilities and terms of reference

New terms of reference were approved by the Cornmittee

and became effective on 11 November 2015 The pnncipal

responsibilibes of the Committee are to

= Monitor the integnty of the financial statements and any
other formal announcements relating to the Group's financial
position and performance

* Assess whether management has made appropnate
estimates and judgements and to provide advice to
the Board on whether the Annual Report and financtal
statements are far, balanced and understandable

* Keep under review, and monitor the effectiveness of, the
Group's internal controls and nsk management systems

* Monmitor and review the effectiveness of the nsk and ntarnal
audit function

* Monitor and review the effactiveness of the services of
the external auditor, including negotiation of the aucht fee

+ Develop and implement the policy on the supply of non-
audit services by the external auditor

* Review the adequacy and secunty of the Group's
procedures on whistleblowing, anti-bnbery and corruption
and anti-money laundernng

Activities during FY16

Dunng the year there were three Risk and Audit Commitiee
meetings, two of which were held after our IPO with the
schedule of the meetings planned to tie in with the annual
audrt cycle The table on page 52 sets out attendance

at the Committes meehngs held dunng the year

Meetings can also be attended, by inwvitation, by other Directors
and members of the intemal audit and external audrt taams, when
deemed appropnate The Chief Financial Officer, the Director of
Risk and Internal Audit and the external Audit Partner attended all
three meetings dunng the year The members of the Committes
meet with the external audrtor wathout Executive Cirectors or
management at svery meebng attended by the extemal audrtor

Dunng FY16 the key areas of focus for review and

recormnmendation for approval to the Board were

» The FY15 Annual Report and Financial Statements together
with tha report from the external auditor as well as
consideration of the going concem status of the Group

» The Historical Financial Information for tnclusion in the
IPO prospectus

* The half year results including the review undertaken by the
axternal audrtor

The Comrmittee also received reports at each meeting on

* Risk and intemmal audit, Including updates on the nsk
registers and the internal audt plan

= Whistleblowing and anh-bnbery and comuption procedures
and compliance

Significant financial reporting 1ssues

Sigruficant financial reporting 1ssues and judgements reviewed

by the Commuttee dunng FY16 were

* Accounting and tax treatment of the IPQ costs - the
Commuitee received a report from the Chief Financial Officer
setting out the proposed accounting treatment under IAS 32
of the costs thal had been incurred IN connechon with the
IPO In addrion, external advice was sought regarding the tax
treatment of the IPO costs The Committes reviewed and
approved the proposed treatment of these casts

» Shared equrty recewvables - the Committee reviewed the
accounting treatment of future recevables due under the
shared equity schemes that have been used by the Group
over the years The assumptions used in estmating the value
of the uture recewvables and which are reviewed half yearly
relate to the date of the anticipated future receipt, house price
inflation, the discount rate and the new buld premmm

* Share-based payments - external advice was sought in respect
of charges relatng to the Group's sharssave plan and long term
Incentive plan (details of these schemes are detaled in note
32 to the consohidated financial statements) Judgements
had to be made around lapse rates, share performance and the
expected outcome of performance conditions

* Cost caprtalisation of overheads - the Commitiee recemed
a proposal from management analysing the spit of overhead
costs relating to design, planning, commercial, construction,
procurernent, and heaith and safety between those that could
be attnbuted to the cost of the developments to inventory and
those thal relate to general business overhieads o expenses
The assumptions are reviewed annually with the function
heads before bemng proposed to the Committee

Risk management and internal controls

Qur Risk and Internal Audit function was established in the

summer of 2014 with the following key areas of responsibility

*» The design and imptementation of a robust nsk
management framework across the Group to identify,
monitor and manage key business nsks and to establish
a nsk appetite for each key nsk beyend which corractive
acton Is required



Annwal Report and Accounts 2016

+ The develepment of an assurance programme to ascertan
whether the controls around our key business nisks are
designed and operating effectively

Details of how the Group manages the nsk process are set out
on pages 3B and 38 The Director of Risk and Internal Audit
reports at each Committee meeting on any changes to the nsk
register and any areas for improvemesnt

An annual internal audit plan, focusing on the key nsks to
the busmess, is rewiewed and agreed by the Committee its
cycle Is driven pnmarily by nsks idenified in the nsk registers
A separate commercial intemnal audit plan has been put

i place specifically to investigats the management of our
consiruction activities  Findings frorm intemal audits and
recommeanded improvernents are reported to the Committee
The Chairman of the Comnuttee meets regularly with the
Drrector of Risk and Internal Audit Other members of the
Committee and the Board will also meet with the Director

of Risk and internal Audit penodically dunng the year

The Board of Directors recogruses ns overall responsitity for
the Group's system of intemal controls and for monrtenng its
effechveness There s an ongong process foridentfying,
evaluating and managing significant risks However, 1 revwewing
the effeciveness of miemal controls, any internal control system
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss

The Board, on the recommendation of the Risk and Audit
Commutiee, have remamed satisfied that the system of intemal
controls continued to be effective in entifying, assessing and
ranking the vanous nsks facing the Group, and In monitonng

and reporting progress in mitrgating the potential impact on the
business Systems have been in place for the year under review
and up t¢ the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements The Board has approved the Pnncipal Risks and
Uncerntainties set out on pages 40 and 41 of this Annual Report

External auditor
Tha Commiitee 1s responsible for the appointment of the
extarnal audtar, thewr fee and the scops of the annual audd

Auditor independence and performance

Deloitte LLP have been our external auditor since FYDS, the first
audrt of the Company We have had the same Audit Partner
since 2013 but the Audit Director has changed dunng that
penad The next audit tender will 1ake place no later than the
end of 2018

The performance and independence of the auditor and the
waork they perform are reviewead annually following completion
of the external audit The Committes rernamns satsfied as to the
independence and effectiveness of Delotte LLP

The Company has complied throughout the reporting year

with the provisions of the Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companres Market investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Processes and Audit Commitiee Responsibiliies)

Order 2014

Policy on non-audit services

It 1s the Group's practice, whenever pessible, to put non-audit
work out to tender The Board only appoints Oeloitte LLP

to provide non-audit services If the Directors have satisfied
themsalves that the auditor's objectvity and ndependence
have not been compromised A poiicy on non-audit services
has been approved by the Committee, which incorporates the
prowisions of the EU audit reform
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The external auditor 1 appointed to provide audit and audr-
related services, ncluding annual audit of the Group, Parent
Company and non-dormant subsidiary financial statements as
well as the half year review

Ths external auditor is prohibited from providing services

which involve

* Bookkeeping and other services relating to accounting
records and corperate financial statements

* Design and mplementation of financial nformation sysiems

s Any valuation that could have a matenal effect on the
financial statements

* Tax services that depend on a particular accounting
treatment

¢ Recruting executives or providing advice on remuneration

packages

Actuanal services

Management funchons

Internal audit services

Legat, broker, mvestment adwiser or investment banking

services

+ Corporate finance or transaction sennces where the
outcome Is dependent on accounting treatment, or on
a contingent jee basis if rnatenal to the audit firm, or the
outcome mvolves a future or contemporary audit judgement
relating to a matenal balance m the financial statements

* Any other work that 1s prohibited by UK athical guidance

The external auditor may be selected to provide any cther services
that do not fall within audt and audd-refated sennces or that are
not prohibited, subect to a compshtive selection process

Dunng FY15, Deioitte Lt P were appointed as Reporting
Accountants in connecton with the IPQ They were cne of three
firms to be mvited to tender for this work and they were selected
objectvely on the basis of being the prefarmed and mast
expenenced firm for the role, one of therr particular strengths being
thar property expertise A different partner within Delatte was
apponted to ovarsee these services The Commuttee was satisfied
that Delotte managed to martan ndependencs, despia
undertaking both roles at the same tme  Fees payable to Deloitte
wathin FY16 w relabon to transachon-ralated audd and adwsary
services are detaded n note 6 to the consoldated financial
staterments

Whistleblowing, fraud and anti-bribery and corruption
The Committee has reviewed and approved the Group's
oohcies and procedures on whistleblowing, ant-bribery and
corruption, fraud and anti-money laundenng and receives
regular updates from the Company Secretary on comphance
wath the policies across the business

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman
14 November 2016
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Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to presant, on behalf of the Board, the
Remuneration Committee's first Remuneration Report
followang the IPQO, which contains the Remuneration
Policy (subject to a binding vote) and the Annual Report
on Remuneration (subyect to an adwvisory vote)

Work on the Remuneration Policy {the Palicy) began
after the IPO in November 2015 when | was appointed
as Charrman of the Remuneration Cormmittee Since the
IPO, the Committee has reviewed and built on the work
done by the Board on the Company’s remuneration
structure and pohcy in the fead up to the IPO, an

outline of which was published n the prospactus

Our objective Is to have a Policy which supports the
Group's strategy o create an efficient and scalable
business capable of bullding and seling more than 3,000
units per annum to enable us to target top-quartile sector
marging and retums on capital over the medium term

This Pohcy is designed to incentivise and motivate the
leadership team to implermnent the Company's strategic
goals and will also ensure they are alignad with shareholder
expectations This has been a guiding principle for the
Commities This report lays out the core elements of our
Policy and our practice dunng FY16

In our Policy descnption we have worked to provide the
transparency and clanty required to enable our shareholders
to understand the intent of our remunearation

Remuneration Commitiee Members
Mike Parsons {Chairman)

Geeta Nanda

Frank Nelson

John White

Structure of the report

e Annual Statement (pages 58 and 59)

* ‘At a glance’ (pages 60 to 62)

* Remuneratian Palicy (pages 63 to 74)

» Annual Report on Remuneration (pages 74 10 77}

Our core principles of remuneratian

+ To ensure top executives are attracted, retaned and
motivated to dnve the Company In s next stage of
development post-IPC

¢ To ncentvise management in crealing an efficient and
scalable business to support the growth strategy

* To deliver long-term sustainable value to shareholders

FY16 highhights

During FY¥18, the Group has been through a transitonal
process as It moved from a privately owned to a publicly isted
corporate Dunng the year, the Group, the Exacutva Dwectors
and the senor management team have continued to dnve the
Group's investment and growth strategy and to deliver a
high-quality product with constant focus on exceptionat
standards of customer satisfaction Full details of the strategy
and KPIs are contained on pages 30 to 33

The strategy and KPIs for the Group have been the pnmary
factors in setting the Policy to ensure that there i alignment
betwesn performance and reward Further details of how the
performance measures for our annual bonus plan and long term
incentive plan align to our strategy are outhined on page 63

Remuneration Committee decisions made and activity
following the IPO

The Group's remuneration policies and practices were
reviawed extensively in preparation for the IPO to ensure
appropnate remuneration arrangements were in place

o support the Group's strategy following the Iisting of

the Company

Followng the IPO, we have taken the opportunity to
review all the key components of remuneration 1o ensure
that the proposed Policy 15 fit-for-purpose as a listed
Company and aligns with our strategic objectives and
shareholder expectations

In additon, we have undlertaken the following activities as a

Remuneration Commities

+ Determined the Commuttee’s terms of reference

¢ Approved and mplemented four share incentive plans as
detailed later i the report

* Completed the Company's first Remuneration Report as a
isted Company

We shared our Policy with our top sharehotders and the mam
shareholder bodies in October 2016 pnor to its formal
publication This was a valuatile opportuntty to receve
feedback on aur Palicy
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Other key decisions/actions taken during the year included

a) FY16 bonus outcomes

Dunng FY18, the Group delivered record revenue, together
with robust growth in complehons, reservations and profits
Natwithstanding strong 12% growth in underlying cperating
profit for the year of £107 2m (FY15 £85 3m), the more
challenging trading conditions expenenced in Q4 resulted in the
bonus target of £129 Om ({threshold £119 3m} not being achieved
and as a result no bonus is payable relating to this KPI

During the year the Group exchanged on 65 good quality sites
with attractive marging A more measured approach to land
acquisthon was taken in ight of market uncertanty n Q4 As a
result the bonus target for land exchanges of 95 (threshold 88)
was not met and no bonus i1s payable in relation to this KPP

The Group maintains its strong financial position with £52 8m
of net cash at the year end to invest in future land and buid
and to provide an income stream 1o shareholders by way of
dividend — a commutment we made on IPO Strong cash
generation, the net proceeds from IPO, and a more measured
approach to land and build nvestrment resulted in generating a
positve cash inflow agamnst the target cash outflow of £58 Tm
The Executive Directors were awarded the maximum bonus in
relation to thus KPI

The continued focus on homeowner satisfaction has led to an
11th year of being awarded the Fwve Star ratng for customer
sabsfaction by the HBF While this is a fantastic result for the
Group, the targeted performance of 93% (threshold 91%) has
not been achisvad Consequently, no bonus 1s payable In
refation to this KPI

b) Resignation of the Chief Financial Officer

On 1 October 2016, the Group announced the resignation

of Nick Maddock, the Chief Financial Officar Nick will remain

n post and a leaving date mn Q1 2017 will be agreed in due
course Nick has played a pivotal role in transforming McCarthy
& Stone over the past five years during his time as the Chief
Financial Officer and | would like to thank him for his service
dunng his tenure

At the tme of the publicaton of this report, details of his
termination arrangements are beng finalised by the
Committee The details will be published in the FY17 Directors’
Remuneration Report

Remuneration arrangements for his successor will be in
Iine with the proposed Pohicy, if accepted by shareholders,
and details will be published in the FY17 Dwectors’
Remuneration Report

c} Executive Director salaries

As outhned above, our Executive Direclors and the serior
management team have continued to support the Company
through the next stage of development as a listed orgarisation

Dunng the year, the Committes considered the salaries for the
three Executive Directors (effective from 1 November 2016}

As part of this review, the Chief Executive Officer was awarded
an increase of 2% (£475,000 to £484,500) Noncreass was
awarded to the outgoing Chief Financial Officer
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John Tonkiss was promoted to the newly created role of
Nahonal Operattons Director on 1 September 2016 John
had previously been responsible for the five northern

ragions {West Midiands, East Midlands, North West, North
East and Seotiand) and upon his promotion he has taken

on additional respansibilities for our four southem regiens
(South West, Southern, South East and North London) which
results in John overseeing all of our regional operations

The Committee awarded a salary nse to John compnsing an
increase as part of the annual review in line with the general
employes population and an increase to reflect his promotion
and addibonal responsibiiies  John's new salary will be
£300,000 {from £280,000 a 7% increase)

Under the voting regime that now governs these matters,
two resalutions will be put to shareholders at the AGM in
January 2017

We will first seek approval for the Policy (pages 63 to 74) This
outiines the Company’s Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors effsctive from the 2017 AGM The vote is binding on
the Comparty and 1s intended to apply for up to three years

The second is seeking approval for the Annual Report on
Remuneration for the financial year ended 31 August 2016
(pages 74 to 77) It details decrsions and actions taken by the
Committes based on the performance of the Group and
remuneration consequencas This section of the reportis
subject to an annual advisory vote

Full details of the resolutions are set out in the separate Notce
of AGM

Cur goal has been to be thoughtful and clear in the layout of
both parts of the report and | look forward to your support on
both resolutions

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman
14 November 2016

Rl

Noateg
An evaluation of the Remuneraton Comimitiee s effectivaness witl be conductad after
aiult year of operatin

Thus report has been prepared m accordance with Schedulg 8 to the Large and
Medwim slzed Compantes and Groups [Accounts and Reports) Regutations 2008 as
amended In 2013 the provsions of the UK Corpavate Governance Code and the
Listing Rutes The repor conmats of three sectons

+  The Annuat Statement by the Remuneration Comwmttize Charman and assoclated

at a glancg section*

*  The Pokcy which sets out the Compary s Remuneration Policy for Directors and
tha key factors that werg laken Into account i ss1ung the Policy Thes Policy is
intended 10 apply for thiee years fromits dais of approval o the 2017 AGM

* The Annusl Report on Remunaration which sals cul payments made (o the
Dhrectors and detalls the link between Group porformance and ramunsdation
for FYi6
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Af a glance

Introduction
In this section, we set out the remuneration outcomes for FY16 and an overview of our proposed Remuneration Policy for FY17
(subyect to a binding vote by shareholders at our 2017 AGM)

2016 FINANCIAL YEAR

Remuneration outcomes

FY16 was a transitional year for the Company as we successfully floated in November 2015 to become a listed Company
This marks a significant changa for the Company and for the roles of our Executive Directors

Qur FY16 results and the associated annual bonus outcomes outlined below reflect the performance measures and targets
put in place from the start of the financial year and their leval of satistaction

FY16 annual bonus outcomes

Percentage Anmual bonus value achived!
Thrashoid Targst AT of maximum
perionmance performance parfomarncs Actual parformance Clve MNick John
Performance condition Wasghting required requirad required performance achleved Fanton Maddock Tonkiss
Undertying operating
profit? 70% £1193m £1200m £1387m £1072m 0% - - -
Cash fiow 10% (£837m) (E587m) (£337m) £484m 100%  £61,750 - £36,400
Land exchanges 10% 83 a5 100 65 0% - - -
Customer sabtisfaction 10% 91% 93% 95% 90% 0% - - -
Total 100% - - - - 10% £61,750 - £36,400
Notas:
1 Under the terms of the FY16 annual Bonus, 25% for cach alemant Is payatsle for acheeving the thresholg parfammance, 50% 1s payable for achleving target performance
increasing (o 100% for achievng m part 115 by these pownts are caloulated on a straght hne basis, Borws up 10 100% of salary 15 pad

cash with any bonus above 100% of salary belng paid in shams which are deferred for lhree years subject o continued empicyrnent,

2 Underlyng operaling prafil 1s calcudated by adding amortisation of brand and exceptional agminstraiive expenses to operaing orofit See note 8 to the consofidated financial
stataments for further information

3 Nick Maddock 15 not gligibla for an anviual bonua 83 per the nilas of the McCarthy & Stone Annual Bonus Plan a8 he wil be under netice when the bonus will be paid

The detail of the cutcomas can be found in the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 74 The FY16 bonus will be paid entirely
in cash No deferred shares will be awarded since 10% of the maximum performance was achievad

Long-term incentives awarded
Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} were made on 25 November 2015 on the following basis

FY16 LTtP awargs Facen ® ol

Number of valug gt date of grant vestng at Pertormance
Executiva Direstors shares awarded (%% of salary) thrashoid paried
Clive Fenton 263,888 100% 25% 3 years
Nick Maddock 166,666 100% 25% 3vyears
John Tonkiss 155,555 100% 25% 3 years

The awards were granted as nil-cost share ophons and vesting will be subject to achweving a challenging shiding scale of arrungs
par share (EPS), mturn on caprtal employed (ROCE) and relative total shareholder return (relative TSR) aganst a bespoke group of
housebuilders over a three-year performance penod The performance scheduls for these measures 1s as follows

Maasure Weighting  Thweshold periormance Maxmum performance
Cumulative EPS 30% 614dp 69 8p
FY18 ROCE 30% 22% 25%
Relative TSR! 40% Equaltoindex Index+75%pa

1 The relative TSA comparator group compnses the unweighted average TSR of the followang housebulders Barratt Bovis Ballway Crest Nichoison Persimmon Fedrow and
Taylor Wimpey
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Equity exposure of the Board
As a result of the 1PO, the Executive Drrectors have sigrificant sharenoldings in the Company as set out beiow, providing thern
with a matenal stake in the business

The following chart sels cut the percentage value of all subsisting imerests in the equity of the Company held by the Executive
Directors at 31 August 2016

The Company's minumum shareholding requirements are currently 200% of base salary for all Executve Dwectars

0%  100% 200% 300% 400% S00% 600% 700%  800%  900%
T ] 1 T I f T I | R
Clive Fenton Shareholding requirement A
(% of salary)
Value of beneficially owned shares . |
Value of/gain on interests over shares
(i e unvested/unexercised awards) I
Nick Maddock  Shareholding requirement P
(9% of salary)
Value of benefically owned shares T
Valua offgain on nterests over shares
(1 & unvested/unexercised awards) |
John Tonkiss Shareholding requimement S
(% of salary)

Value of beneficialiy owned shares I ————

Value of/gain on interests over shares
(e unvestad/unexercised awards) —

The number of shares of the Company in which current Directors had a beneficial interest as at 31 August 2016 are set outin
detail on page 76
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

Implementation of the Policy
On IPO, the remuneration arrangements for the Group were updated to reflact the Company’s new public status and to align with

Group strategy as we transioned into a Iisted environment

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and considered the key components of remuneration since the IPO to ensure that the
proposed Policy is fit-for-purpose and aligned with the expectations of a listed company

Our proposed Policy {summansed below} has been designed to aign remuneration of our Exacutive Directors with Group strategy
and to dnive continued success within a remuneration framework that meets the shareholder and governance expectations of a

FTSE 250 company

Overview of Pollcy for FY17

frewr |11 +2 +a
Base salary H The base salanes for Ciive Fenton, Nick Maddock and John Tonkiss are
currently £475,000, £300,000 and £280,000 respectively For FY17, base
salanes for the Executive Directors are Clive Fenton £484,500 (2% ncrease),
Nick Maddock £300,000 (no increase), John Tonkiss £300,000 (7% increase
to reflect promotion and increased responsibhbes} The new salanes are
gffective as of 1 November 2016

Penstion The maximum contrbution into the defined contnbution plan or a salary
‘ supplement in leu of pension will be 20% of gross base salary
—

Standard bensfits will be provided See the Paliy for further details
For FY17 the maximurm bonus opportunity will be 150% of salary

Benefits

The performance condiions and therr weightings for the FY17 annual bonus
Annual are as follows
bonus o Group operatrg profit (70%)

plan (ABP) * Group full year cash flow (10%)
s Cash » Group customer satisfaction (10%;}
* Defarred + Group land exchanges (109}
share award
One-third of any bonus earned will be in the form of deferred shares

The ABP contains clawback and malus prowisions Please refer to page 69 for
further detais

The performanca conditions for the FY17 LTIP awards will he cumulative EPS,
ROCE and relative TSR against the comparator housing group

All three measures are assessed over a three-year performance penod and
are equally weighted

LTIP For the achisvement of threshold performance, 25% of the element will vast
S
with straight-line vesting i between to maximum performance

In FY17, an LTIP award of 150% of salary will be awarded to the Executive
Directors

The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions Please refer to page 69 for
further details

The currant feas for the Non-Executive Dingctor roles are
+* Charman £230,000

NED fees * Board fee £53,000

o SID adchtional fee £10,000

« Committes Chaiman fee (per Commuttee) £10,000

The Committee proposes to implement the Policy for FY17, subject to shareholder approval at our 2017 AGM Further details of
the Palicy and how our proposed Policy aligns to Group strategy are set out in the fellowing section
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Remuneration Policy

Introduction

In accordance with the remuneration reporting regufations, the Policy (the Policy) as set out below will, subject to shareholder
approval from the 2017 AGM in January, become formaliy effective at the conclusion of that meeting and 1s intended to apply for
the pencd up to thres years from the date of approval

The Company's core principles of remuneration are

s To ensure top exacutives are attracted, retamed and mofivated to dnve the Company in its next stage of development post-IFO
* To incentivise management in creating an efficient and scalable business to support the growth strategy

+ To defiver long-term sustainable value to shareholders

The Committee will review annually all elements of the remuneration including the base satary, annual bonus levels, proportion of
bonus to be deferred into shares and the annual and tong-term ncentive performance condmions for the Executive Directors and
selected members of the senior management teamn, drawing on trends and adjustments made 10 the rernuneration of all
employees across the Group and taking Into consideration

* QOur business strategy

s Overall Group performance

e Market condiions, including practice of other housebuilders

« Views of key stakeholders of the business

» Corporate govemance considerations

»

Changing views of institutional shareholders and ther representative bodies
Qur Policy and its link to our Group strategy
The Group's strategy Is fard out on pages 30 and 31
Ensunng the aiignment of the proposed Folicy to the Group's stralegy was key for the Remuneration Comymittes in developing the
proposed Policy below The key elements of the Group's strategy and how its successfl mplementation 1s inked to the Executive
Directors' remunegration are set out in the followang table
Our growth strategy
Fatain and
Conmvnuad Equily ownarstup  neward Executive
Policy (Wom the dato of Increased Sates produci Operations! Focus on an! reteniion ¢! - DFectons 10 deliver
sharsholdar approvad] vesimont prowth innoration atidency pariormance shares the sirplegy
Annual bonus metrics s v F4 e ra 4 e
The maxkram bonus Land exchanges  Profit, cash flow  Customer Profit, cash low  Profit cash flow
m%moimm * Thosuccassclow o Tholncrnse satisfacuron + The success in *+ The success in
5 an vesimant anad i sales fi maximising achiaving top sacior
avard) dolverabia under he daveioping our Riure  ba measwred ?’ﬁ,;';,i;?.l"l"‘“" macgps end eotum
ABP will no1 excead i30% pipsing wil be by increased ol wilbo on capital wil be
of a participant's annual refaciad through proktability and nncvaih ) Ihvough mawsurad by
baes salary tha rumber of cash low mepsursdt throuph ncreated proflabity  Incisased proklabilly
land exchanges custemer sativipction 80 cash tow afvd cash kow
compigled curing raungs wil be
tha yoar relacted in wcraased
profapity and
cash low
LTIP metrics s ' ' v s
Maximum annual swartls TSR EPS, TSR EPS, ROCE TSR
riormaly 150% of salary + Growing tha s AninContve to grow * The success
Compuny s 6s3ats salas in the longar n maximiging
Awards will vest a1 the ond wil be resaciod n torm wik isad 1 EPS operational gfficlancy
of thres ysers ihe valug of tha growth, Tha success wi ba measurad
Compeny whch of {hig elermant of the through the long twm
Foi FY17 tha perlormance wil b meéasvad strategy shoukd be EPS as well ag
conditions for awaras pre through tho refacied i long-term ROCE. i addidon
cumulativa EPS ROCE Compary’s relaiiva TSR periormanca sustaned vahie
and relativa TSR which are TSR performanca genaration wit
aquely weightad bareflectad in
the Company s
TSR perlormence
Share Incentive Plan v rd v
(S4PY
Save Asa You Earn Plan Vs v 4
{Sharesave)
Minimum shareholding e

requiremants
+ 200% of safary for o
Executive Direcions

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Palicy table

Elamen! o

How H supporns the Groud's short and long tam

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Qparaton

Maxymum oppoctunity

Base satary

Provides a base level of remunaration to

support recraiment and retention of Execulve
Exractors wih the necessary expansnce and

axpertise (o defiver the Group s strategy

An Exacutive Director's base salary is sat on
appoiniment and rewewed annually or when
there is @ change n position or responsibiily

When determining an appropriate laval of

safary, the Committes considers,

* Ramuneration practices withn the Group

» The general parformancs of the Group

» Salarigs within the ranges pald by the
companies in the comparatar group used
for remunamtion benchmarking

* Anty change In scope role and
rasponsibiiias

» Tha econamic emvironment

Indhiduals who are racruited or promoted

to the Board may on occasion, have thew
salanes set below [he targeted poficy leval until
thay becoms estabhshed in ther role In such
cases subsequent incraases In salary may be
tugher than the genersal rises tor amployess
unil the target positioning 18 achisved

The Commiitee ensures thet maximum
salary levels ae st lina with
companies of a semilar size to McCarhy
& Stana operating i a simuar sector

The compenias i the comparator group
arg the constituents of the FTSE 250
and sacior paer organisations of

4 swnilar size

The Committea ntends to raviaw tha
comparator groups each year and may
80a or remove companigs from the
group as | considers approprfate Any
changas to the comparator group will be
in the secilon headed Imptemaentation of
Remuneration Policy, In the following
financiaf year

In general salary incraases for Exacutive
Directors wil ba in line with the increase
for employsas

The Cormpany will 3at out in the saction
headed Implamentation ¢f Remuneration
Policy Exacutve Director satardes for that
year and the folowing year

Benefita

Provides a benefits package in line with
prachce relative o its comparator group to
anabls the Company to racruit and rstain
Exscutiva Directors with the axpadence and
axparlise to defiver the Group's strategy

Tha Exacutive Directors typically recenve
prvate medical nsurance lifa insurance and a
car or car allowance. The Cormmties retains
the Nexdtikly lo provide other benalils

Tha Committes recognises the naed to
maniain sutable flexbility In the benefits
provided (o ensurs it I8 abla to support the
objective of aftracting and retainmng personnel
w1 order to deliver the Group strategy
Addmonal benefits may therefore be offered
such as relocation alowances on recrutmant.

The maximum will ba set at the cost of
providing the benefits described

Penslons

Providas a pension provision in kne with
pvactice relative to its comparator group to
enable the Company 10 recnit and ratain
Exgcutva Dirgctors with the expenance and
expertise fa defver the Group s strategy

The Company offers a Group Parsonal
Panslon schema Tha Exacutiva Directors are
entitiad to recelve & maximum employer
contnbyution into the Group Personal Pansion
schama or a salary supplement in lisu of
pension of 209 of basic salary per annum

The maximum contnbution into the
Group Parsonal Pansion schema or a
salary supplement in Hey of pension wil
be 20% of gross basic salary

The Company will set out i the saction
headed tmplementation of Remunaration
Policy, in the following financial year the
pension contribytions for that year for
aach ol the Exgeutive Diraclors
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Eement of How it suppos the Group 5 short
ramuneiion and long tornt gic objacth D Meermum opgor lunity Peariormance metrics
Annual end The ABP prowdes a significant  The Comymitiee wll dalonming the  The maximum benus (ncluding  An award under tha ABP is subject
Deferred Bonus  incantive to the Exacutiva bonus to ba awardad iokowing the  any part of the bonus deferrad to satisfying financial and strategic/
Plan (ABR) Owrectors linked (o and of the relevant fnancal year o shates) dofiverablounder  opamtional performanca/personal

achlevement in delivenng
gouls the; are closely gligned
wilh the Group's stratagy
and the creation of valua

for sherabwolders

In particyiar, tha ABP supports
the Compary's objectvas
allowing the setting of arnval
based on the business
sirategy at the time meaning
that a wider range of
performance matnes cgn
beused that are refevant
and achiovable

The Committes has discraion
to defer part of the bonus
sarnad in shares under

the ABP

The advantage of delaral 1.

= increased alignment
between Exacutive Directors
and shargholtors craafed
through deferred shares
and the incraasad equity
staka of menagamant in
the Company

« Vasting of defened shares
am subject to an Executhva
Dwactor s contnuing
amployment which providas
an affective lock In

The Compary will set Qut i the
saciion haaded Implermentation
of Femuneration Policy, in the

ioliowing financial year, the nature
of the targets and thetr weighting

for pach year
Datails of the perfarmance

condiions, targsts and thelr lavel

of satlsfaction for the year baing
reportad on will be set out In the
Annual Report on Remuneration

The Commities can datarmine
that part of the bonus gamed
under the ABP 5 delivered as
an gward of shares

The maximum value of
daferred sharas 1s 50%
of the bonus asrmed

Tha portion of bonus earned to

be defemed into Company shares
for the year being mported on will

be sat out in tha Annual Report
on Ramuneration,

Thes maln term™s of these

awands arg

= Miwmum deferral penod of
thras years during which
no periormance conditions
wik apply

 Tha partcipant s cantinuad
employment at the end of the
daferral pgnod unless ha/she
is a good leaver

The Commntes may award
dhndend equivatents on those
shares to the participants to
the extant that they vast

The Committes has the
discretion to apply a holding
penod of two yaars post vesting
of defarred shares

The ABP contans clawback and
malus provisions  Plaase refer to
page 69 lor further details

the ABP will not excesd
150% of 8 pericipart s annual
base salary

Percantage of bomus

maxmum eained for levels

of performance

* Threshold 256% of
maximum bonus

« On tanget 50% of
maxkmum bonus

* Maximum 100% of
maxknum bonus

The annual bonus will be pasd
in cash and deferred shares

parformance conditions and targets
measured over a parod of one
financial yaar

A minimum of 50% of the bonus shall

be based on financial perfarmancs
measures The Committae will determing
the bonus 10 be defivered following the
and of the relavant finencial year

Tha Committee rs of the opruon that
given the commercial sensitty artsing
i relation to the detailed financial targets
used for the bonus, disclosing precise
tempats for the ABP in advance would
not be i sharaholder interests Targets
performance achaved and awards
made wilf be published at the end of the
performance parod so shareholders can
fully assass the bass for any pay-cuts
undar the ABP

n excaptional circumstancas tha

Comimutias retans the discretion tor

« Change the performance measures
and targats and the wewghting attached
{o the performance measuras
angf targels pert-way thwough
a parformance yaarf thereis a
significant and material svent which
causes tha Commties to baligva the
onginal maasurgs, waghtings and
targals ane no longar appropriate

+ Maka downward or upward
adjstrnents 1o tha amount of Honus
samed msulling {rom the application
of the periprmance measuras, if the
Commitiaa bekeve that the bonus
outcomes ams not 8 lair gnd accurate
refieciion of busingss performance

Ary acjustmants or discrohon apphed by
the Committoa will ba fuliy disclosed in
the following yeer s Remunaration Report

www mecarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
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Elamartt of How it supports tha Group 8 short
raTAnAration and long tsrm suategc obyeciives  Operation Maxinum opportunity Performance mefrics
LTIP The purpese of the LTIP is Awands are grantad annually Normal annual maxmuem Tha performance conditions for the
to Incentivise and reward to Exacutve Directors In the vakme of 150% of annual base  FY17 LTIP awards are cumulatihve
Executive Dyectors inreighion  form of a conditional share salary based on the market EPS, ROCE and TSR The walghiings
1o long-term performeance award or a nil cost option valus at the data of grant set of which are outined on paga 62
and achievemant of Group In gecordanca with the nulas
strategy Datais of the parformance of the LTIP The Committee may change tha
cenditions for grants made balance of the measures, or use
This will batter align w the year and the future In exceptional crcumstances  differant measures for subsequant
Exscutive Diractors’ intarests  financial year wil be set the Comymiitea may grant an  awards. as appropriate
wath the long-temm interasts out in the Annwel Report award with a maxunum of
of the Group and act as a on Remuneration 200% of annual base salary No matarial change will be made
retention machanigm s 25% of the award will vast to the type of parformance
Awards wAll vest at the end of for thrashold perfonmance conditiong withous peior
The use of relative TSR a threa-yaar pariod subjact to * 100% of the award wilvest  sharehottar consuttation
maasures the success of * The Executive Dwactor's for maxymum performanca
the implermentation of the continued employmant In axcaptonal circumstances the
Group's strategy In delivenng at the dats of vasting There s straught-ine vesung Committes retans the discration to
a retum sbova our » Satisisction of the batwean thesa polnta « Vary, substitute or wave the
peer group performance condiions perfarmance conditions apphng
to LTIP awards if the Committae
The use of thyee-year ‘The Commitiee may award considers It appropniate and that
EPS and ROCE answas dividend equivalanis on the new performanca conditiona
Exacutive Directars are awards fo the axtant that are dosmed reasonable end are
focused on sustainable thase vast not materially less difficult to satisty
long-term financial then the original conditions
performance The Commiites has the * Maka downward of upward
discration to apply a holding adustments o the amount vesting
pariod of two years post undor tha LTIP resulting from the
vesting of LTIP awsards application of the performance
measwres if the Committos bakave
The LTIP comams clawback that the outcomes are not a fair ang
and malus provisions accuraie reflaction of business
Plaass rafer to page 89 performance
for further detads
All employes The SIP and Sharasave Exacutive Diractors are The maximum level of 1n accordance with the lagislation the
share plans - SIP  are all employas shars ahgible to participate in both participation set by Company may imposs objective
and Sharasave ownership plans which have  the SIP and Sharasave. fagistation from bme to time pariormance conditions and/or
beon desgned {0 ancourage length ¢f serce/hours worked/lavel
all employeas to become The Executive Directors shall of remunaration to determine the
sharsholgers in the Company  be entitled to participata in laval of awards mads under tha SIP
and thereby align thefr any other all employee
witarasts with shareholders arrangement implemantad by
tha Company
Minfmum Tha Committee has adoptad formal sharehalding gindalines that wil encourage the Executive Diractors to 'build up over a five-year period

shareholding
requireameant

and then subsaquently hold a sharsholding equivalent 1o a parcentage of base salary Adharencs to these guldelines Is a condiition of
continuad participation in the aquity incentive arrangaments  This requirement ansures that the interests of Executive Directars and thosa of

shareholders are closely aligned

Currantly the requirement 1s for all Exgcutvg Droctors to build up a shareholding equal to 200% of salary

The Committea retains the drscrotion to incraase tha shareholding requiremants.
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lilustrations of the application of the Palicy
The charts below iliustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based on salanes at the start of
FY17, under three different performance scenarnics (i} mmimum, {ii) on-target, and {ili) maximum The table below these charls sets
out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these scenanos The elements of remuneration
have been categonsed into three components (i} fixed, (i) annual bonus {including deferred bonus), and (il LTIP

Chief Executiva Officer (Clive Fenton) {£'000}

McCarthy & Stoneple 67

Chief Financtal Otficer (Nick Maddock) (£'0006)

Meamum [30% JED 35% 2,062 Maximum |30% s 35% *1,281
Ortarget |42% l 25% I B% L1485 On-targel {62% 5% 3% 1999
Mirmen ! 100% 608 Mumwum [100% 381
OFfsd (1B CLTP OFfusa COBerzs OULTP
National Operations Director (John Tonkiss] (£'000)
Maamum [30% 35% [35% 1,278
On-target [42% 25% [:ms 1893
Minimum  [100% 376
Ot Dtoxs ITLP
Elament Description Mirimum Target Maxdmum
Fixed Salary, benefits' and pension  Included Ingiuded Included
Annual bonus  Annual bonus (including No annual vanable 50% of maximum bonus  100% of maximum bonus
deferred shares)
Maxdrmum opporturity of
150% of salary
Lne Award under the LTI No mutiple year vanable  65% of the maximum 100% of the maxmum
award award
Maximum annual award of
150% of salary
Notes.

1 Based on FY18 benglits payments a5 per the Single Rgure Tabie The actual banefits paid for FY17 will only be known at the end of tha financiat year
2 Sespage 74 for the SiNgla Figure Table and the accompanying notes
3 Inaccordance with tha regutations share price growth has not bean includad. In addition dividend equivalents have nat been added to the deferred shares and LTIP gwards
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Pay at nsk
The charts below set out the singte figure for each Executive Director based on whether the elements reman 'at nsk’ For example

» Payment s subject to continuing employmant for a perod (deferred shargs and LTIP awards)
» Performance condinons have to still to be satisfied (LTIP awards)
» Elements are subject to malus or clawback for a period, over which the Company can racover sums paid ar withhold vesting

Further details of what tnggers clawback or malus are sat out on page 69

Figures have been calculated based on target performance (fixed elements plus 50% of the maximum annual bonus and 65% of
the maxirmum LTIP} The charts have bean based on the same assumptions as set out on the previous page for the diustrations of

the application of the Remuneraton Policy

[ 1

Chartremoved

1
S

Chartramoved

-
]

Chart removed
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Malus and clawback

In ne with best practice, the ABP and the LTIP include malus and clawback provisions in order {6 ensure that payments
are not made to Executive Directors i circumstances which are subsequently deemed 1o not have warranted a payment
{or have warranted a reduced payment)

Malus Is the adjustmeant of unpaud bonus and deferred shares under the ABP, outstanding LTIP awards and deferred bonus
shares as a result of the occurrence of one or more crcumstances listed below The adjustment may result in the value being
reduced o zero

Clawback 1s the recovery of payments or vested awards under the ABP and vested LTIP awards as a result of the occurrence of
one or more circumstances listed below Clawback may apply to all or part of a participant’s award and may be effected, among
other means, by requinng the transfer of shares, payment of cash or reduction of awards or bonuses

The circumstances in which malus and clawback could apply are as follows

= The discovery of a matenal misstaternent resulting in an adjustment in the avdited consolidated accounts of the Company

+ The discovery that the assessment of any perforrance target or condition in respect of an ABP or LTIP award was based on
error, or naccurate or migleading information

* The discovery that any information used to determine the number of orcinary shares subject to an ABP or LTIP award was
based on error, or Inaccurate or misleading mformation

s The action or conduct of a holder of an ABP or LTIP award which, in the reasonable opinion of the Commuittes, amounted to
fraud or gross misconduct

+ Ewvents or behaviour of a holder of an ABP or LTIP award leading to the censure of the Company by a regulatory authonty or
having a significant detnmental impact on the reputation of the Group, prowided that the Commuittee 1s satisfied that the relevant
holder of an ABP or LTIP award was responsible for the censure or reputational damage and that the censure or reputational
damage 1 atinbutable to him

Malus and clawback may be operated under the ABP and LTIP, as set out below

Annual Bonus Plan - cagh Annual Bonus Plan - deferrad shargs Long Term Incantive Plan

Maius Up 10 the date of payrment of To the end of the three-year To the end of the three-year
a cash bonus deferral penod vesting penod

Clawback Three years post the bonus n/a Two years post vesting
determination

The rules of the Plans provde sufficient powers to enforce malus and clawback where required

Discretion
The Committee has discretion in several areas of policy as set out in this report

The Committee may also exercise operaticnal and administrative discretions under relevant Plan nules approved by shareholders
as set out n those rules and n relation to the SIP and Sharesave, as permitted by the relevant legistation In addition, the
Commuttee has the discretion to amend the Policy wath regard to minor or admsnistrative matters where it would be, in the opimon
of the Committee, disproportionate to seek or await shareholder approval

Any use of discretion will, where relevant, be explained in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the following year

It 1s the Committee's intention that commutrments made in line with 1ts policies pnor to Admssion wili be honoured, even f the
fuliilment of such commitments 15 post the Company’s first AGM following Admisston, notwithstanding that they may be inconsistent
with the Polcy

Recruitment peolicy

The Company's principle s that the remuneration of any new recrutt will be assessed in ine with the same pnnciples as for the
Executive Directors, as set out in the Policy However, the flexibility provided by the recrutment palicy will allow the Company to
atiract the Hest taient by prowding an appropnate package The Commitiee 1s mindful that t wishes to avoid paying rmore than it
considers necessary to secure a preferred candidate of the appropnate calibre and with the appropnate expenence needed for
the role In setting the rernuneration for new recruits, the Committee will have regard to guidelines and shareholder sentiment
regarding one-off or enhanced short-term or long-term incentive payments as well as gving consideration for the appropnateness
of any performance measures associated with an award
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The Company's detatled policy when sstting remuneration for the appomntment of new Directors s summansed i the table below

Ramunaration slament Cvsrview of recrtmant poicy

Pnnciples The Company's principle is that the remuneration of any naw recruit will be assessed in line
with the same pnnciples as for the Executve Directors

Where an existing ernployes 1s promoted to the Board, the policy set out above would apply
from the date of promotion but there would be no retrospective apphication of the Policy in
relaton {o subsisting incentive awards or remuneration arrangements Accordingly, prevailing
elements of the remuneration package for an exsting employee would be honoured and form
part of the ongoing remuneration of the person concemead These would be disclosed to
shareholders in the Remungration Report for the refevant financial year

Salary, benefits and pension These will be set in fine with the Policy for existing Executive Directors

Annual bonus Maximum annual parttcipation will be set i ine with the Company's Policy for existing
Executive Drectors and will not exceed 150% of salary
LTIP Maxirmum annual participation will be set in line with the Company’s Policy for existing

Executive Directors and will nat exceed 150% of salary in normal circumstances and 200% of
salary in exceptional crrcumstances

‘Buyout’ of incentives forfeited Whers the Committee determines that the individual circumstances of recrutment justifies the
on cessation of employment provision of & buyoult, the equivalent value of any ncentives that will be forfefted on cessaton
of an Executive Director's previous employment will be calculated taking into account
the following
= The proportion of the perforrance penod completed on the date of the Executive
Director's cessation of employment
» The performance conditions attached to the vesting of these incentives and the ikelthood
of them being satisfied
« Any other terms and condilions having a matenal effect on their valug

The Commiitee may then grant up to the same value of any incentives forferted, where
possible, under the Company's ngentive plans To the extent that it 1s not possible or practical
to provide the buyout within the terms of the Company's existing incentive plans, a bespoke
arrangement will be used

Maximum vanable The maximum vanable remuneration which may be granted in normal circumstances
remuneration {excluding buyouts) Is 300% of salary {350% of salary if the maximurn LTIP award made)

The Company's Policy whan setting fees for the appomtment of new Non-Executive Directors 1$ to apply the Policy which applies
to the current Non-Executive Directors

Payment for loss of office

The Committee will honour Executive Directors’ contractual entitliements Service contracts do not contan hquidated damages
clauses If a contract 1s to be terminated, the Committes will determing such mitigation as it considers far and reasonable in each
case There is no agreement between the Company and its Exscutive Directors or employees, providing for compensation for loss

of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

The Committee reserves the nght to make addittonal payments where such payments are made in good faith in discharge of an
existing legal obligation (or by way of damages for breach of such an cbligation), or by way of settlement or compromise of any
clam ansing in connection with the termmation of an Executive Director’s office or employment
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Treatment on cessation of employment

Principle

The Comrruties will nonour Executive Directors' contraciual entitlements if a contract is 10 be terminated,
the Committee will determine such mitigation as it considers far and reasonable in each case

Newly appointed Executive Directors will not have a notice penod of longer than 12 months

Salary, benefits
and pension

These will be pad dunng the notice pertod The Company has discretion to make a payment as set out
above In addihon, provision 15 retaned to make a payment in reu of notice

The Company 18 entitled to dismiss an Executive Director without notice in certan speciied
crcumstances, such as gross miscenduct or following any senous or persistent breach of any of the
terms of the relevant service contract

ABP cash awards

Good leavers Performance conditions will be measured at the bonus measurement date Where the
Indwidual s eligible for a bonus, t will normally be pro-rated for the period worked dunng the financial year

Other leavers: No bonus payable for year of cessation

Discretion: The Committee has the follovang elements of discretion

* To determing that an executive 1s a good leaver: It s the Committea's intention only to use this
discretton In circumstances where there is an appropnate business case which will be explaned
1 full to shareholders

» To determine whether to pro-rate the bonus for tme The Committee’s normal policy Is that it
will pro-rate bonus for ime It 1s the Commuttee’s intention to use discretion net to pro-rate
in crcumstances where there 1s an appropnate business case wiuch will ba axplained in full
to shareholders

ABP share awards

Good leavers' All subsisting deferred shares will vast at the end of the onginal deferral penod
Other leavers Lapse of any unvested deferred shares

Discretion. The Cormmitiee has the following slements of discretion

* To datermine that an executwe 1 a good leaver itis the Commuttee’s mtention only to use this
discretion in crcumstanices where there 1s an appropnate business case which will be explamned
in full to sharehociders

+ Tovest deferred shares at tha end of the onginal deferral penod or at the date of cessaton The
Committee will make this determination depending on the type of good leaver reason resulting
in the cessation

* To dstermine whether 10 pro-rate the mavamum number of shares for the time from the date of grant
to the date of cessation The Committee's normal policy is that it will not pro-rate awards for tme
The Commuittee will determine whether to pro-rate based on the circumstances of the Executive
Owector's departure

LTIP

Good leavers' Pro-rated for time and performance in respect of each subsisting LTIF award,
Other leavers: Lapse of any unvested LTIP awards

Discretion- The Committee has the following stements of discretion

+ To determine that an executive Is a good leaver it is the Committes's ntention only to use this
discrebon in circumstances whers there 1s an appropnate business case which will be explained
in full to shareholders

¢ To measure performance over the onginal performance pencd or at the date of cessation The
Commuttes wil make this determination depending on the type of good leaver reason resulting
in the cessation

* To determine whather to pro-rate the maxmum number of shares for the time from the date of
grant to the date of cessation The Committee’s normal policy 1S that ¢ will pro-rate awards for tme
It 13 the Committee’s intention to use discretion not to pro-rate In crcumstances where theré 15 an
appropriate business case which will be explained in full to sharaholders

Other contractual
obligations

There are no other contractual provistors other than those set out above agresd pnor to 27 June 2012

A good lsaver reason is defined as cessation in the following circurnstances

Death

lii-health

Injury or disabiity
Redundancy
Retrement

® & & & 8 8 b

Employing company ceasing to be a Group company
Transfer of employment to a company which 1s not a Group company
At the discretion of the Commmuttea {as descnbed above)

Cessation of employment in crcumstances other than those set out above 1s cessation for other reasons and will be treated as

‘bad lsavery’
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Change of control

The Committee’s policy on the vesting of incentives on a change of control is summansed below

Name of Incentive Plan

Change of control discretion

ABP cash awards

Pro-rated for time and performance tc the date of the change of control

The Comimuttee has discretion regarcing whether 10 pro-rate the bonus for trne The Commitiee's
policy is that it will normally pro-rate the bonus for tirme it 1s the Commuttee’s intention to use s
discretion not to pro-rate in circumstances only where there is an appropnate business case
which will be explamed in full to shareholders

ABP deferred share awards

Subsisting deferred share awards will vast on a change of control

The Committes has discretion regarding whether o pro-rate the award for time The Commuttee’s

normal policy 1s that it will not pro-rate awards for tme The Committes will maks this
determination depending on the circumstances of the change of control

LTIP

pro-rated to time and performance

The number of shares subject to subsisting LTIP awards will vest on a change of control,

In normal circumstances the Committes will pro-rate for tme The Committee will only wave
prorating n exceptional circumstances where it views the change of controf as an event

which has provided exceptional enhanced value to shargholders which will be fully explained
to shareholders

In all cases the performance condiions must be satlsfled

Non-Executive Director remuneration
How it supparts the Group s

Elamant of short and tong temm strategic Performance
romuneration chiactvas Cperation Opportunity metrics
Non-Executive  Prowides a leve! of fees  The Board is responsible for The fees for Non-Executive None
Birector and to support recrutment  settng the remuneration of the Drectors and the Chairman
Chawrrnan fegs  and retention of Non-Executive Dirsctors The are set 1 ina with the
Non-Executive Committee 13 responsible for comparator group
Orectors and a setting the Chairman'’s fees
Chairman with the In general the leve! of fee
necessary experence  Non-Executive Directors are paid an increase far the Non-Executive
t0 advise and assist annual fee and additional feas for Directors and the Chairrnan
with establishing and charmanship of Commitiees The will be set taking account of
monronng the Group’s  Chairman does not recewve any any change in responsibility
stratagic objectives additional fees for membership and will take ntoc account
of Commuttees general rise i salanas across
the UK workforce
Fees arg reviewed annually based
on equivalent roles in the comparator The Company will pay
group used to review salanes paid to reasonable expenses incurred
the Executive Directors Fees are by the Non-Executve Directors
set at broadly the median of the and Chairman and may settle
comparator group any tax incurred in relation
to these
Non-Executive Oirectors and the
Chairman do not participate in
any variable remuneration or
benefits arrangements
Executive Director contracts and letters of appointment for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors
Notice penods Compensation provsisns
Name Date of sanaca contract Nature of contract From Company Frorn Cirector for aarty tarmination
Ciive Fenton 30 January 2014 Rolling 12 months 12 months At the discration of
Nick Maddack 9 August 2011 Rolling 12 months & months the Commdiee
John Tonkiss 21 January 2014 Rolling 12 months & months
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Non-Executive Directors

Dats of letter of
Name appointmeont
John White 24 September 2013
Frank Nelson 11 November 2013
Mike Parsons 28 October 2013
(Gesia Nanda 4 March 2015

The Committesa’s policy for seting notice penods 1S that a 12-month penod will apply for Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts The Non-Executive
Directors are appointed by letters of appointment Each independent Non-Executive Director's term of office runs for a
three-year penod

The terms of the Non-Executive Directors’ positions are subject to thelr re-elechion by the Company's shareholders at the
AGM and to re-election at any subsequent AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-election

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders on an annual basis

The service contracis and the letters of appontment of the Directors are avallable for inspection at the Company's registered
office dunng normal office hours

Statement of considerations of emplioyment conditions eisewhere in the Group
The Policy for alf ernployees 1s determined in terms of best practice and easunng that the Group 15 able to attract and retain the
best people This pnneiple 1s followed in the development of our Pohcy

The remuneration strategy of the Company has been destgned to ensure all employees share in its success through performance-
related remuneration and share ownership On IPO the LTIP was introduced for Exacutive Directors and other selected members
of senior management Awards under the LTIP will prowide alignment between senor leaders and our shargholders based on
overall performance of the business

For all employses, the Company has adopted the Sharesave and the SIP Under these Plans, all employees have the opportunity
to purchase shares in the Company subyect to certain restnctions

The Company does nol use remuneration companson measurements nor have employaes been consulted chrectly on the Policy
In setting the Policy for Directors, the pay and condittons of other ermployess of the Group are taken into account, including any
bass salary increases awarded

The Commuttee 1s provided with data on the remuneration structure for management level tiers below the Exacutive Dectors,
and usas this information to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group

Link to objectives
The followng table demonstrates how key objectives are reflected consistently in plans operating at alt lovels within the Group

Objectives
Long tarm
vatug creation
Strategc and  (sncouraged
Financial operational  through sauity Shere
Plan Purposa Elgibility performance goals reisntion} ownarship
Sharesave/ To broaden share ownership Al employess
SIip and shara n corporate success
over the medium term ' /s
ABP Incentivise and reward short-  Executive Directors, senior
term performance Atsenior  execulivas, semor managers
favel an element of bonus 1s and managers
deferred in shares e v 4 v
LTIP Incentivise and reward long- Executive Direclors and
term performance Senior executives v 7 v 7
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Directors’ Remunerction Report continued

Statement of consideration of shareholder views
The Committee takes the views of the shareholders senously and these views are taken into account in shaping the Palicy and
practice Shareholder views are considered when evaluabng and setting the remuneration strategy and the Commuttee commits to

consuling with key sharehotders pnor to any significant changes to its Policy

The Committee consulted with the Company's key shareholders along with the Invastiment Associabion and the Instiutional
Shareholder Senvices on the proposed Policy set out in this report

Annual Report on Remuneration

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

Executive Directors (audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Executive Director in respect of FY16

Comparative figures for FY15 have not been provided bacause of the change in circumstances as a result of the listng The
Committee does not beliove that the remuneration payable in its earfier years as a pnvate company bears comparative vaiue to
that which will bs paid post-IPQ [n the FY17 report comparative information will be prowided

Taxabie

Singls fgure tatie Period Salary benaills' Borus? LnpP? Pansion Total
Clive Fenton FY16  £467.617 £27,407 £61,750 na £71,250 £628,024
Nick Maddock FY16  £288,781 £21,156 - n/a £54,996 £364.933
John Tonlass FY16  £220,445 £15,782 £386,400 n/a £42090 £324,617

1 See saction balow setling out datails ot tha banafits provided
2 Detaiis of the bonus targets ther level of satisiaction and the resuling banus earnad ard =5 out batow MNick Maddock (s not eligitie for Bn annual bonus as per the naes of

the McCarthy & Stona ABP as he will be under notice whan the bonus wil be mads
3 First LTIP award made on 25 November 2015, No LTTP award was efigiple to vest in FY16
4 Comprees the value of Group Personal Pension schema contnbutions and saiary supplements in keu of pension  Sas note on the followng pege for further detads

Taxahle benefits (audited)
Benefits In the year compnsed a company ¢ar or company car allowance, life assurance and private medical insurance

Annual bonus (audited)
In respect of FY16, the bonus awards payable to Executive Directors were agreed by the Committee having reviewed the
Company's results Details of the targets used to determing bonuses in respect of FY16 and the extent te which they were

satisfied are shown in the table below These figures ara included n the single figure table

Peccontagae Annual bonus value schiaved'
Thrashoid Target Maxmum of maximum
perionance parformance  perfommance Actugl performance Cive Nick John
Partormance condition Weighing required required required  parforrnance achiaved Fenton  Madkdock Tonkiss
Undertying operating profit 70% E£1193m £1290m £1387m £107 2m 0% - - -
Cash flow 10% (€83 7m) (£587my) (E337m) £484m 100% £61,750 - £36,400
Land exchanges 10% 88 a5 100 g5 0% - - -
Customer satisfaction 10% 91% 93% 95% 90% 0% - - -
Total 100% - - - - 10% £61,750 - £36,400

1 Under the terms of the FY16 annual bonus  25% for each siament ls payabie for achieving the thveshold pertormance 50% is payabie lor acheving target periormance
ncraasing to 100% for achieving maxmum performance  Achigvements betwesn these poinis are calculsied on a siraight ling besis Bonus up to 100% of salary 15 pald in
cash with any bortus above 100% of salary peing pakd in shares which are defarrad (or three years subect to continued employment As the FY16 cutcome 15 below 100% of

salary there s no bonue deferral
2 Nick Madkiock 15 not eligible for an annual bormus as per the rules of the McCarthy & Stone ABP as he will be under notGe when the bonus will be pad

No discretion was exercised by the Committee in relation to the outcome of the annual bonus awards
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Long-term incentives awarded {audited)
Awards under the LTIP ware made on 25 Navember 2015 on the followang basis

Basls of Maxamum

gward parcantage of

Number granied % of award the face value
ofshares (% oibasc  Facevaue vesing ai that could  Parformance
Executive Directars awarded salary) of award? thrashoid vest pencd
Cliva Fenton 263,888 100% £612,220 25% 100% 3 years
Nick Maddock 166,666 100% 386,665 25% 100% Jyears
John Tonkiss 155,555 100% £360,888 25% 100% 3 years

1 Face vaiue calculated using share price ar date of grant (€2 32 on 25 November 2016) As outtined on gram tha numper of awards over shares was calculated by referance o
the Company's IPO offer price of ©1 80 as perrmitied under the nules of the LTIP and referred 1o in the IPQ prospactus

Face value calculated using share price at date of grant
The awards were granted as ni-cost share options and vesting will be subject to achieving a challengng shiding scale of EPS, ROCE
and relative TSR agamst a bespoke group of housebuillders The performancs scheduie for these measures s as follows

Mpasure Weeghting Thrashold performance Maximen parformance
Cumulative EPS 30% &14p 69 8p
FY18 ROCE 30% 22% 25%
Relative TSR 40% Equal to Index Index + 75% p a

1 The TSA compamior group index compases the unwesghted avarags TSR of tha following housebuicers Barratt, Bovis Balway, Crast Nichoison, Persmmon, Redrow
and Taylor Wimpey

Pension entittements
The Group operates a Group Personal Pension schems under which Executive Directors are entitled to receive contnbutions of up

t0 20% of salary
The Group does not cumrently operate a defined benefit scheme

Non-Executive Directors {(audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Non-Executive Director For similar
reasons to the single figure table for Executive Directors, no comparative information has been provided for FY15 In the FY17
report comparative informatton will be provided

FY16 taxabis
Non Exacutive Diociors FY16 foag benefits Rotes
John white £209,083 £2,334 Non-Executve Chairman
Frank Nelson 68,360 - Senior Independent Non-Exscutive Director
Mike Parsons £60,322 - Independent Non-Executive Director
Geeta Nanda £52,283 - Independsnt Non-Executive Director

Payments to past Directors/payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year

Statement of Directors' shareholding and share interests (audited)
Directors’ interasts in share awards
The outstanding LTIP and Sharesave awards for the Executive Directors are shown in the table below

Oata on
Awards which award
Number of lapsed Number of vests/
awards heid Awards Awards turing the  awards haid Exarcise becomes
Orrector Plan Date of grant at 111115 gramed vesiad year ai 318,16 price[f) exorcisabla  Expry date
Clive
Fenton LTIP 251115 - 263,888 - - 263,888 NI 251118 251125
Sharesave 101215 -~ 10,752 - - 10,752 1674 2801419 280719
MNick
Maddock LTIP 251115 - 168,666 - ~ 168,666 NIl 251118 251125
Sharesave 101215 - 10,752 - - 10,752 1674 280119 2807189
John
Tonkiss LTiP 251115 - 155,555 - - 155,555 Nl 251118 251125
Sharesave 101215 - 10,752 - - 10,752 1674 280118 280718
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Directors’ shareholdings
At the end of FY15, the Executive Directors had each met ther shargholding requirements A summary of ther sharehoiding

including unvested awards s provided in the table below

Shares held Shares Options
Unvested
LTIP (il cost
opticns
Sharahotding Curent Subjectio Mot subect to subjectto  Unvasted Shareholding
requirarnant  sharoholdng  Beneflcially  performance  perionnance Vestedbul pedormance  Sharesave  requirement
Directors (% salany {% salary} ownad condilions? conditions  unaxerclsed  conditiong) opbons met?
Executive Directors
Clive Fenton 200% 824% 1,651,311 - - - 263,888 10,752 Yes
Nick Maddock 200% 676% 825,361 - - - 166,666 10,752 Yes
John Tonkiss 200% 536% 578,685 - - -~ 155,855 10,752 Yes
Non-Executive Directors
John While n/a - 1,650,192 n/a n/a n/a na n/a n/a
Frank Nelson n‘a - 173,270 n/a n/a na n/a n/a n‘a
Mixe Parsons n/a - 173,270 n/a nfa n/a n/a nfa n/a
Geeta Nanda n/a - - n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

1 Asal 31 August 20168 Thes 18 based on a cloaing share price of £2 043 and the year end salaries of tha Exacutive Diactiors Values not calculatad for Non-Expeutive Directors

as they are not subject to shareholdng requirements
2 LTIP awards wers granted in the form of ni-price share options
3  Since yasr 8nd Nick Maddock has bought an addional 87 shares through tha SIP There have bean no othar changss (o the shareholdings abova

Fees retained for external non-executive directorships
Executive Diractors may hold postions in other companies as Non-Executive Directors and ratain the fees

Clve Fenton, Nick Maddack and John Tonkiss do not hold any extemal directorstips

Comparison of overall performance and pay
The graph below shows the value of £100 invested in the Company’s shares since listing compared with the FTSE 250 index
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the movement in share value and the reinvestment aver

the same perod of dividend income

As the Company 1s currently a constituent of the FTSE 250, the Committes considers this an appropnate index This graph
has been calculated in accordance wath the regulations tt should be noted that the Company isted on 11 November 2015 and
therefora the comparnison s only for the penod from 11 Novermber 2015 to 31 August 2016

N B

Chart removed

L B

Chief Executive Officer histeric remuneration
The table on the following page sets out the total remuneration delwered to the Chisf Executive Officer over the last year valued

using the methadology appliad lo the single total igure of remuneration

The Committas does not befieve that the remuneration pavd In its earlier years when the Company was private bears any
comparative valye to that which will be paid post-IPQ, therefcre the Committee has chosen to disclose reruneration only for
FY16 In the FY17 Report comparative information will be prowided
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Chuet Executve Officer FY18  Qur main responsibilites are to
Total Single Figure (€) 628,024 ¢ Determine and agrea with the Board the broad Policy for

the Executive Diractars and other selected members of

Annual bonus payment level achieved the serior management team
{% of maximum opportunity) 0%  » Undertake perodic reviews to assess the appropriataness
LTIP vesting level achieved® and relevance of the Policy ensunng alignment with best
(% of maximum oppartunity) 0% practice prnciples of the UK Corporate Governance Code

1 Mo award has vesied vnder the LTIP

Relative importance of the spend on pay

The table below sets out the relatwe Impaortance of spend on
pay n FY16 The Company did not exist in its current farm
during FY15 and therefore there are no relevant comparators
for FY15 All igures provided are taken from the refevant
company accounts in the FY17 report comparative information
will be provided

Disbuwsements

from profit nn FY16

{£m)

Profit distnbuted by way of dwidend 242

Total tax contnbutions 307
Overall spend on pay ncluding Executve

Directors 593

Change in the Chuef Executive Officer’s remuneration
compared with employses

The Commuttee does not believe that the remuneration payable
in ts earlier years as a prvate company bears comparative
value to that which will be pard post-IPO In the FY17 report
this information will be prowded

Statement of implementation of the Policy in FY17
See table on page 62

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to
Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Committee, under agreed
terms of references, responsibitty for the Poelicy and for
determining speaific packages for the Executive Direclors and
other selected members of the senicr management team Pnor
10 the estabhishment of the Comrmittee, remuneration decisions
were made by the Board The Company consults with key
shargholders in respect of the Policy and the introduction of
new ncentive arrangements

= Consider the relative importance of the Group's expenditure
on pay compared to the Group's profits, dwvidends and
tax pad

* Review any major changes n employes benefit structures
throughout the Company or Group and to adrminister all
aspects of any share scheme

The Committee raceives agsistance from the HR Director and
the Company Secretary, who will attend meetings by invitation,
except when issues relating to ther own remuneration are
baing discussed The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and the Mational Operations Director attend by mvitatron
On ogcasions

Adwvisers to the Remuneration Committee
Following a selection process carned out by the Board
pnar to and then following the IPO of the Company,
the Cormmitiee has engaged the services of PwC as
independent remuneration adwviser

Dunng the financial year PwC adwised the Committee on all
aspects of the Policy for Executve Directors and sefected
members of the senior management team PwC also provides
certain other non-audt services to the Group and the
Commitiee 1s satisfied that no confict of nterest exists

or existed in the prowision of these services

PwC s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and1s a signatory 10 1ts voluntary code of conduct which 1s
designed to ensure objective and independent advice is given
to remuneration committees Fixed fees of £24,000 (FY15 Cni)
were prowided to PwC dunng the year in respect of
remuneration advice given to the Committee

Statement of voting at AGM
The 2017 AGM will be the first AGM of the Company smnce
listing and therefore there 15 no histonc voting information

Mike Parsons

Remuneration Committee Chairman
14 November 2016

AT
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present thew report for the financial year ended
31 August 2016

Corporate governance statement

The information that fulfils the requiremants of the corporate
governance statement for the purposes of the FCA’'s Disclosure
Gudance and Transparency Rules can be found in the corporate
governance information on pages 50 to 80 (all of which forms
part of this Directors’ Report) and in this Directors’ Report

Cross-references to other sections of the document
Disclosures that are n other sections nclude

Subsect matter Section and page referance

Employee diversity and inclusivity  Strategic Report, page 47
Employee invoivement Strateqic Report, page 48
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report, page 45

The only disclosure required under LR 9 8 4R which is
applicable to the year under review is detalls of long-term
ncentive schemes, which can be found on page 60 of the
Dirgctors' Remuneraton Report

Dmdends

Anintenm dvidend of 1 Op per ordinary share was paid on

31 May 2016 to those shareholders on the register on 29 Apnil
2016 Subject to shareholder approval at the 2017 AGM, the
Diractors are proposing a final dividend for the financial year
ended 31 August 2016 of 3 5p per ordinary share This bnngs
the total dnadend for the year to 4 5p

Dhrectors

The names of tha Directors who were Directors at year end
and up to the date of this report are on pages 50 and 51 Nils
Albert served as a Director until 21 Qctober 2015 when he
resigned from the Board Detalls of the Directors’ interests in
the share capital of the Company are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration report on page 76 In accordance with the UK
Corporate Govarnance Code, all the Directors will be seeking
re-election at the 2017 AGM

The powers given to the Directors are contained m the
Company's Articles of Assoctation and are subject to relevant
legislaton and, in certan circumstances, iNcluding in relation
to the issung or buying back by the Company of its shares,
subject to authonty being given to the Directors by
shareholders in general mesting The Articles of Association
also govern the appontment and replacement of Duectors

Articles of Association

The Articles of Associaton may be amended i accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of a
spaciat rasciution of the Company's sharsholders
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Share capital and control
Details of the Company’s share ¢capital are on page 104 n note
285 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 August 2015, there were 1,905,549,751 ordinary

shares of 20p nominal value inissue The share capital was

reorganised in advance of the Company's Admission to the

London Stock Exchange

a) the nominal value of the ordinary shares was reduced from
20p to 2p

b} a further 43,706,526 ordinary shares were allotted

¢) the shares were consolidated so that four ordinary shares of
2p nommal value became ong ordinary share of 8p nominal
value, gmving a tofal of 487,314,069 25 shares, and

d) a further 50,000,000 ordinary shares were aliotied on
11 November 2015

Al 31 August 2018, there werg 537,314,069 25 ordinary shares
af 8p nommnal value N 1ssue A resofution to authonse the
Company to buy back and cancel the quarter share will be put
to shareholders at the farthcoming AGM

The Company has one class of shares ordinary shares of 8p
nominal value, each of which carnes the nght to one vote at
general mestngs of the Company Shares may be 1ssued with
such nghts and restnctions as the Company may, by ordinary
resolution, decide or, if there i1$ no such resolution or so far as
1t does not make speciific provision, as the Board may decide

There are no restnctions on the transfer of our ordinary
shares and there are no shares carrying special nghts with
regards to control of the Company The Company 1s not
aware of any agreements between shareholders that may
result in restnctions on the transfer of shares or on voting
nghts There are no specific restrictions on the size of a
holding or on the exercise of voting nghts which are governed
by the Articles of Assaciation and prevailing legrsiation No
person has any spacial nghts of control over the Company's
sharg capital and all issued shares are fully paid

Shareholder authonty will be sought each year to authonse
the Directors to allot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
nghts and to make market purchases of our ordinary shares

By way of a special resolution dated 26 Qctober 2015
(orior 1o Adrmission), shareholders authorised the Company
to allot shares other than to exising shareholders up to

a maximum nominal value equal to 10% of the nominal
value of the Company's 1ssued share capital immediately
{ollowing Admission, being £4,288,512 nominal value

equal to 53,731,406 shares Dunng FY16 options over
6,040,285 shares were granted The Directors are

seeking renewal of the authorty at the forthcoming AGM,
in accordance with relevant institutional guidelines

Purchase of own shares

By way of a special resolution dated 26 Qctober 2015
(pnor to Adrmission), shareholders authonsed the
Company to purchase in the market a maximum of

14 99% of the Company's issued shares No shares have
been purchased under this authonty The Directors are
seeking renewal of the authonty at the forthcoming AGM,
n accordance with relevant institutional guidelnes
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2016, we had been notfied, in accordance
with the nules set out in the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebook, of the following interests in
our ordinary share capital

Number % nterest

olshares  invoting
Nama of notifying entity/natura of holting disclosad fights
Anchorage Capital Master Cffshore
Limided (indirect)’ 56,176,445 1101
Awviva plc and subsicianes (incirect) 41,202,954 767
Standard Lfe Investments {Holdings)
Lirmited (ndirect) 35,262,778 656
FIL Lmited (indirect) 32,199,145 589
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc
(indrect) 24,383,723 454
BHHL TPG HMeldings (direct) 20,886,456 389
Canada Penston Plan Investment
Board {direct) 20,150,000 375

In the perfod frem 31 August 2016 to the date of this report,
wa recewed the following notficatans

Number % nierest

of shares in voting
Name of notfyng entity/nature of hoiding disclosed rights
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc
{(indirect) 23,498,640 437
Anchorage Capital Master
Oitshore, Ltd indirecty® 66,136,100 123
Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board {direct) 29,084,092 54
FIL Limited (indirect) 30,545,791 568

1 Inctudes contracts for cifferance representing 18 458,788 voling nghts (3 443
2 incluges contracts for difference reprasenung 25,418,443 voung nghts [4 73%}

Infarrnation provided to the Company under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules s publicly avarlable via the
ragulatory information service and on the Company's website

Significant agreements (change of control)

The Company has in place a revoiving credit faciity dated

18 December 2014 {as amended by an amendment letter dated
10 February 2015 and further amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 23 May 2018) The revolving credit facility
and our jont venture with Somerset Care relating to YLMS

both contain termination provisions that could be tnggered

In certain circumstances, iIncluding if any person or group

of persons acting in concert gain control of the Company

There are no agreements between the Group and 1its Directors
and employess providing for compensation for loss of office
or employment {whather through restgnation, purported
redundancy or otherwse) in the event of a takecver bid

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Group maintains Directors and officers’ hability insurance
which prowides cover for any legal action brought against

the Directars

The Group has also granted indemnities to each of the current
Directors of the Company and its main trading subsidiary to
tha extent permitted by law Qualifying third-party indemnity
provisions were in force dunng the year endad 31 August 2016
and continue to reman in forge
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Political donations

By way of a special resolution dated 26 Cetober 2015
{prior to Admission), shareholders authonsed the
Company to make political donations and political
expenditure up to a maxrmum of £100,000 Dunng the
year the Group did not make any pohtical donations or
incur any polical expenditure The Drrectors are segking
renewal of the authonty at the forthcoming AGM, In
accordance with relevant instituttonal guidelines

Fitnancal instruments

Details of the Group's financial instruments and its exposures

to price risk, credn risk, iquidity nsk and cash flow nsk are set
out In nate 31 to the financial statements on pages 106 o 109

Going concern

The Drectors have assessed the Group's business activiies
and the factors likely to afiect our future performance n hght of
current and anticipated econcnic condittons  The Dwectors are
confident that ihey are sabsfied that the Group has adequate
resources m place to continue In cperatonal existence for a
penod of at least 12 months from the date of approval ¢i the
financial statements For this reason, they have continued to
adopt the gomng concern basis in prepanng the Annual Report
and financial statements

The Directors are also required to provide a broader
assessmant of wiability over a longer penod, which can be
found on page 39

In making the going concemn staternent and the wiabiity
statement, the Directors have taken into account the "Guidance
on Risk Management, internal Controls and Related Financial
and Business Reporting’ 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Council In September 2014

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each person who 15 a Director of the Company as at the date

of approval of this report confirms that

a) so far as the Director 15 aware, thera 1s no relevant audit
mfarmation of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and

b} the Director has taken all the sieps that he/she cught to
have taken as a Director n order to make himselffherself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Gampany's audttor 1s aware of that information

AGM

The 2017 AGM will be held on Wednesday 25 January 2017
Full detalls are contained in the Nouce convening the AGM,
which 15 being sent to sharehoiders with this Annual Report
On behalf of tha Board

Patrick Hole

Company Secretary
14 November 2016

4 /f;/’&
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Repart
and the financial staterments in accordance with apphcable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Ourectors are required o prepare the Group financial
staterments in accordance with International Financal
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and Article 4 and have elected to prepare the
Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards) incluging FRS
102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
United Kingdom and Repubiic of Ireland, and applicable
law Under company law the Directors must not approve
the accounts unless they are satisfisd that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and

of the profit or loss of the Gompany for that penod

In preparing the Parent Company financial statements,

the Directors are required to

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them congistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

* State whather applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explaned m the financial staterments

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis
unless it 13 inappropnate 1o presume that the Company will
continue in business

In preparng these financial statements, International

Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

= Propserly select and apply accounting policies

* Present information, ncluding accounting policies, In a
manner that provicles relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information

* Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users t0 understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and condibons on the entity's financial position
and financial performance

* Make an assessment of the Company's ability to continus
as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any e the financial pasition of
the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

The Directors are responsibls for the mantenance and integnty
of the corporate and financial information mcluged on the
Company’s website Legisiation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissermination of financial
statements may differ from legislation i other jJunsdictions

Falr, balanced and understandabla

The Board confirms that the Annual Report and financial
staternents, taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for sharehalders to assess the posrion, performance,
strategy and business model of the Company

Responsibility statement

The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person's

knowledge

+ The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
international Financtal Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union, give a trus and fair view of the assets,
habilites, financial posttion and profit or lass of the Company
and the undertakings included i the consolidation taken as
awhole

= The Strategic Report includes a far review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included
in the consohdation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face

This responstality slatemant was approved by the Board of
Directors on 14 November 2016 and 1s signed on its behalf by

Nick Maddock

Chief Financial Officer
14 November 2016

LRgy S

Chve Fenton
Chief Executive Officer
14 November 2016
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of

McCarthy & Stone plc

Opmion on financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc

In our opinion

* The financial statements giva a true and farr view of the state
of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at
31 August 2016 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended

+ The Group financial staterments have been property
prepared n accordance with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Urion

* The Parent Company financial statements have been
property prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, ncluding FRS 102
‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’

* The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

The financial statements compnse the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Staternents of Financial Position, the Gonsolidated
and Parent Company Staterments of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated and Parent Company Cash Flow Statemant
and the notes 1 to 35 relating to the Consolidated financial
statements and 1 {0 12 relating to the Parent Company
financial staterments The financial reporting framework that
has besen applied in the preparation of the Group financial
staternents 1s apphicable law and IFRS as adopted by the
European Union The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the Parent Cornpany
financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), ncluding FRS 102 ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic

of Irefand’

Going concem and the Birectors' assessment of the
principal nsks that would threaten the solvency or
liquidity of the Group

As reguired by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the
Directors’ statement regarding the appropnatenass of the
going concern basis of accounting contained within note 1
to the consolidated financral statements and the Directors'
statement on the longer-term wviability of the Group contained
within the Strategic Report section on page 39

We have nothing matenat to add or draw attention to in

relation to

* The Directors’ confirmation on page 39 that they have
camed out a robust assessment of the principal nisks facing
the Group, including those that would threaten its business
modal, future performance, solvency or hquicity

* The disclosures on pages 38 to 41 that descnbe those nsks
and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

+ The Directors’ staterment i note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements abaut whether they considared it
appropnate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
n prepanng them and their identification of any matenal
uncertanties to the Group's abiity to continue to do so over
a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of
the financial statements

+ The Directors’ explanation on page 32 as to how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group, over what penod
they have done so and why they consicier that penod to be
appropnata, and ther statement as to whether they have
a reasonable expectaton that the Group will be able to
contnue in operation and meet its labihies as they fali due
over the penod of therr assessmant, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

We agreed with the Directors’ adoption of the going concern
basis of accounting and we did not identify any such matenal
uncertanties Howaever, because not all future events or
conditions can be predicted, this statement 1 not a guarantes
as to the Group's alnlity to continue as a going concem

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting
Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors and we confirm that
we are independent of the Group and we have fulfilled our
cther ethical responsibiliies in accordance with those
standards We also confirm we have not prowided any of the
prehibited non-audit services referred to in those standards

Qur assessment of nsks of material misstatement

The assessed nsks of material misstatement descnbed below
on pages 82 to 83 are those that had the greatest eifect on
our audtt strateqy, the allocation of resources in the audrt and
directing the efforts of the engagement team As part of our

audit of the Group, n additon to substantive tests set out below,

we also evaluate the design and implementation of internal
controls over financial reparting in each of the sk areas
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of

McCarthy & Stone plc continued

How the scope of our audit respondad 1o tha rsk

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Refer to page 56 (Report of the Risk and Auadit Committee) and
page 96 (Crntical accounting judgements and key sources of
eshimation uncertamty)

Inventory compnses land, work in progress and finished stock.
The value of inventory as at 31 August 2016 1s £685 8m (2015
£585 8m) and 1s the most significant item on the Consolidated
Staternent of Financial Posiion Overhead costs capitalised at
31 August 2016 amount to £25 7m {2015 £16 7m) representing
4 8% of stock addtions (2015 4 2%} Amounts released to cost
of sales totalled £13 2m (2015 £51m)

Management perform a detailed exercise to analyse by
departmant the proportion of costs relating directly to site
development versus general business overheads

Wa constder the allocation and recognition of overhead costs

nto mventory to represent an area of risk with signsficant

judgement identfied in

* [dentifying which costs, based on thewr nature, should be
caprtalised into inventory rather than expensed

» Determining the proportion of Planmng, Design,
Cormmercial, Construction and Health & Safety costs
incurred in bnnging the inventones to thewr present location
and condition, in accordance with 1AS 2 ‘lnventones’

The judgements above impact the carrying value of inventory in
the Consoldated Staternent of Financial Position and the gross
margin recognised on each unit sold

We challenged the reasonableness of the allocation and the

accuracy of costs capitalised for each category of inventory

Qur work involved the fallowing

* Liaising with senior departmental management 10
understand the process employed in determining the
allocation and analytically reviewing the movements
year-on-year

+ Performing sensivity analysis on the proportion of costs
capitalised in the year in conjunction with benchmarkang
analysis (where avalable)

+ Checking the mechanical accuracy of the calgulatons and
identifying any anomahas

+ Testing a sample of the costs absorbed to assess whether
these are valued and allocated cormrectly

+ Parforming a recalculation based on the final percentage
allocaton and cost inputs to establish whether the amounts
capitahised are accurate

Shared equity receivables

Refer to page 56 (Report of the Risk and Audit Committee),
page 96 (Crtical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty) and page 102 (financial statement
chsciosures)

The Group offers shared equity-based arrangements to
buyers The present value of shared equity recewables as at
31 August 20161 £29 3m (2015 £28 0my)

The Group's assessment and supporting calculation

are dependent on a number of assumphons, which are
mherently judgmental due to ther forward-looking nature
Kay assumptions include

* Property price projections

* Expected matunty date

+ Discount rate

* New build premium agamnst subsequent sales

The above assumplions are dependent on management's
ability to estimate market activity, futurs trends and
fluctuations Changes to these assumptions could

result in a matenal change in the value of the recevable
recognised within the Statement of Financial Position and
the associated movements recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

We cntically agsessed the accuracy of the inputs and the

reasonableness of the assumptions apphed in the Group's

far value model Our work nvolved the following

* Consulting with our internat Real Estate specialsts to
challenge the rates and methodologies applied through
companson with the market

» Obtaining relevant sector data (e g Office of National
Statistics and the latest ndices) to challenge the
reasonableness of house prcing nfiation and new
build premiums

* Agsessing the impact of the UK Referendum and the
decision to exit the European Urion on each of the
assumptions applied through review of the most recent
available public infermation

+ Performing tests of detail to assess the integrity of inputs

* Benchmarking the Group’s assumptions aganst other
house bullders (where avallable)

¢ Performing sensitivity analysis over the key assumptions
apphled on both an indwiduat and collective basis

+ Companng the cash receved on redemphions during the
year to the carrying value of the related recevable to ensure
proceeds were not sigrificantly different

+ Checking the mechanical accuracy of the far value
calculation for all schemaes and assessing whether
the correct amounts have been recognised in the
financral statements
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Risk
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How tha sceps of qur aud!t responded to the msk

Incentive schemes

Refer to page 56 (Report of the Risk and Audt Comimittes),
page 96 (Cnlical accounting judgements and key sowrces of
estimation uncertamty) and page 110 (financal statement
disclosures)

The Group Iisted on the London Stock Exchange in November
2015 Upon tisting {IPQ), the Group awarded the participants
of the Management Incentive Plan (MIP) £0 8mn cash and
€19 7m m equity Subsequent to hsting, the Group introduced
four new ncentive schemas

+ Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP)

e Save As You Earn (SAYE)

e Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan

+ Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

The accounting treatment and supporting grant date far value

caleufations are Inherently complex and give nse to a nsk of

matenal misstaternent with significant judgernent requred In

determining the following assurmptions

s Share price movements (for the total sharehoider return
tranche of the LTIP schems)

» Expected future performance

= Expected participant attnhon

Our work in respect of the vesting of the MIP involved

tha following

» Venfying the terms of the plan to signed agreement

» Recalcuiating both the cash and equity elements of the
settlement based on the tenmns of the plan and the equity
value of the Group prior to PO

* Parforrning tests of detal over a sample of cash payments
for selected participants through agreement to paysip

* Venfying that the shares awarded and the related unwing
had been accounted for camrectly n accordance with the
cntena per IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’

+« Rewiewing the technicat accounting paper prepared
by management

Qur wark in respect of the assumptions applied in determining

the farr value of the newly introduced schemes ncluded

the {ollowing

» Consuliing with our valuation speciadists to confirm
that the principles behind the assumptions used and the
methodoiogy applied are m fing with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based
payments’ and that they fall within an acceptable range

+ Performing sensitivity analysis over the assumptions to
assess the impact and cntical pemt that would result in a
matenal misstatement to the financial statements

» Assessmng the reasonableness i the expected participant
lapse rate aganst historical trends in head count

» Assassing performance aganst the Group’s budget

* Recalculating the grant date far value of each scheme and
assessing whether any related charge is spread gorrectly
over the vesting term

Treatment of transaction costs

Refer to page 56 (Report of the Risk and Audit Commuttes),
page 96 (Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of
estmatian uncertanty) and page 97 (financial statement
disclosures)

In the current year the Group meurred exceptional costs of
£11 6m (excluding tax} in connection with the IPO, £4 Om of
which was capitalised as a reducton to shars premium

The Group undertook a detaled assessment of all costs
incurred dunng the IPO process to ensure that the allocation of
cost was accounted for comectly in ine with 1AS 32 ‘Financial
instruments Presentation’

We constder the accuracy and allocation of these costs to
pose a significant nsk of matenafl misstatemment owing to the
impact on both share premium in the Consolidated Statement
of Financ:al Positton and expenses within the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

In assessing these costs there are two key considerations

that apply

* Defiving the IPO costs that are eligible for capitalisation,
18 accounted for as a deduction from share premium
and those that should be expensed The former are
costs that are directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of shares

e The determination of which of the IPO costs are tax
deductible and non-deductible

Qur work involved the following

« Performing tests of detall over a sample of costs incurred
to assess both the accuracy of amounts recorded and
appropnate allocation batween share premium and
expenses In kne with the gwidance set oul in IAS 32

* Consufting with our tax specialists to understand and
challenge the tax treatment for deductible and non-
deductible expenses (and the allocation thereof)

+ Reviewing the techrical accounting paper prepared by
management outhning the accountng policy adopted and
the methodology of allocation of costs between share
premium and exceptional costs

* Assessment of the accuracy and completeness of
disclosuras made in respect of exceptional costs in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
McCarthy & Stone plc continued

The descnption of risks should be read in conunction with the
significant issues considered by the Risk and Audit Committes
discussed an page 56

These matiers were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whols, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a Separate opmion
on these matters

Our apphcation of matenality

We define matenality as the magnituda of rmisstatemant in the
financial staternents that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be
changed or nfluenced We use matenality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

We detarmined matenaiity for the Group to be £5 2m which is
calculated based on 5% of pre-tax profit for the year excluding
exceptional iterns of £102 9m as descnbed on page 86

Pra-tax profit, excluding excaptional tems, has been chasen
as the basis for materiahty as this 15 the measure by which
staksholders and the market assess the wader performance
of the Group The exceptional expense, pnncipally IPO costs,
1s excludad as thus does not represent pard of the underdyng
trading performance of the business

We use performance matenality to detect nwsstatements at a
lower level of preciston, for the current year this g set at E39m
This 1s lowser than matenality and s used to determung the size
of the sarmples that are selected for audit work and n forming
the ¢conclusions that wa make during the course of our
procedures

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Committes that we would
report to the Committee all audit differences In excess of

£0 3m, as welt as difierences below that threshold that, n our
view, warranted reporting on qualtative grounds We also
report to the Risk and Audit Committea on disclosure matiers
that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of
the financial statements

An overview of the scope of our audrt

Our Group audit was scoped by obtamning an understanding of
the Group and its environment, including Group-wide, and
assessing the risks of matenal misstatement at the Group leval
Al subsidianes are managed from the Group's head affice n
Bournemouth and subject to a cornmon control environment

Based on that assessment, we focused our audit scope on the
four largest subsidianes in the Group, McCarthy & Stone plc,
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Lirited, McCarthy & Stone
Retirement Lifastyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone (Extra
Care Lrang) Limited These entiies reprasent the pnncipal
entities and account for 98% of the Group’s net assets, 100%
of the Group's revenue and 88% of the Group's profit before
tax They were also selected to provide an appropnate basis
for undertaking audit work to address the nsks of maternal
misstatement identified above

We have perforrned an audt of select account balances on
MecCarthy & Stone {Home Equrty tnterests) Limited and
McCarthy & Stone {(Equrty Interests) Uimited and desktop
review procedures over tighly mmatenal subsidianes

Our audit work on these enlihes was executed at levels of
matenality appiicable to each individual company ranging
from £0 1m to E4 9m which were lower than Group matenaily

At the Parent entity level we also testad the consohidation
procass and carried out analytical pracedures to confirm

our conclusion that there were no signrficant nsks of matenat
musstatemnent of the aggregated financial Information of the
ramaining componeants not subject to audit or audit of specified
account balances

The Group audtt is performed centrally and inchudes coverage
of all ine regional offices within the Group As part of our audit
we visit a sample of three regional offices each year on a
rotational basis with reference to size and complexity among
other factors The purpose of these wisits s to conduct
procedures over selected controls that are in place at each
ragional office

Qpton on gther matters prescribed by the Companiss

Act 2006

In our opmon

* The part of the Directors' Remunearaticn Report to be
audited has been property prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

+ The mformauon given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financlal statements

Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

Adequacy of explanations received

and accounting recards

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to

you if, in our opimon

* Weg have not received all the information and explanations
we requirg for our audit

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parant Company, or retumns adequate for our audt have net
been recewved from branches not wisited by us

= The Parent Company finangial statements are not in
agreemeant with the accounting recerds and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report
if, w1 our opirton certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneraton
have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to ba audited is naot in agreement with the accounting
recards and retums We have nothing to report ansing from
these matters
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Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Usting Rules we are also required to review part
of the Corporate Govemance Statement relatng to the
Company's compliance wath certan provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Gode Wa have nothing to report
ansing from our raview

Qur duty to read other information In the Annual Report
Under Intermational Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland), we
are required to report 1o you if, in our opinion, formation in the
Anmal Report is
» Matenally mconsistent with the informahon in the audited
financial staterments
s Apparently matenally incomrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowtadge of the Group acquired
in the course of perfonTing our auds
s (Otherwise misleading

in particular, we are required o consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencles between our knowledge acquired
during the audit and the Dwectors’ staternant that they consider
the Annual Report 1s farr, balanced and understanciable and
whather the Annual Report appropnately disclosas those
matters that wa communicated to the Risk and Audit
Committee which wa consider shauld have been disclosad

Wa confirm that we have not identified any such
inconsistencres or nusieading statements

Resapective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explaned more fully m the Directors’ Responsibiftes
Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statemnents and for being satisfied that they give
a true and far view QOur responsibiiity is to audd and express
an opinion on the financial stateaments i accordance with
applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) We alsc comply with International Standard on Quality
Contral 1 (UK and ireland) Our audit methedology and tocls
aim 1o ensure that our quallty controi procedures are effective,
undarstood and applied

Qur qualtty controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review tearn and independent
partner reviews

Thig report 1s made solely 10 the Company’s membars,

as a body, in aceordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s members those matters
we are raquired 10 stats to them in an Audnor's Report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permittad by law, we do
not accept or assurne responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's mambers as a bedy, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opsmons we have formed
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Scope of the audit of the financiai statements

An audtt Involves obtaining evdence about the amourts

and disclosuras in the financial statements sufficient to give
reascnable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whsther caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
pelicias ara appropnate to the Group's and the Parent
Company's dreumstances and have besn consistently applflad
and adequatsly disciosed, the reasonableness of significant
accountng estirnates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financlal statements In addion, we read all
the financial and non-financial nfermation in the Annual Raport
to identfy materfal inconsistancies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any iInformation that 1s apparently
matenafly ncorrect based on, or materially inconsistent wath,
the knowledge acquired by us in the coursa of performing

the audt f wa become aware of any apparent materal
misstatemnents or inconsisiencies we consider the Implications

for our report a) CJ I LJ
~te ]

Gregory Culshaw ROA {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Southampton, United Kingdom

14 November 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the yvecx ended 31 August 2016

Fatals] 205
Notas £m fm

Continuing operations

Revenue 4 635.9 4857

Cost of sales {499 5) (3626}
Grass profit 1364 1231
Other operating INncome 8 85 91
Administrative expenses (44 7) (399)
Other operating expenses {51) 45
Operating profit 951 878
Amorusation 2.) @1
Exceptional administrative expenses 4] {10.0) (5 4}
tUnderlying operating profit 1072 953
Finance mcome 9 2.7 12
Finance expense 10 (4.9) 81
Profit before tax 92.9 809
Income tax expense 1 {19.4) (16 6}
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total comprehensive income 735 643
Profit attnbutable to
Owners of the Company 731 6841
Non-controfling interest 0.4 02
73.5 643
Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above All trading denves from conbinuing cperations
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share} 12 139 34
Diluted (p per share) 12 13.9 34
Adjusted basic (p per share}* 12 13.9 135
Adjusted diluted (p per share}! 12 13.9 135
Adjusted measures
Underlying operating profit 6 1072 853
Undertying profit before tax 6 105.0 884

+  Pror year EPS has been adusted Lo raflact the 4 1 share consciidation that took place i FY 18 A reconciation (o the previousty stated EPS has bean provided in notg 12
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As cat 31 August 2016

208

MNotas £m Em
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 417 417
Intangible assets 14 296 317
Property, plant and equipment 15 29 26
Investrments in jomt venturas 17 04 04
Investment properties 0.2 Q5
Trade and other recaivables 19 327 3NS5
Denvativa financial assets 21 - 03
Total non-current assets 1075 1087
Current assets
Inventones 18 8858 5858
Trade and other recewables 19 75 09
Cash and cash equivalents 29 1120 569
Total current assets 8123 6536
Total assets 9198 7623
Equity and labilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 26 430 3811
Share prermium 27 100.8 564
Retamned eamings 56365 104 3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 6973 5418
Non-controling interests 08 07
Total equity 6981 5425
Current liabilities
Trade and aother payables 22 1071 838
Short-term borrowings 24 13 -
Land payables 23 493 365
Total current liabilities 1677 1203
Non-current llabilities
Long-term borrowings 24 525 9g 2
Deferred tax hability 20 15 03
Total habilities 2217 2198

9198 7623

Total equity and habihties

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 14 November 2016 and signed on its behalf by

Clive Fenton Nick Maddock
Director Director

LRy S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2016

Mor-
Share Share Aetanad controlling Total
capital premium eamings Total interest equty
Notes £m £m £m £ Em m
Balance at 1 September 2014 3811 56 4 39.3 476 8 0.4 4772
Profit for the penod - - 641 641 02 6543
Total comprehensive income for the pencd - - 641 64.1 02 64.3
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 32 - - (e)e] a9 - 09
Movermnent in non-controling interest - - - - 01 01
Balance at 31 August 2015 3811 56 4 104 3 541.8 0.7 542.5
Profit for the penod - - 731 731 04 735
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 731 731 0.4 735
Transactions with owners of the Company*
Issue of ordinary shares 26 49 1048 (19 4) 903 (0 3) 900
Captal reduction of share capital and share premium 26 (3430) (56 4} 3994 - - -
Share-based payments 32 - - 15 i5 - 15
Share issue related costs - (4 0) - @o - 40
Dwdands 26 - - 54 54} - 54)
Balance at 31 August 2016 430 100.8 5§53.5 697.3 08 6981

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown above
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the yeco encled 31 August 2016

2018 2015
Notes £m £m
Neot cash inflow from operating activities 29 183 197
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {15) 20
Purchases of intangible assets (0 4) (10)
Proceeds from sale of property, piant and equipment ag.1 15
Net cash used in investing activities (18) {15}
Financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share caprtal 86.0 -
Proceeds from iong-term borrowings - 879
Repayment of long-term borrowings {35.0) (1600)
Purchase of interest rate cap - 03
Omidend paid (5 4) -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 4586 (724
Net Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 621 (54 2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 569 1111
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 119.0 569

Notes 1 to 35 form part of the financial statements shown abova
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies
The prncipal accounting policies apphad in the preparation of these consolidated financial stalemeants are set out below

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation
McCarthy & Stone plc s a Company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act The Group financial

statemsnts consohdate those of the Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the Group) and include the Group's
interest in jointly controlled entthies  The Parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a

separata entity and not about the Group

Ths Group financial statemants have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accardance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurgpean Union (EU IFRS) and have baen prepared under the histoncal cost convention
as modfied by financial assets and financial labihties (including denvative instruments) at fair valua through profit or loss

Going concern
The Group mests s day-to-day working capital requirements through cash in hand and its bank facifities The Group's forecasts

and projections, takmg into account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to
oparate within the leve! of its current faciities  After reaking enguines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources 1o continue in oparational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therafore continues to adopt
the gong concem basts in prepanng its financial statements Further information on the Group's borrowings 1S given In nota 24

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements ncorporate the results of the Company and its subsicianes For the purposes of consolidation,

subsidianes are enbities over which the Company has the power 1o govern the financiat and operating policies so as to obtain
benelits from its activiies

Whare necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to brng the accounting palicies used into Iine
with those used by the Group All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eiminated i full on conschdation

Non-controfling interests in subsidianes are identified separately from the Group's equity therein The interests of non-controlling
shareholders may inrhally be measured at far value or at the non-controlling mnterests' proportionate share of the far value of the
acquireg's wentfiable net assets The chaice of measurement 1s made on an acquisition-by-acquisibon basis Subsequent to
acquisition, the camymng amount of non-controlling interests 1s the amount of those interests at inthial recognition plus the non-
controliing interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity

Goodwill
Goodwill arising in a business combxnation 1s recognised as an assat at the date that control 1s attamed (the acquisihon date)

Goodwill 1Is measured as the axcess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the far value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest (if any) m the entity over the net of the acquistion-date
amounis of the identifiable assets acquired and the labilibes assumed

Goodwill 1s not amortised but s reviewed for impaimment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill

18 allocated to each of tha Group's cash-generating unit (CGU) expected ta benefit from synergies ansing fram a husiness
combination The CGU to which goodwill has been attnbuled 1s tested for mpaiment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the CGU may be imparred I the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than the carrying amount of the CGU,
the mpairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU

Revenue recogmtion
Revenue 1s measured at far value of the consideration receved or recesvable and reprasents amounts recevable for goods

suppfied stated net of discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty

The Group recognises revenue when all the following condihons are satisfied

* The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods

« The Group retains neither continuing managenal nvolvement to the degree usually asscciated with ownership nor efisctive
control over the goods sold

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably

* |t 1s probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity

* The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

Revenue recogmsed in the Consalidated Statement of Comprehengive Income but not yat invoiced is held on the statement of
financral positon within Trade and other recevables' Revenue invoiced but not yet recogrused in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income 15 held on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position within 'Deferred revenue'
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1. Significant accounting palicies continued
Revenue s classified as follows

Sales of leasehold interests

Revenue represents the consideration recesvad from the sale of isasehold intsrests in retirement apartments and 1s recognised
on legal completion Where the Group commits on compistion to provide an addimonal cash amount above an offer given by

a third-party part exchange provider, this additronal cash amount is recognised as a deducton from revenue Cash incentives
are considered to be a discount from the purchase price offered to the acquirer and are therefore accounted for as a reduction
of revenue

Freehold reversionary interests [FRIs} and house manager fiat freehold interests (HMFis)
FRIs and HMFIs in respect of developed sites are penodically sold to third parties Revenue ansing from these sales 1s recogrised
only to the extent that the underlying leasehold interest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sold

QOther operating income
Other operating mcome includss management services income, nel rental income, profits ansing from the disposal of
undeveloped land sites, VAT refunds, non-build rebates and profits ansing from the realisation of shared equity receivables

Finance income
Revenue I3 recogrised as interest accrues, using the effectve interast rate method, being the rate used to discount the estimated
future cash receipts over the expectad kfe of the financial instrument

Cost of sales
Costs directly attnbutable to the unit sales are included within cost of sales This ncludes the cost of bringing the inventory mto use
and regional marketing costs that are directly attnbutable to sales, nciuding show flat running costs and aestate agent referral fees

Exceptional items

Excephional items are defined as items of Income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are matsnal, non-recurnng
and unusual In nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure Exclusion of thase balances allows review af
the underying trading posilion of the Group These are detarled further in note 6

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanhally all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-ing basis over the term of the relevant lease

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakeholder retirement benefit scheme

A retrement benefit scheme 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive abhgation to pay further amounts Obligations for contnbutions to benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense In the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income m the years dunng which services are
rendered by employees

Taxation
income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

Tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Consalidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income because # excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductble in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habiities
in the financial staterments and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet liabiity method Deferred tax Irabilites are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avalable against which deductible
temmporary differences can be utilised Such assets and habiles are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from the
initial recogrmition of goodwiil or from the initial recogrutton (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabiities

In a transaction that affects nether the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabiliies are recogmised for taxable temporary ditferances ansing on investments in subsidianes, where the Group

1s unabila to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the termporary difference will not reverse in the
foresesable future
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting penod and reduced to the extent that it1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avalable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pencd when the hability 18 settled or the asset is
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the year end Deferred tax s charged or credited 0 the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when it relates to tems charged or credited in other comprehenswe
income, n which case the deferred tax 1s also deait with in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and labilites are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets agamst current tax
habilittes and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to sattle its current tax

assets and lablites on a net basis

Tangible and intangibie assets
Property, pfant and equipmant
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impaiment loss

Depreciation 1s recognised 50 as to wnite off the cost of assets less therr residual value over their useful ives, using the straight-line
method, on the following bases

Fixtures, fitings and equipment 3-10 years

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the canrying
amount of the asset and s recognised in income on the transfer of tha nsks and rewards of ownership

The Group has no class of tangible fixed asset that has been revatued On transibon to IFRS the net book values recorded at
1 September 2012 have been applied and these are based on histonc cost or farr value recogrised at the date of acquistion

Intangible assets — brand
Separately acquired brands are shown at histoncal cast Brands have a finite usaful life and are carried at cost less accurmnulated

amortisation Amortisation Is calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the cost over therr useful kves, estmated at
20 years

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Costs associated with mantaining computer software programmaes are recogrised as an expense as incurred Developmsnt

costs that are diractly attributabls 1o the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controfled by the Group

are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met

s Itis technically feasible t0 complete the software product so that it will be avallable {or use

* Management intends to complete the scftware product and use or sell i

+ There s an abiity to use or sell the software product

* It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future sconomic benefils

+ Adequale technical, inangial and other resources to compiete the development and to use or sell the software product
are avallable

+ The expenditure attributable to the software product dunng its development can be relliably measured

Dirsctly atinbutable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropnate portron of relevant overheads

Other development expenditures that do not meet these critena are recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subseguent year

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over thew estmated useful lives, which do not exceed
ten years

Development expenditure relating to software has been capitalised and 1s detailed in note 14

impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At sach balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and ntangible assets to determing whether therg
15 any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication axists, the recoverable amount of the asset
15 estmated to determine the extent of the impaiment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate ¢ash flows that are
independant irom other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amourt of the CGLU to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of (i) farr value less costs to sell, and (1} value in use In assessing value n use, the sstimated
future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the nsks speaific to the asset for which the estmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted
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1 Sigmuficant accounting palicies conttnued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) 1s estimated to be Iess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or CGU) 15 reduced to ds recoverable amount An emparment [0ss is recogrised immediately in profit or loss, unless the ralevant
asset 15 carned at a revalued amount, In which case the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent that the
revaluation balance 1s greater than the impamment loss

Joint ventures
The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with other parties which represent joint ventures These take the form
of agreemsnt to share control over these entities Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

The Graup classifies ks interests in jont arrangements as erther jont operations (if the Group has nights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilibies, relating to an arrangement) or joint ventures §f the Group has nghts only to the net assets of an
arrangement) Whan making this assessment, the Group considers the structure of the arrangaments, the legal form of any
separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and circumstances

Inventories
Invertones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnses direct matenals and, where applicable, direct

labour costs and those overheads that have been in¢urred in bnnging the inventories 1o thew prasent location and condition
The cost of sites in the course of construction and finished stock compnses the cost of land purchases, which are accountad
for irom the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtamns the effective control of the site, bullding costs and attnbutable
constructon overheads Net realisable value represents the estmated selling pnce less all estmated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in marketing, seling and distnbution, complation and disposal

Land inventores and the associated land payables are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posttion from
the date of unconciional exchange of contracts Where, through defemred purchase credit terms, cost differs from the norinal
amount which will be paid in setting the deferred purchase terms liabilty, the inrhial cost of the land s discounted to far value
The land payable is then increased to setttement value over the perted of financing with the financing element being charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a finance cost

Options purchased in respect of land are caprtalised mtially at the cost of the option Regular reviews are completed for
impaiment in the value of these aphons and provisions made accordingly to reflect loss of value The imparrment reviews consider
the penod elapsed since the date of purchase of the option given that the option contract has not been exercrsed at the review
date Further, the mparrment reviews consider the remaining fe of the option, taking into account any concerns over whether the
remaining hme will allow successful exercise of the option The carrying cost of the oplion at the date of exercise is included within
the cost of land purchased as a result of the ophon exercise

Expenditure on land without the benefit of detailled planning consent, esther through purchase of freehold land or non-refundable
deposits pard on land purchase contracts subject to detalled planning consent, are caprialised inially at cost Regular reviews are
completed for mparment in the value of these investments, and prowsion made to reflect any ¥recoverable elemnent. The imparment
reviews consicler the existing value of the land and assess the likelihood of achieving detaled planning consent and the valug therecf

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and short-term bank deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or less, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial iabihties are recognised in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the Group

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets

All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date thal an agreement has been entered into where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the hmeframe
established by the market concemed They are inihially measured at farr value plus transaction costs, except for thase financial
assets classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at far value

Financral assets are classified into the following specified categonies financial assets at ‘far value through profit or loss' (FVTPL),
‘held-to-matunty’ investrents, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and 'loans and recewvables’ The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determined at the time of rhial recognition The Group held no linancial
assets classified as held-to-matunty or AFS duning the reporting periods presented hersin

Effective interest method

The effective nterest method is a method of calculating the amortsed cost of a debt nstrument and of allocating nterest ncome
over the relevant penod The effective interest rats is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (iIncluding all
fees and points paid or recetved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transachon costs and other premiums or
discounts}) through the expected Iife of the debt instrument, or, where appropnate, a shorter pencd, to the net camying amount on

initial recognrtion
Income 15 recogmsed on an effective interest basis for debt Instruments other than those financlal assets classified as at FVTPL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued
Classes of financial asset

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financal assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset 1s eiiher held for frading or 1s designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset 1s classified as held for trading if

* [t has been acquired pnncipally for the purpose of selling in the near term

¢ Onnihal recogrition it s a part of a portfolio of identified financial nstruments that the Group manages together and has
arecent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

* ltis a derfvative that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FYTPL upon irubal recogrimion if

» Such designation elimmates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition Inconsistency that would atherwise anse

+ The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial habilhes or both, which 1s managed and s performance
Is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's docurnented nsk management or investment strategy and
information about the grouping is prowided mtemally on that basis

* [t forms part of a contract contaruing one or more embedded denvatives and 1AS 39 'FAnancial Instruments Recogrition and
Measurement’ permits the entire combined contract (asset or liabdity) to be designated as at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated al far value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised In profit or loss The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and 1s included in the other
operatng mcome line ftem i the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  Fax value s determined in the manner descnbed

n nota 31

The Group uses dernvative financial instruments to reduce exposure to interest rate movernents Tha Group does not 1ssue or hold
derivative finanecial instruments for speculative purposes

Shared equity receivables
Shared equity interests anse from safes incentive schemes under which the Group acquires a contractual entitterment to receive

a proporton of the proceeds of sale of an apartment These interests are normally protected by a legal charge over the relavant
apartment and/or a restnction on title

The value of the shared equity recevables changes in response to an underlying vanable and therefore 1s accounted for as a
denvative The shared equity recevables are ndizlly recogrised at farr value, being the estmated fulure amount recevable by the
Group, discounted to present value The farr value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors’ view of
future house pnce movements and the expected tming of receipts The Directors rewisit the future anticipated cash receipts from
the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the anticipated future raceipt and the inibal far value 1s credited to

finance ncome/expanse

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and ather recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active market
are ¢lassified as 'loans and receivablas' Leans and recenvablas areé measured at amorbsed cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment Interest income Is recogrnised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
recewables when the recognition of interest would be immatenal

Financial habihties and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial labiities or as equity i accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a rasidual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its habiliies

Equrty instruments issued by the Group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Financial habihties
Financial habilites are classified as ‘other financial habiibes’

Other financial habilities
Other financial habilities, including borrowings, are inthally measured at farr valus, net of transaction costs

Other financial liabihties are subsequently measwed at amartised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recogmised on an effective yisld basis

The effsctive Interast method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expensa
over the relevant penod The effective intarest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial lability, or, where appropriate, a shorter peried, to the net carrying amount on intial recognition
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1 Sigmificant accounting policies continued

Land-related promissory notes

Land-related promissory notes are treated as financial latulies and are classified as land creditors or borrowings depending
on the substance of the contractual amangements

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees s measured by reference to the far value at the date at which they are
granted and 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting penod [n valuing equity-settled transactons, no account is taken of any
non-market based vesting conditions and no expense s recognised for awards that do not utbmately vest as a result of a failure to
satisfy a non-market based vesting condition

The cost of cash-settied transactions 1S measured at far value Far value 1s esimated inaly at the grant date and at each
reporhing penod end thereafter until the awards are settled Market-based conditions are taken into account when determining

far value
Further details regarding the schernes ars set out In note 32

2. Outlook for adaption of future standards (new and amended)
There have not been any new standards and amendments adopted for the first time for the financial year ending 31 August 2016

At the date of approval of the financial statemants, the following standards and interpretatons which have net been applied by

the Group in the financral statements were in rssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

» IFRS 9 ‘Financal instruments’ was reissued it October 2010 as the second step in the International Accounting Standards
Board (ASB) project to replace IAS 39 ‘Financral Instruments. Recognimon and Measurement' Dunng the year the LASB
reissued IFRS 9 to include hedge accounting and details on early adopbon The final revision to the standard incorporating the
impairment, classification and measurement requirements was issued by the IASB in July 2074 and the standard 15 expected
to ba effective from 31 December 2018 The Group is currently assessing the impact of the rewisions on the Group’s results
and financial position

* IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was issued on 28 May 2014 This standard sets out revenue recogmition
condrtions for the Group This 1s applicable to accounting pencds beginring on or after 1 January 2018, once endorsed by
the EU The impact of this standard on the Group I1s being assessed

* |FRS 16 ‘Leases’ was published in January 2016 This standard is a replacement of the current leases standard 1AS 17

This brings significant changes to the accounting of leases by lessees IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise a lease habibity

reflecting future lease payments and a 'nght-of-use asset’ for wirtually all Isase contracts The IASB has included an optional

exemption, for lessess, for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, however, this exemption can only be

appled by lessees This 1s applicable te accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, once endarsed by the EU

The impact this standard will have on the Group 1s being assessed

Amendments to IFRS 11 ‘Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations'

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 intangible Assets’

Amendments to AS 1 ‘Prasentation of Financial Staternants’

Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Equity Method i Separate Financial Statements’

Amendments to IAS 10 and IAS 28 'Sale of Contrnibution of Assets between an Investor and its Assocrate or Jont Venture'

Amendments to I1AS 7 ‘Staternent of Cash Flows’

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments'

Annual improvements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The potential Impact of the atove standards and interpretations 18 still being assessed by the Group

3 Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are descnbed i nots 1, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources The eshmates and associated assumptions are based on histornical expenence and other factors that are
considered to be relevant Actuel results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the perod in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that penod, or in the penod of the revision and future
pencds if the revision affects both current and future penods

Cntical jJudgemaents 1n applying the Group's accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most signrficant effect on the amounts recognised In the financial statements The critical judgements made by

the Group all involve estimation uncertamty
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty contnued

Accounting and tax treatment of the IPQO costs

within the year the Group incurred exceptional costs in relation to transaction fees and other costs of listing These costs have
been reviewed by management under the accounting treatment guidance of IAS 32 to ensure the comect allocation of costs
between share premium in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and expenses within the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income Exiernal advice has been sought regarding the tax treatment of these costs

Fair value of shared equity receivables

Shared equity recervables are inibally recogrused within revenue at fair value, being the estimated future amount recevable by the
Group, discounted to present day values The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takas into account the Directors’ view
of future house price movaments and expected timing of receipts The assessment of anticipated future cash flows from the

assets 1S carned out at each reporting date

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Inventory includes a proportion of design, construction, comrnercial and planning costs Dunng the year procurement costs have
also been included within the cost calculations based on a change in the procurement focus and approach across the Group
Costs associated with these functions are reviewed by management to attnbute those costs relating directly to the cost of the
developments to inventory and those that relate to general business overheads to expenses The assurmphions used are raviewed
annually by the functon heads before being proposed to the Risk and Audit Commities

Share-based payments
Assumptions are made in deterrnining the farr value of employee services received in exchange for the grant of options under

share-based payment awards at the date of grant Assumptions are around lapse rates, share performance and the expected
outcome of performance canditions An elernent of one of the equity-settled shars-based payment plans is subject to market-
based conditions, judgernents have bean made in order to determine the farr values of this market-based element Further detail of
the share-based payment schemes has been provided In note 32

4 Revenue Contirming opertons
Yaar ondad 1 August

2018 2015

£m €m

Unit sales 608 2 4688

FRI revenug 2717 169

6359 4857

All urit sales revenue arose from the sale of properties and is atinbutable to continuing operations All revenue was generated
within the UK Na individual customer 1s significant to the Group's revenue in any penod FRI revenue 1s explainad within note 1

5 Segmental analysts
IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’, establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments and related disclosures,

products and services, geographic areas and major customers Operating segments are companents of an enterprise about
which separate financial information 15 available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker in declding how
to allocate resources and in assassing performance

The Group conducts its activities, made up of four key products, through a single operating segment Consequently, no detailed
segment mformation has been presented

None of the Group's customers represented more than 0% of the Group's revenue gsnarated from the bulding of retirement
apartments for any reporting penod prasented herein

6. Profit for the year

Hrofit for the year has been amved at after chargingAcrediting) Continning operabons
Year andad 31 Augusi

2016 205

Notas £m tm

Depraciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 10

Amortisation of intangibles 14 25 25
Operating lease rental expense 78

Land and buldings 09 10

Plant and machtery 23 20

Cost of invertones recognised as an expense 436.0 3146

Staff costs 7 693 592

Changs in farr value of denvatives 21 03 01

Share-based payments charge to profit and loss 32 15 15

Movement In inventory provision {0 3)




Annwal Report and Accounts 2016 McCarthy & Stoneplec 97

6 Profit for the year continued

Reconciltation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax

The following tables present a recaniciliation between the statutory profit measures disclosed on the Conschdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appraise performance

Exceptional items are iterns which, duae to thair ane-off, non-trading and non-recumng nature, have been separately classified by
the Directors in order to draw them to the attention of the reader Amortisation of brand has been adjusted in order to reconcie
to undertying operating profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors do not beligve this cost reflects the undarlying
trading of the business In the judgement of the Directors this prasentation shows the undartying performance of the Group

Exceptionals
Exceptional Adjuated cost
Administrative  Amortlsation
Statutory costs ofbrand  Underlying
Year ended 31 August 2016 Motes £m £m £m m
Operating profit 951 100 21 107.2
Firance income 9 27 - - 27
Finance expense 10 (4.9} - - (4.9)
Profit before tax 929 100 21 1050
Income tax expense (19 4) on {0.4) {20.5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and
total comprehensive ncome 735 93 17 845
Earmings per share
Basic (p per share) 13.9 18 04 161
Diluted (p per share) 139 1.8 0.4 161

The exceptonal administrabive costs in FY186 pnimanly relate to the transacton fees and other costs of hsting (E8 5m} Other costs
recognised within exceptionals relate to redundancy and restructunng costs (£0 9m), Management Incentive Plan payments
(£0 4m} and refinancing and ather casts (£0 2mj

Excaptional costs Acusted cost
Restructuring Refinancing  Amoriisation
Statutory  rolated costs costs of brand Undertying
Year ended 31 August 2015 Notes £m £m £m £€m £m
Operating profit 878 50 04 21 853
Finance mcome 9 12 - - - 12
Finance expense 10 81 - - - 81)
Profit before tax BO9 50 04 21 884
Income tax expense {166 09 01 {04) (180)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and
total comprehensive Income 643 41 03 17 704
Earnings per share
Adjusted basic (p per sharg)* 135 09 0t 03 148
Adjusted diluted (p per shara)! 135 09 01 03 148

1 Prar year EPS has been adjusted to reflect the 4 1 share consolidation that took placa In FY18 A reconciiat.on to the previausly stated EPS has baen prowidad In note 12

The aperating exceptional costs 1n FY15 relate to adwisory costs in relation to a potental transaction, radundancy, office relocation
and restructuning costs following an operational review of the business, and advisory costs in relation to the refinancing of the
Group's debt

Auditor’s remuneration Continung operations
“Year enced 31 August

2018 205
£m £m

Fees payable to the Group's audrtor
Annual audit 02 02
Transaction related audit and advisory services 07 05
0.9 07

There were no other non-audit fees payable to Group auditor in the year

Audit fees in refation to joint ventures audited by the Group's auditor were £3,000 (2015 £2,000)
www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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7. Staff costs
Stafi costs for the year inciude Directors’ emotuments, which are detailed betow:

Continuing operstions

Year ended 31 August
2016 2015
£m £ra
Wages and salanes 98 4 503
Social sacurty costs 6.5 57
Other pension costs 20 17
Share-based payments 15 15
Termination payments 09 -
693 592

The average number of persons, ncluding Executive Directors, amployed by the Group dunng the year was as follows

Contnieng oparaions
Year anded 31 August
2018 2015
Number Number
Office management 1,048 824
Construction 241 220
1,289 1,044
Al 31 August 2016, the Group employed 1,344 people (2015 1,158)
Amounts recognised in respact of Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments Contwing cns
Year ended 31 August
2016 2015
£m m
wages and salanes 1.5 14
Social security costs 02 04
Share-based payments 06 08
Other pension costs 02 -
25 26

The ernoluments of the tighest pasd Director was £0 9m (2015 L0 7m), incluting pension contnbutions of il 2015 nil}
The number of Directors in the Company pension plan was two (2015 one)

8. Other income and expenses

Conhnutng operabons

‘aar snded 31 Auguat
2018 2015
em £m
Net rental ncome 0.8 03
Other mcome 5.9 48
Non-core business revenus 2.1 38
Land sales (loss)/profit {0.1) 03
85 91

QOther Income anises on the services provided by Group subsidianies to manage certain developments Non-core business revenue
relates to other mcome such as rebates and custormer extras

9 Finance income Continung oper.
Year anded 31 Augusi

2016 2015

£m £m

Change n fair value of shared equity receivables 2.5 09

Interest mcome receved 0.2 03

27 12
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Conbrung operations
Year enced 31 August

2018 25
£m £m
Loans and overdraft fees 3.6 77
Promissory note interest and fees 05 -
Refinancing 1ssue costs 0s 03
Fair valug movement on interest rate cap 03 01
49 81
11 Tax 2018 2015
Notes £m m
Corporation tax chargas
Current year 186 160
Adjustments in respect of pnor years {0.4) ©3)
Deferred tax charges
Current year 20 12 07
Adjustments in respect of pnor yaars - 02
19.4 166
The tax charge for each year can ba reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows 2016 2015
£m &m
Profit before tax on continuing operations 929 BO9
Tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 20 00% (2015 20 58%) 186 686
Tax effect of
Expensss that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 1.5 03
Income not taxable n determining taxable profit (01} 03)
Adjustments in respect of previous pertods (04} -
Other reconciling items {02 -
194 166

Tax charge for the year

Reductions i1 the rate of corporation tax to 19% and 18% from 1 Aprl 2017 and 1 Apnl 2020 were substantively enacted on
18 November 2015 The UK deferred tax assets and habiities at 31 August 2015 have been calculated based on the appropriate

rate at which the asset/hatiily will unwind

12 Earnings per share

Basic samings per share 1s calculated as the profit for the financial penod attnbutable to shareholders of the Company divided by

the weighted average number of shares in issue dunng the period The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares dunng
the full year ended 31 August 2016 was 525.6m for basic and 525 9m for difuted ¢alculations, gvng a statutory earmings per share
for the year ended 31 August 2016 of 13 9p (both basic and difuted)

206 205
Profit attnbutable to shareholders {£m) 731 641
Weighted average number of sharas (m} 5256 19056
13.9 34

Basic eamings per share (p)

For diluted earmings per share, the weighted average number of shares in 1ssus 1s adjusted to assume the converslon of all
potentadly diutve ordinary shares At 31 August 2016, the Company had lwo categones of potentially diutive ordinary shares
1 9m nil cost share options under the 2015 LTIP and 4 1m 167 4p share oplions under the 2015 Sharesave plan

A calculation 1s dong to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the aggregate of the
exercise pnce of each share ophon and the far value of future services to bie supplied to the Group, which i1s the unamortised
share-based paymants charge The difference between the number of shares that couid have been acquired at fair value and the
total number of options 13 used n the diluted earmings per share calculation
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12. Earnings per share continued 2018 a5
Profit used 1o determine thiuted EPS (£m) 731 641
Werghted average number of shares {m) 5256 19056
Adiustments for
Share gphons - 2015 LTIP (m) 0.3 -
Share options - 2015 Sharesave plan (m) - -
Shares used to determine diluted EPS {m} 5259 19056

Diluted earnings per share (o} 139 34

The year ended 31 August 2015 eamings per share calculations shown below have been calculated using a rebased weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 476,387,438 (for both the basic and diiuted calculations) to allow meaningful comparnison
with the year ended 31 August 2016 earmings per share data This was pursuant to the consolidation of the Group's share capital
at a ratio of 4 1 which occurred on 11 November 2015

Earnings per share for the year ending 31 August 2015, reconciiation to pnor year reported figures

Basc Oiuted
Profit attnbutable to shareholders {Em) 641 641
Weghted average number of shares (m) 1,9056 19056
Earrings per share (p) 34 34
Reduchon in shares following share consohidation (14292} (14292)
Weighted averags number of shares {m) - restated ATG 4 476 4
Adjusted sarnings per share (p) 135 135
13. Goodwill em
Cost
At 1 September 2014 and 31 August 2015 and 2016 a7
Carrying amount
At 1 September 2014 and 31 August 2015 and 2016 N7

No imparment losses have been recognisad in any of the reporting penods presanted herain

Goodwill arose as a result of an acquisition in 2009 of the assets and llabities of Monarch Realisatians 1 pls (in lquidaton)
As the goodwill relates to the business as a whole, it has not been allocated to a specific CGL For key assumplions in
deterrnining recoverable amounts th goodwill wnpairment testing, refer to note 16

14 Intangibfe assets Brand Toral
&m £m em
Cost
At 1 September 2014 414 29 443
Additions - 10 10
At 31 August 2015 414 39 453
Additions - 04 04
At 31 August 2016 414 4.3 457
Amortisation
At 1 September 2014 (11 1) - {111)
Charge for the year @n 04) 25
At 31 August 2015 (132 04 (138}
Charge for the year (21} ©4) {2 8)
At 31 August 2016 (15.3) 08 (161}
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2015 282 35 3Ny
At 3T August 2016 261 3.5 296

Brand assets represent McCarthy & Stons plc brand name purchased as part of the business combination in 2009 Brand assets
have 12 years and 7 months of useful life remaming

All amortisation charged is recognised in administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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15. Property, plant and equipment Fixturas

fittings and

equipment Total

£m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2014 69 69
Additions 20 20
Disposals {2 9} 29
At 31 August 2015 60 60
Addrions 15 15
Disposals {03) {03}
At 31 August 2016 72 7.2
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 Septernber 2014 (4 0) 4 0)
Charge for the year (10) (10}
Elminated on disposals 16 16
At 31 August 2015 34) (34
Charge for the year (11 (i)
Eiminated on disposals o2 02
At 31 August 2016 43) (4 3}
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2015 26 26
At 31 August 2016 2.9 2.9

16 Impairment testing

Dunng the periods reported in the financial statements, no impairments have been recognised against the Group's assets For
each reported period, management have perfarmed an impairment review of goodwill, being an indefinitely ived asset The Group
only has ons CGU, being the McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limnted’s business, which was acquired n 2009

Tha key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changas
to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisaticn (EBITDA} used as a proxy of free cash flows beyond the budgeted
years) as well as the level of capital expenditure required to mamntain the existing business into the future These assumptions are
reviewed and revised annually in hght of current economic conditens and the future outtook for the business Management
gstimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessmants of the tme value of money and the nsks
specific to the business, rates used for 2016 are 8 4% (2015 8 49%%)

The forecast perod employed in the impairment assessment was five years followed by an assessment of cash flows and growth
into perpetuity The growth rates used are based on managerment's assessment of the cash flow forecasts over the medium lerm
Due to the headroom within the calculation no further growth has been assumed within the perpstuity calculation These are
based on conservative estimates of the Group’s ability to participate in the growth expected in the industry Changes in seling
prces and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market

The value of goodwill recognised i the financial statements has been compared to the denved value in use with no impairment
chargss ansing The Group has conducted a sensitvity analysis on the key assumptions which are matenal to the impatrment
assessment including the discount rate, the cash flow projectons and the terminal growth rate and concluded no material
sansitivity exists in these calculations

No imparrment charges were recorded on stems of property, plant and equipment throughout the period covered by these
financial statements

17 Investment in joint ventures

The Group has a 50% ownership intersst of ordinary shares in each of Kindle Housing (Warthing) Lirited, Kindle Housing
{Chnstchurch) Limitect and Kindle Housing (Exeter) Limited, which rent affordable housing to local key worker employees

The Group also has a 508 ownership interest In Kindle Housing Lirmited, which manages affordable housing These comparues
are all registered in England and Wales

The Group accounts for its interests in these companies using the equity method of accounting

The share of the assets, labilities, ncome and expenses of the jointly controlled entities Is not matenal
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18. Inventories 2018 2015
£m £m

L.and held for development 2365 1309
Sites 1n the course of construchon 2010 258 8
Finished stock 2483 1961
6858 5858

Days in inventory amounted to 574 days n 2016 (2015 685 days)

Inventory days are calculated by taking cost of inventones recognised as an expenss in the year dvided by yearend inventory

19. Trade and other receivables 2016 2015
&m £m
Trade and other receivables due in less than one year
Trade recevables 15 10
Other debtors and prepayments 6.0 99
75 109
Trade and other recevables due in greater than one year
Secured mortgages 34 35
Shared equity recevables 293 280
v 315

Trade recenables and secured mortgages disclosed above are classified as loans and recevables and are measured at
amaortised cost

The Directors consider thai the carrying amounts of trade and othar recevables and non-current recevables appraximates their

far value

20. Deferred tax
The followng are the major deferred tax liabiies and assets recognised by the Group

Accelerated Other
tax tomporary  Unvelieved
deprecigtion  differences tax losses Total
£m £m £m m
At 1 September 2014 02 04 - 06
Income statement charge 023 07 - 09
At 31 August 2015 - 03 - 03
Income statement charge - 12 - {12
At 31 August 2016 - {15) - (15)

Deferred tax assets are represented by positive values and deferred tax labihes are represented by negative valuss in the

table above

Deferred tax assets of £0 1m in relation to capital losses camed forward were not recognised as thers Is uncartanty as to whether

these losses could be utihsed by the Group prior to expiry (2015 £0 3m} These losses have ng expiry date

21. Derwative financial assets 2016 2015
fm £m
- 03

Interest rate cap
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22. Trade and other payables 2018 2015
Em [
Trade payables 268 230
UK corporation tax 84 85
Cther taxes and social secunty costs 19 i8
Accrued expenses 514 369
Other craditors 186 136
107.1 838
Trade payables and accrued expenses principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The
average crecit period taken for trade purchases was 21 days dunng 2016 (2015 20 days) No matenal interest costs have been
mncurred in relation to such payables The Group policy 1s to ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms and
to avoid incurnng penalties and/or interest on fate payments Other creditors include sales taxes, property taxes, social secunty
and smployment taxes due to local tax authonties The Directors consicler that the carrying amount of trade payables
approximates their fair value
No trade payables are purchased on extended payment terms
23 Land payables — 205
£m £m
Land payables 493 365

Land payabies relate to payment due in respect of land which has been purchased under an uncondional contract

24. Borrowings

Short-term borrowings 2018 2015
£m £m

Promissory notes 1.3 -
Leng-term borrowings 2016 208
em £m

Loans §5.0 900
Unamortised 1ssue cosls (2 5) @1
Promissory notes - 113
52.5 ag2

Outstanding at 31 August

2016 2015

Matusty €m £m

Revolving Credit Facility May 2021 550 800

Dunng December 2014, the £160 Om term debt faciity was replaced by a new £200 Om revohing credit faciity (RCF), with a
five-year term, maturing December 2019 The nominal interest rate of this facility has been amended within the yearto a3, 3 or 6
month LIBOR + 16% (2015 1, 3 or 6 month UBOR + 2 5%) depending on the length of the drawdown As at 31 August 2018,

£55 0m (2015 £390 Om) was drawn The RCF 1s secured by a flioating charge over the assets of McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy &
Stone Retirement Liestyles Limitad, McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limrted, McCarthy & Stone Extra Care Livng Lirmited and
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited

In May 2018, an amendment was made to the RCF agreement to improve commercial terms and extand the facilty’s matunty date
from 18 December 2019 {0 23 May 2021 As part of the amendment the margins have been reduced There have been no
changes to the size of the faciity

Land-related promissory notes with terms of three to six months were used for two land acguisihions in the prior year The tofal
finance cost of the land-related promissory notes 18 4% The land-related promissory notes in 1ssue are structured as ancillary
facilities of the RCF and are therefore linked to the secunty arrangements discussed above
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25 Net (cash)/debt 2016 2015
£m £m
Loans 63.7 992
Add back unamorhsed issue costs 2.5 21
Cash and cash equvalents {119.0) {56 9)
et (cashl/debt {52.8) 44 4
Add back land-rslated promissory notes (1.3) 113
{Net cash}/net debt excludmng land-related promissory notes (84 1) 331

Net debt is a non-GAAP measure and 15 calculated as cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term bomowings
{excluding unamortised debt 1ssue costs) As at 31 August 2015, net debt was reported as cash and cash equivalents less
long-term borrowngs {excluding land-related promissory notes and unamortised debt issue costs)

26. Share capital
The Company has one class of ardinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income There is no lirmit to authorised share capital

2018 2015
Number Numnber
'000 '000

Issued and fully pard
Ordinary shares of 8p (2015 20p) each 537,314 1,905,550
2018 2015
£'000 £000

Issued and fuliy paid
Ordinary shares of 8p (2015 20p) each 42,985 381,110

Issuance of equity securities

Capital reduction of share capital and share premium

in order to create additional distnbutable reserves for the Company, the Company resolved, by a special resolution passed as a
written resolution on 26 October 2015, that the nomenal value of the Company's shares be reduced from 20p to 2p, reducing the
amount standing to the credrt of share capital account of the Company by £342,998,855 18 from £381,109,650 20 to
£38,110,995 02 and that the Comparny's share pramium of £56,400,000 be cancelled

Issuance of new shares in relation to the Managament incentive Plan

On 26 October 2015, the Company resolved, by a special resolution passed as a written resolution, to issue 43,706,526 ordmary
shares at a norminal value of 2p o the 16 participants in the Management Incentive Plan in exchange for tha transfer by these
participants of the shares held by them in M&S MipCo S arl

Consolidation of share capital
On 28 Cctabher 2015, the Company resclved by special rasoluttan passed as watten resolulion, to consolidate the issued and fully

paid ordinary share capital of the Company at a ratio of 41

Issuance of new sharss in relation to primary proceeds from the IPO

On 26 October 2015, the Company resolved, by a specral resolution passed as a written resolution, to 1ssue 50,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at a nominal vaiue of 8p pursuant to the raising of pnmary proceeds from the IPO These shares
were 1ssued on 11 November 2015

Dwidends on equity shares

The intenm dividend was approved by the Board on 18 Apnil 2016 and paid on 31 May 2016 to all ordinary sharehoiders on the
register of members at the close of business on Fnday 29 Apnl 2016, The ex-dvidend date was 28 Apnl 2016 The final dvidend
proposed by the Board 1s 3 5p per share resutting In a total ordinary diviciend for the year of 4 5p it will be paid on 1 February
2017 to those shareholders who are on the register at 6 January 2017 subject to approval at the Company's Annual General
Meeting The ex-dvidend date 1s 5 January 2017 These financial statements do not reflect the final dwdend payment
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27. Share premium reserve 2016 2015
£m Em

Share premium 1008 564

The share premium raserve represents the consideration that has been receved in excess of the nominal value of shares on 1ssue
of new ordinary shars caprtal

Movements in share capital are explamed within note 26, and presented within the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equrty

28 Operating lease arrangements 2018 o015
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense during the year 32 30

At year end the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which fall due as follows 2016 o015

£Em £m
Within one year 3.9 32
In the second to fifth years inclusive 8.7 78
After five years 28 28
Outstanding commitments for future mumimum lease payments 154 138

Operating lease payments typically represent rentals pavable by the Group for its office properhes and cars Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to leased property agreemants

29 Notes to the cash flow statement 2016 3015
Notes £m &m
Profit for the financial year 735 643
Adjustments for
Income tax expense 11 194 166
Amortisation of intangibles 14 25 25
Share option charge 32 15 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 10
Interest expense 10 49 81
Interest ncomse g9 {2.7) (12
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 100 2 928
Decreasefincrease) in tracle and other receivables 22 {5 5)
(increase) In inventanes (99 5) (78 9)
Increase in tracle and other payables 375 322
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 40.4 406
Interest recewed 02 03
Interest paid {4 1) 80
Income taxes paid (18 2) (133
Cash generated by operations 18.3 187
Net cash inflow from operating activities 183 197
2016 2015
£m m

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 1130 569

Cash and cash equivalents compnsa cash and bank balancses and short-term bank deposits with an origina! maturity of three
months or less, nat of outstanding bank overdrafts The carrying amount of cash and cash equivatents approximates far value

The mcrease in mventones compnses movernents in nventores and mvastment property {transferred to Inventory), offset by the
1Issuance of promissory notes in respect of two land acquisitions The transfer of investment property to inventory and the 1ssuance
of promissory noles represant non-cash movements recognised aganst the associated tnventory

The increasa in trade and other payablas includes the movement in land payables

www mccearthyandstonegroup co uk

IFONYNHUIAOD JIVHOLHGD 1H0d3Y JI93LVHLS

SANIWILYLS IVIONYNID



106 McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report and Acoounts 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

30 Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a stakeholder defined contnbution retrement benefit scheme which is open to all employees

Other than amounis that are deducted from employees’ remuneratton and accrued pending payment to the benefit scheme, no
further obligatons fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties entirely separate

from the Group

The benefit scheme charge for the penod represents contnbutions payabls to the benefit schems and amounted to £2 Om for the
year ended 31 August 2016 (2015 £17m)} Unpaid contributions amounted to £0 2m as at 31 August 2016 (2015 £0 2m)

31 Financial nsk management
The Group's financial nstruments compnse cash, bank loans and overdrafts, rade recewables, other financial assets and trade

ana other payables

Categones of financial instruments 2018 2015
Notas £m £m

Financial agsets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Shared equity receivables 19 293 280

Interest rata cap 21 - 03

Loans and receivables*

Cash and cash equivalents 29 1190 569

Trade and other recevablss 19 2.2 51
1505 203

Financial habilities

Amortised cost

Trade and other payables 22 92,0 773

Land payables 23 49.3 365

Loans 24 52.5 879

Land-related promissory notes 24 113 113
205.1 2130

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital (being debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity) to ensure entities within the Group have a
strong capital base in order to continue as going concerns, o mamtain Investor and creditor confidence and to provide a basts for
the future development of the business while maximising the retum to stakeholders

The Group 15 not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group that
are managed as capita!

‘The Group does not routinely make addittonal issues of capital, other than for the purposs of rarsing finance for the management
of the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designed to grow value i future

Share-based payment schemes have been introduced to allow senior empicyees of the Group to participate in the ownership of
one of the Group entihies n order to ansure the semor employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the
aims of all shareholders

Financial nsk management
The Group's finance function 1s responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury It co-ordinates access to financial markets and

monitors and manages the financial nsks relating to the operations of the Group through internal reports which analyse exposures
by degree and magnitude The nsks reviewed include market nsk (including currency nsk, far value interest rate nsk and pnce
risk), credit sk, hquidity nsk and cash flow interest rate nsk

The Board 1s responsible for managmg these asks and the policies adopted are as aet out below

Housing market nsk management

The Group’s activities expose It pnmanly to macroeconomic risks such as deflation and the cyclical nature ot UK property pnces

A detenoration in the economic outlaok could have a significant iImpact on the Group’s financial performance and the Group has

the following procedures which mitigate s market related opsrational nsk

» The Group closely momnlors industry indicators and assesses the potential impact of different econaomic scenanos

* Decisions to allocate new capital to land and build are managed centrally through the Group Investment Committes, membership
of which includes the Group Chief Executive Qfficer, the Group Chief Financial Officer, the National Operations Director and the
Land and Planning Dwector

+ The Group ams to mamtamn a national and product spread of developrments to ensure that it 1s not rehant on one particular
location, development or product

+ The Group undertakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at regional and Group level
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31. Financtal risk management continued

The valus of the Group's house pnce finked financial assets s senstive {0 UK house prices since the amount repayable 1s
dependent upon the market price of the property o which the asset s inked Al 31 August 2016, if UK house pnces were 5%
lower for a one-year period and all olher vanables were held constant, the Group's housa price lihked financial assets would
decrease i value, excluding the effects of tax, by £1 1m with a corresponding reduction in both the result for the year and equity

Credit risk management

Credit nsk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on ris contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group
The Group has a low exposure to credit nsk due to the nature and legal framswork of the UK housing industry As stated in the
Group's accountng policy for revenue recogrition, a sale 1s only recogrised upon legal completion and thes Is accompanied by
full cash receipt in virtually all cases

In certain circumstances the Group offers sales incentives resuliing in a long-term debt being recogrused under which the Group
will receive a proportion of the resale proceeds of an apartment The Group's equity Share 1s protected by a registered entry on
the titfe and usually represents the first interest in the property A reduction in property values leads to an increase in the credn nisk
of the Group in respect of such sales

The credit nsk refating to shared equrty recervables i1s deemed immatenal as the value 1s recovered though subsequent disposal of
the related asset As a result, management consider the credit quality of these receivables to be good in respect of the amounts
outstanding, resulting n low credit nsk Exposure to house pnce sensitvity 1s built into the fair value calculation

Trade recevables consist of a large number of customers, spread across different regions Ongoing credit evaluation 1s performed
on the financial condihion of trade recevables

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure 10 any single counterparty or group of counterparties having s:milar
charactenstics The Group defines counterparties as having similar charactenstics if they are related enbhes There 1s no matenal
concentration of credit nsk in respect of one individual customer

The carrying amount recorded for financial assets in the financial statemants 1s net of mparrment losses and represents the
Group's maximum exposure to credrt nsk No guarantees have been given in respect to third parties in addmion for contracted
rental agreements deposits ar advences may be hald to mitigate ask The Group also holds legal recourse and can exercise (s
nght to recover rental equiprent from non-performing customers

Ligundity risk management

Lquidity nsk s the nisk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meegting obligations associated wath financial kabiibes The Group's
strategy in relation to managing lquidity nsk s to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash flow hquid funds to meet all ts potential
llabities as they fall due The Group produces cash flow forecasts to monitor the expected requirements of the Group against the
avallable faciites The pnncipal risks with these cash flows relate to achieving the leve! of sales volumes and prices in ine with

current forecast
The matunty of the financial liakilittes of the Group at 31 August 2016 1s as follows

2015
Camying  Contractual
vajue cash flows Within 1 yezr 2-5 years S+ years
£m £ £m £m €m
Loans 800 1028 3¢ 889 -
Other financial liabilites carrying interest 13 17 03 14 -
Financial labihbies carrying no interest 1138 138 138 - -
Total 2151 2283 1180 103 -
2016
Carrying Contractual
vitlug cash flows Within 1 year 2-5years 5+ yoars
£m £m £m £m £€m
Loans 58.0 647 2.0 627 -
Other financial labilittes carrying interest 13 1.4 14 - -
Financial iabilities carrying no interest 1413 1413 141.3 - -
Total 2076 2174 154.7 627 -

Other financa! liabilites carrying interest are promissory notes, which attract availability and discount fees Financial kabilies carrying
no interest are trade and other payables and land payables The tming and amount of future cash flows given in the table above 1s
tased on the ysar-end position
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31, Financral risk management continued

Interest rate nsk management
Interest rate nsk reflects the Group's exposura to fluctuations to interest rates in the market The nsk anses because the Group’s

RCF is subject to floating interest rates based on LIBOR From 2015 the interest rate risk has bean partially mitigated by the
purchase of an interest rate cap See note 21 for further details

In the year ended 31 August 2016, if UK interest rates had bean 0 5% higher or lower, as this 1s a reasonably possitle change, and
all other vanances were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 5m (2015 £0 7m) Calculations
have been based on borrowing values at each month end

Fair value of financial instruments

Valuation techniques and assurmnptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

Fair value of financial instruments carred at amortised cost

The Directors consider that the cammying amounts of financial assets and financial habiibies recorded al amortised cost in the

financial siatements approximate therr farr values

Bank and other loans
Farr value 1s calculated based on discounted expecied future principal and interest flows

Interest rate swaps
At each penod end, the Directors appaint a valuer to perform an external valuation of the far value of each imerest rate swap or

cap outstanding Faw values are based on broker quotes, which are reviewed by the Directors and reflect the actual transactions in
similar instruments

Valuation of level 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and habtlities

* The fair values of financial assets and financial habilibes wath standard terms and conditions and traded on active iquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market pnces (includes histed redeamable notes, bills of exchange, debentures and
perpetual notas)

* The far values of ather financial assets and financial habilibies {excluding danvative nstruments) are determined n accordance
with generally accepted pncing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using pnces from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar nstruments

« The far values of denvative instruments are calculated using quoted prices Where such prices are not available, a discounted
cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional denvatives,
and option pncing models for optional denvatves Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward
exchange rates and vyield curves denved from quoted interest rates maitching maturthes of the contracts Interest rate swaps are
measured at the present value of future cash flows estmated and discounted based on the applicable yeld curves derved

from quoted interest rates

Fair value measurements recognised m the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posihon

The following table prowides an analysis of financral insiruments that are measured subsequent to bal recogrition at fair value

The grouping into Levels 1 to 3 1s based on the degree to which thew far value is observable
Level 1 farr value measurements are those denved from quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilttres

* Lovel 2 far value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted pnces iIncluded within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or lability, either directly (fe as pncas) or indirectly (ie denved from pnces)

* Level 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techniques that include wputs for the asset or lizbility that are

not based on observable market data (Unobservable Inputs)

The financial nstruments held by the Group that are measured at far value all relate to financial assets measured at far value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) using methods associated with Level 3 The sensitvities are not material on assets held at far value

2015
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
£m tm £m £m
Financial assets at FVTPL
Shared equily receivables - - 280 280
Interest rate cap - - 03 03
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 283 283
2018
Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets at FVTPL
- 293 293

Shared equity recevables -
lnterest rata cap -

Total financial assets dasignated at FVTPL - - 29.3 293
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31. Financial risk management continued
There were no transfers betwaen Levels 1, 2 or 30 the year

Financial assets compnise shared equdy loans secured by way of a second charge on the property, investment properties and an
interest rate cap

Financial assets are recorded at far valus, being the estimated amount recevable by the Group, discounted to present day values

For shared equrty recervables the far value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors’ views of an
appropnate discount rate, a new buid premium, future house pnce movermnents and the expected timing of receipts These
assumptions cover a vanigty of different schemes and the range of assumptions used are stated below The assumptions are
reviewed at each penod end

Assumptions 2016 25
Discount rate 4Tt051% 471052%
New build premium 5% 5%
House pnice inflation 0to40% Oto32%
Tirming of recemt Sto12yrs Gloi2ys
2016 2018

increase Decrease

assumptions assumptions
by 1%/fyear by 1%/year
Sensitivity-effect on value of other financial assets{less)/mare £m £€m

Discount rate (2 4) 27
House pnce imflation 23 21)
Tirming of receipt {13) 13

The Directors raview the antcipated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the drfference between the
anticipated future receipt and the inrtial far valug 1s credited to finance Nncome

At ihial recognition, the far values of the assets are calculated using a discount rate appropnate to the class of assats that refiects
market conditions at the date of entenng into the transaction The Directors consider at the end of each reporting penod whether
the inthial market discount rate stll reflects up to date market condibons If a revision is required, the farr values of the assets are
remeasured at the present value of the revised fulure cash flows using this revised discount rate The difference between these
valuas and the camying values of the assets 1s recorded against the carrying value of the asssts and recognised directly in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

The following tablas present the changes in Level 3 mstrurents for the years ended 31 August 2015 and 2016

2015
Shared
equity Interast
recanvabies rats cap Totat
£m om Em
Opening balance 243 - 243
Additions 48 04 52
Disposals (2 0} - 20
Revaluation gains or flosses) recogmised m the ncome statement og Q1 08
Closing balance 280 03 283
2018
Shared
equity Interest
receivables rate cap Total
£m Em £m
Openmg balance 280 0.3 283
Additions 0.5 - 05
Disposals (1.7) - 17
Revaluation gains or (josses) recognised in the ncome statement 25 (03) 22
Closing balance 293 - 293
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32. Share-based payments

Cash-gettled and equity-settled share-based payment scheme

within the year the existing Management Incentive Plan that had been granted to certain employees crystalised Thus Plan was a
partly equity-settled and partly cash-settled share-based payment arrangement whereby the employess were entitied to a cash
bonus and shares f certan future conditions were met

The spiit of aquity and cash was based on a hurdle mechanism which accrued from a predstermined starting equity value
compounded at a set rate of interest per annum The cash payment was a percentage of the final valuation above the starting
equity but below the hurdle The shares entitled the paricipants to a percentage of the total value created above the hurdie
delivered in McCarthy & Stone plc shares The number of Directors in respect of whose qualfying services shares were receved
or raceivable under long-term incentive schemes was six (2015 five)

Equity-settled share-based payment

The cost of the squity-settled transactions wrih the participants 1s measured by raference to their fair value at the date at which
they are granted and 1s recognised as an expense over the sxpected vasting pencd In 2014, 19,150 shares were issued to the
participants and the fair value of the shares at the grant date was measured at £1 3m based on management's most recent
valuation Therefore, the Group recognised a cost of £0 1m in the year endsd 31 August 2016 (2015 £0 9m)in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Incoms in relation to the equity-settled share-based payment

Upon crystallisation a total of 43,706,526 shares were 1ssued to participants of the Management incentive Plan {post consolidated
figure of 10,926,632 shares} Further information on movements to share caprtal within the year is included in note 26

Cash-settled share-based payment

The total cash payment made under this scheme was £0 8m The farr value In relation to the cash paymsnt of the scheme as at
31 August 2016 was Enil following full setttement (2015 £0 8m) Dus to the crystallisation within the year thera 1S no fair value in
relation to the cash payment of the scheme as at 31 August 2016 (2015 £0 9m) The Group recogmised a total cost of £0 3m
(2015 £0 6m) in relation to the cash-settled share-based payment dunng the year ended 31 August 2016

Equity-settled share-based payment plans

Following the IPQ of the Group 1In Novembar 2015, the Group entered inte new share ncentive plans the MeCarthy & Stone ple
Long Term Incentlve Plan {the LTIP), and the McCarthy & Stone plc Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan (the ABF) In addibon, the
Group has also established two all-employee share incentve plans the McCarthy & Stone pic Share Incentive Plan {the SIP) and
the McCarthy & Stone plc Sharesave Plan {the SAYE)

Long Term Incentive Plan
During the penod the Group infroduced a LTIP for key management at the discretion of the Board Awards under the scheme are

granted in the form of nil-prnced share options LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP options become exercisable, on the third
annversary of the date of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicable performance conditions have been
satisfied LTIP Options will remain exercisable for ten years afier the date of the grant Awards are to be settled by the 1ssue of new
shares or acquisition of shares in the market The performance conditrons for the first grant under the LTIP are earnings per share
{EPS), comparative shareholder return (TSH) and return on capital smployed (ROCE} The TSR performance condition s a
market-based condition In order to valuse the TSR perforrmance conditions agamst the FTSE 250, a Monte Carlo simuiation model
1S required which can simulate comelaticn between comparies

LT 2076
Date of grant 25 November 2015
Options granted 1,830,524
Farr value at measurement date' (€) 212
Share price on date of grant () 232
Exercise price {£) 0
Vesting penad 3 years
Expected dividend yteld na
Expected volatity 2807%

08%pa

Risk free interest rate
Valuation model
Movements in the year

Black-Scholes and Mente Carle

Options at beginning of the year 0
Granted dunng the year 1,930,524
Exercised dunng the year 0
Lapsed during the year 113,888
Expirad in the year 0
Options at the end of the year 1,816,636

0

Exercisable at end of the year

1 Thusis the average falr value of the faw values for the three tranches of the LTIP scheme
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32 Share-based payments continued
The weighted average of the average price for the LTIP award 1s nit

Expected volatlity was determined by calculating the average histoncal volatity over a penod commensurate with the expected
ife of the award for the LTIP based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a constituent of post-IPQ

Sharesave Plan

The SAYE Plan 1s an all-employee savings related share option plan Employess are rvited to make regular monthly contnbutions
to a SAYE scheme cperated by Capita Asset Services On completion of the contract penod (three or five years) smployees are
able to purchase ordinary shares in the Company based on the average closing middle market price over the three days pnor to
the award, tess 20% discount There are no performance condrtions

Welghted average
exercise price

SAYE 2016 2018 Total 2018
Date of grant 10 December 2016 10 December 2016
Options granted 2.912,247 1,197,514
Far value at measurement date (€} 068 075
Share price on date of grant (£) 234 234
Exercise price (€} 1674 1674
Vesting pencd 3 years S years
Expected dvidand yield 26 20% 2816%
Expected volatiity 2607% 26 07%
Risk free interest rate 08%pa 12%pa
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

Movements in the year
Options at beginning of the year - - - -
Granted during the year 2,912,247 1,197,514 4,109,761 1674

Exercised dunng the year - - - _
Lapsed dunng the year (259 219) {35.839) {295,058) 1674
Expired in the year - - - -
Options at the end of the year 2,653,028 1,161,675 3,814,703 1674

Exercisable at end of the year - - - _

Expected volatiity was determmed by calculating the average histoncal volatiity over a perod commensurate with the expected
Ife of the sawvings term for the SAYE options, based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a conshtuent of post-IPO

Share incentive Plan

In May 20186, the Group established a Share Incentive Plan avalable to all employees This allows employess to purchase
partnership shares each month from pre-tax pay, which are then held in trust These shares can be sold or taken from the SIP or
be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open Al plan shares and any other assets held by the trustees will be held
upon trust for the participants, there s therefore no iImpact to the Group's financial statements in respect of this plan

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan

The ABP mcorporates the Company’s executive bonus scheme as well as a mecharism for the deferral of bonus into awards
over ordinary shares All smployees (including the Executive Directors) of the Group are eligible to participate in the ABP at the
discration of the Board At 31 August 2016, three Executive Directors were participating in the scheme As maximum bonus
targets have not been achieved, a cash portion of the bonus has been awarded

Total Share Incentive Plan 2018 o5

Analysis of the income charge: £m Em

Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments.

Management Incentive Plan 04 15

Equity-settled share-based payments

SAYE 04 -

LTIP 07 -
14 -
15 i5
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33 Subsidianes Class of 2016 2015
Neme Principal actwty number sharas % %
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Lirited Holding company 06622183 Ordinary 100 80
McCarthy & Stone Retrement Lifestyles Linvted Developer 06622231 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Lirmited Property investment 05663330 Crdinary 100 100
MeCarthy & Stonse {Home Equity Interests) Lirmited Property investment 05984851 Ordinary 100 160
McCarthy & Stone Investment Propertiss No 23 Limited® Property investment 06496130 Ordinary 100 100
MecCarthy & Stona (Totat Care Living) mred® Property investment 06069509 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Alnwick) Limited”® Property investment 07517819  Qrdinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone {Extra Care Lving) Limited Property investment 06897363 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited Property investment 06897301 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stane Rental Interests No 1 Limited” Property investment 06897272 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited Development management 07166051 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limided® Holding company 07165986 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Financial Serwices Linted” Financial services 07798214 Ordinary 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited Property investment 04213618 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Limited” Property resale 07165952 Ordinary 100 100
YourLife Management Services Limited Development management 07153518  Ordinary 50 50
McCarthy & Stone Independent Living bimited Dormant 06897315 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited® Dormant 01925738 Ordinary 100 100
The Planning Bureau Limited* Bormant 02207050 Ordinary 100 100
Ortus Homes Limited Dormant 08658235 Ordinary 100 100

Theas UK subsidianes wil take advantage of the audit examption sél out withn section 470A of (he Compenies Act 2006 for the year anded 31 August 2016

Each of the above sharsholdings gives the immediate Parent Company 100% voting nghts, with the exception of Yourlfe
Management Services Limited whare the parent has 50% voting nghits, but the power to appomnt the majonty of the Directors
Accordingly this gives the Group power over the relevant actnates of this entity

The registered address of all of the above subsidiaries i1s 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BHS 8AQ

34 Related party transactions
Balances and transactons betwaen the Parent Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below

Remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the executive leadership team The remuneralion that they have receved during the yearis
set out below in aggregate for each of the categones specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

2016 2015

£m £m

Short-term employes benefits 2.5 32
Share-based payments 0.9 11
Pension contnbutions 02 02
Terminatron payment 0.4 -
40 45

Aggregate emociuments of the hughest paid Director 0.9 07

As part of the Management Incentive Plan shares totaling 33,098,147 ware issued to key managemant parsonnel, prior to share
consolidation Note 26 detals movements in share capital within the year

35. Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events after the reporiing penod that required adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 Augrust 2016

2016 25

Notes Em £m
Asseots
Non-current assets
Investments in subsichanes 4 4394 4197
Total non-current assets 439 4 4197
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 104 3 175
Cash and cash squmvalents - -
Total current assets 104 3 175
Total assets 5437 4372
Equity and liabiltties
Capital and reserves
Share capital 430 3811
Share premum 100.8 564
Retained earmings 3943 (25)
Total equity 6 5381 4350
Current habilities
Trade and cther payables 7 56 22
Total current habilities 58 22
Total habilities 56 22
Total equity and liabihties 5437 4372

Notes 1 to 12 form part of the financral staternents shown above

There were no recogrised gans and fosses for the year other than the proft for the year (2015 nif}

The Company has elected to take the exernption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Parent

Company profit and loss account The Company recorded a profit for the year of £1 7m (2015 £nil)

These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (06622199) were approved by the Board on 14 November 2016 and signed

on its behalf by

Clive Fenton

Nick Maddock
Director Director

'l'f-/'[;,":’“
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the vear ended 31 August 2016

Share Share  Rgtalnad
capital R samings Total
Notes £m £€m £m £m

Balance at 1 September 2014 3811 56 4 (2 5) 4350
Profit for the perncd - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the pericd - - - -
Balance at 31 August 2015 3811 56.4 {2 5} 435.0
Profit for the penod - - 17 17
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - 17 1.7
Transactions with owners of the Company
Issus of ordinary shareg 6 48 104 8 - 1097
Capital reduction of shara capital and share premium 6 {343 0) (56 4) 3924 -
Share-based payments 2] - - 11 11
Share 1ssue related costs 6 - a0 - @0
Dradends 6 - - 54 (54)

430 100.8 3943 538.1

Balance at 31 August 2016

Notes 1 to 12 form part of the financial statements shown above
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Parent Company Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 August 2016

2018 2015
Notss tm £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8 54 00
Financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital [ 860 -
Dvidends paid 6 (54 -
Net cash from financing activities 806 -
Investing activities
Amounts owed in respect of share 1ssuance 6 (86 0) -
Net cash used in investing activities (86 0) -
Net increase in ¢cash and cash equivalents 00 [4]9]
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 0.0 oo
Cash and cash equivatents at end of year g0 0C

Notes 1 to 12 form part of the financial statements shown above

www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Accounting polictes
McCarthy & Stone ple 1s a imited liatnlity company ncarporated in England The registered office 1s 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst

Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 8AQ The following accounting policies have baen appled consistently in dealing with the items
that are considered matenal in refation to the financial statements, on an ongoing basis and 1n accordance wath the Companies

Act 2006

Basis of preparation
The Company financial staternents have been prepared under the fistoncal cost accounting rutes and In accordance with

applicable UK Accounting Standards

Under section 408 of the Comparues Act 2006 the Company s exaempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account The Company recorded a profit for the year of £1 7m (2015 £rul)

The pnncipal accounting policies adopted ars set out below

Adoption of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102

Following the publication of FRS 100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements by the Financial Reporting Council', the
Company Is required to change its accounting framework for ts Parent Company financial statements, which is currently UK
GAAP The Company has adopted FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Framework' for its Parent Company financial statemenis

Details of the transrion to FRS 102 are disclosed in note 12

No disclosure exemptions have been applied in the preparation of the Company financal statements

Investments in subsicharies
Invgstments in Group undertakings are included in the Staterment of Financial Posrion at cost less any provision for imparment

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprnse cash and short-term bank deposits with an ongmal maturity of three months or less, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts .

Share-based payments
The cost of squity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the far value at the date at which thay are

granted and 1s recognised as an expense over tha vasting penod In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ulhmately vest as a result of a falure to

sansfy a non-market-based vesting condiion

The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at far value Farr value 1s esumated intially at the grant date and at each reporting
pencd end thereafter until the awards are settled Market-based condiions are taken into account when determining farr valye

Further datals regarding the Schemas are set out In note 32 to the consolidated financial statements

Dividend distnbution
Dwvidend distnbutions to McCarthy & Stone's shareholders are recognised in the Company's financial statements in the penods in

which the final dvidends are approved at the Annual General Mesting, or when paid in the case of an intenm dividend

Financial instruments
Financral assets and financial habiliies are recognised in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position when the Company

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets
All financial assels are normally racogrised and derecognised on the date that an agreemant has been entered intc where the

purchase or sale of a financial asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the brmeframe
established by the market concerned They are inibally measured at far value, plus transachon costs, excent for those financial
assets classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are inthally measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and 1s determined &t the tme of rmtial recognition

Loans and receivables
Trade recevables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an activa market

are classified as loans and recevables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any imparment Interest incoma s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
recewvables whan the recogniion of interest would be immatenal

Financial habilies and equity
Debi and equily mstruments are classified as erther financial labiibies or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement
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1 Accounting policies contnued

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that ewidences a residual interest i the assets of an entity after deducting all of s iabilities

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recogrised at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs

Financial habilities
Financial iabilities are classified as ‘other financial iabilhas’

Other financial habiitties
Other financial liabilities, ncluding borrowings, are inially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs

Other financral labities are subsequently measured at amorbsed cost using the effective intarest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating Interest expense
over the relevant period The effective mterest rate 1S the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected ife of the financial labiiity, or, where appropnate, a shorter period, to the nat carrying amount on intial recognition

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduchon from the proceeds

Related parties

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same Group Where appropriate,
transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, i the opinion of the Directors, separate disclosure 1s necessary lo
understand the effect of the transactions on the financial statements

2 Crtical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the applicaton of the Company's accounting policies, which ane described in note 1, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estirnates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habiimias that are not readily apparent from
other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and other factors that are
considered to be refevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting estimates are recognised
n the penod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that penod, or in the penod of the rewsion and future
penods if the revision affects both current and future penods

Cntical judgements i applying the Company's accounting policies
The following are the cntical udgements that the Cirectors have made n the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effsct on the amounts recognised n the financial statements

Share-based payments
Assumphions are made in determining the fair value of employee services received in exchange for the grant of options under
share-based payment awards at the date of grant Assumptions are around lapse rates, share performance and the expected

outcome of performance conditions

3 Staff costs
The Company had no employees durnng the penod covered by these financial statements Costs relating to time incurred by
Directors for Group activities are recharged to McCarthy & Stone plc

4. investments n subsidiaries 2016 2015
Cost £m om
1 September 4197 41197
Additions 197 -
31 August 439 4 4197
Net book value 439 4 ag7

Investments in subsidiary undertakings relate to a 100% ownership interest in McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited

The Group's subsidiary undertakings for the penod that are sigruficant for the penod and traded dunng the penod are isted
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements

www mecarthyandstonagroup ¢o uk
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
continued

5 Trade and other receivables 2018 o
£m m

Amounts falling due within one year:

Other recevables and prepayments - 01
Amourts owed by subsichary undertakings 104.3 174
104.3 175

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retrement Lifestyles Limited are repayable on demand and carry nterest of 2 2% at
the year end date, this was amended from 3 5% within the year (2015 ni%)

6. Shareholders’ funds
The movernents of the share capital, share premium and equity reserve accounts are disclosed in note 26 to the consohdated

financial statements

Dividends within the year are disclosed within note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

7 Trade and other payables 2018 5
£€m £m

Amounts faling due within one year:

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 5.6 22
56 22

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Lirnited are repayable on demand and camy intarest of 2 2% at the year
end date, this was amended from 3 5% within the year (2015 ni%)

8. Notes to the cash flow statement 216 2008
Notsg £m £m
Profit for the financlal year 1.7 -
Agdustments for

Interest Income (2 6) -
Share option charge 11 -
Incoms tax expense 04 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working caprtail 06 -
(Increase) in trade and cther recevables 5 (0 8) 223
Increase in trade and cther payables 7 3.4 22
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 32 -
Interest received 2.6 -
Tax pard (0.4} -
Cash generated by operations 54 -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5.4 -
2018 2015
£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 00 00
0o 00

9 Share-based payments
Foltowing the (PO of the Company in Novermnber 2015, the Company entered into new share incentive plans Details of share

awards granted by the Company to empioyess of subsidianes, and that remam outstanding at the year end over the Company's
sharas, are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements

The Company recogrised an expense of £1 1m relating to aqurty-settled share-based payment transactions in the year (2015 £rul),
this 1s recharged to Group comparnies
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10 Financial nstruments
The Company has the following financial nstruments

2018 5
£€m &m
Financial assets
Loans and recsivables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other recevablas 104 3 175
Cash and bank balances 00 00
104 3 175
Financial habilities
Loans and payables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables (5 6) 22
{5 6) 22

The Company has no denvative financial instruments The far value of the financial nstruments 1S equal to ther carrying values

11 Related party transactions
The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly owned within the Group

See note 34 to the consclidated financial statements
Remuneration 1o key management personnel has been disclosed within nota 34 to the consolidated financial staternents

12 Explanation of transitian to FRS 102

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 August 2015, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with UK GAAP As stated in note 1, these financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2016 are the first the Company Is
required to prepare in accordance with FRS 102

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with FRS 102 applicable for penods baginning on or
after 1 September 2014 and the sigrvficant accounting policies meeting those requirements are described in note 1 and which
have been consistently applied throughout the penod

As a consequence of adopting FRS 102, the following accounting policy has changed to comply with that standard
Amounts owed to/by Group undertakings  Under UK GAAP thess balances were held at the net proceeds value received Under
FRS 102 amounts owed to Group undertakings will initially be recogrused at the transaction value and subsequently at amortised

cast Oue to the balances not having a set repayment date, and therefare being current balances the amortised costs are deemed
to equal the value recorded at the transachion date, and therefare there will be no adustment required to comply with FRS 102

www mecarthyandstonegroup €o uk
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General Company Information

McCarthy & Stone plc is registered in England and Wales, registered number 6622199

Qur offices

Registered Office Southern South West
4th Floor Southem House First Floor
100 Hotdenhurst Road 1 Embankrnem Way Blackbrook Gate
Bournemouth Ringwgod 1 Blackbrook Park Avenue
Dorset Hants Taunton
BHS BAQ BH24 1EU TA1 2PX
Tel 01202 292480 Tel 01425 322001 Tel 01823 200500
North East North West West Midlands
Aspen House Unit 3 Edward Court Ross House
Wykeham Road Altnncham Business Park Binley Bustness Park
Northminster Business Park Altnncham Harry Weston Road
Upper Popplaton Chashire Coventry
York WaA4 5GL CV3 2TR
Y026 6QW
Tel 01904 444200 Te! 0161 941 6255 Tel 02476 441199
East Midlands Scotland South East
Onon House Unit 11000 2 Genesis Business Park
Onon Way Academy Park Albert Dnve
Kettenng Gower Street Woking
NN15 6PE Glasgow Surrey

G51 1PR GU21 5RW
Tel 01536 220700 Tel 0141 420 8300 Tel 01483 908600

North London
Prospect Place

85 Great North Road
Hatfield

ALY SDA

Tel 01707 446000

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
Some of the information in this document may contain forward-looking statements regarding McCarthy & Stone plc and

its subsidianes (the Group} You may be able to identify forward-lcoking statements by terms such as “expect”, “believe”,
"anticipate”, “astmate”, “intend”, “will", "could”, “may” or “might", the negative of such terms or cther similar expressions
or by discussions of strategy, plans, cbjectives, goals, future events or intentions These forward-looking statements
include all matters that are not histoncal facts McCarthy & Stone plc (the Company) wishes to caution you that actual
events or resulfts may diifer matenally from those antieipated The farward-looking statements reflect knowledge and
nformation avadlable at the date of preparation of this document and the Company undertakes no cbligation to update
these statements to reflect events and circumstances occumng after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of
unanticipated events Many factors could cause the actual resufts to differ matenatly from those contained in forward-
looking statements of the Group, iIncluding among others, general economic conditions, the competitive environment
as wall as many other nsks specifically relaled to the Group and its operations Past performance of the Group cannot
be relied on as a guide to futurg performance Nothing in this document should be construed as a profit forecast
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Our advisers

Bankers Chartered accountants and Financral advisers
HSBC Bank plc statutory auditor Rothschild
70 Pall Mall Deloitte LLP New Gourt
London Mountbatten House St Swithin's Lane
SWi1Y 5eZ 1 Grosvenor Square London
Southampton ECAN BAL
S015 2BZ
Jount corporate brokers Joint corporate brokers Financial and corporate
Deutsche Bank Peel Hunt communications
UK Comorate Broking UK Corporate Broking Powerscourt
Winchester House Moor House 1 Tudor Street
1 Great Winchester Street 120 London Wall London
London London EC4Y 0AH
EC2N 208 EC2Y SET

Our ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange
Ticker symbol MCS
ISIN GBOOBYNVDO82

Registrar

Capita Asset Services
The Regstry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Tel (from the UK) 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10p per minuts, plus any network extras, lines are open Monday to Frday from Sam
to 5 30pm, excluding UK public holidays)

Tel (from outside the UK) +44 208 639 3399

Email shareholderenquiries@captta co uk
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Glossary

‘Adjusted EPS’

‘Capital turn/

‘Cau’
‘DCLG’
'EPS’

‘FRI

‘FTSE Index’
‘Geanng’
'‘HBF

Pro’

‘Land bank'
‘LIBOR'
‘MSms’

‘Net ASP'

‘Net assets’

‘Net debt/cash’

‘NHBC'

‘ROCE'

TGAV

TNAV'

YLMS'

Anrwal Report and Accounts 2016

FY'15 EPS has been adjusted to reflecl the 4 1 share
consclidation that tock place n FY16

calculated by dividing revenue by the average opening and
closing tangle gross asset value n the year

cash-generating unit
the Department for Communities and Local Gavernment

earnuings per shars, being profit attnbutable to ordinary
shareholders {excluding exceptional tems and deferred tax rate
changes} dvided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares i 1ssue dunng the financial year

freshold reversionary interast being the freehold of each of the
Group's developments in England and Wales which nclude the
future income stream of ground rents

the Finanoial Timas Stock Exchange index

geanng 1s calculated by dwiding net debt/cash by net assets
Home Builders Federahion

Inhal Public Offering

mncludes owned sites and exchanged stes

the London interbank offered rate

McCGarthy & Stone Management Servicas Limitad - a wholly-
owned substdiary of the Company that provides managemant

services to homeownaers in the Group's Retrament Living and
Ortus Homes developments

net average seling price - the average pnce agreed for sales of
apartments in the year afler deducting Iist pnce discounts, part
exchange top-ups and other incentives

net assets 1s calculated as total assets less total iabuities

cash and cash aquivalents less long-term and short-term
borrowings {excluding unarnorhsed debt issue costs)

Natonal House Buiiding Counci

return on capital empioyed ~ calculated by dividing undertying
operating profit by the average epening and closing tangible
gross asset value in the year

langible gross asset value - calculated as TNAV lgss
net debt/cash

tangible net asset value ~ calculated as net assets excluding
goodwill and intangible assets

YourLife Management Services Lirnited - owned 50/50 by
M3MS and Somerset Care Group Limited, that provides
managemant services, domestic assistance, personal care
and additional support to homeowners in the Group's Assisted
Living developments
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